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Corporate Profile

PUBLIC FiLE

The board of cirectors (the “Board"), Supervisory Commiitee ("Superviscry Committee®), the
directors (the “Directors”), the supervisors (the “Supervisors®) and the senior management of
Angang Steel Company Limited (the “Company*) confirm that there is no false representation or
misleading statement contained in, or material omission from this report, and severally and jointly
undertake for the truthfulness, accuracy, and completeness of the contents of this repor:.

Zhang Xiaogang, the Company’s Chairman, and Ma Lianyong, Crief Accountant, Controller and
Head of the Planning and Finance Department (& B & ¥ 88), confirm tha: the financial statements
in this report are true anc complete.

The Board of the Company is pleased to announce the annual results of the Company for tre year
ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE PROFILE

The Company is a joint stock limited company incorpcrated on 8 May 1997 with Anshan Iron
and Steel Group Complex* as its sole promoter. Pursuant to the reorganisation, Angang Holding
transferred the Cold Roll Plant, Wire Rod Plant and Heavy Flate Plant 1o the Company. The three
plants hac a net asset value of RMB2,028,817,600 as determined by the State-owned Assels
Administration Bureau, and 1,319,000,000 demestic state-owned legal person shares with a par
value of RMB1 each were issued to Anshan iron and Steel Group Complex*.

On 22 July 1997, the Company issued 890,000,000 H snares at HKS1.63 per share which were
listed and raced on The Stock Exchange of Hong Korg Limited ("Hong Keng Stock Exchange”)
on 24 ;uly 1997. The Company subsequently .issued 300,000,000 domestic A shares at RMB3.90
per share on 16 November 1997, of which 285,505,400 shares were offered to the public
and 14,492,600 employees’ shares were issued to the employees of the Company. Trading of
the 285,505,400 shares offered and issued to the domestic shareholders, and the 14,494,600
employees’ shares issued to the employees of the Company commenced on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange on 25 December 1997 and 26 June 1998, respectively.

On 15 March 2000, the Company issued A share convertible Gebentures amounting to RM31.5 billion
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC“). On 14 March 2005, the Company paid the principal
and interest accrued for the A share convertible debentures upon their maturity, and trading in and
conversion of A srare convertible debentures ended on the same cay. As of the date of maturity, a
total of 453,985,697 A shares were converted from the convertible debentures of the Company.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

On 26 January 2006, the Company issued 2,970,000,000 A shares at RMB4.29 per share to Anshan
Iron and Steel Group Complex* as partial payment of the consideration for the acquisition of 100%
equity interests of Angang New Steel and Iron Company Limited (“ANSI). The registration for
custody cf such shares at She~zhen Branc~ of China Securities Derository and Clearing Corporation
Limited completed on 23 February 2006 and they will not be traded or transferred within 36
months starting from 23 February 2006. The total number of shares of the Company increased to
5.932,985,697 following the issue of new shares.

On 20 June 2006, it was approved by the annual general meeting of the Company for the year
2005 to change the Chinese name of the Company from "BROIMULBARGBER LT o "BOR
BABAE", anc Chinese short name was changed to “B LR H"* from "ERLTHAL". ~he Englsh
name was changed from “Angang New Steel Company Limited” to “Angang Steel Company
Limited”, while the Znglish shcrt name was changed 1o “Ansteel” from “Angang New Steel”. On
29 September 2006, the Company obtained its new “Business License for Enterprise Legal Person”
reflecting such change of name.

In December 2005, the Company implemented the non-tradable shares reform, pursuant to which
Anshan ron ard Steel Group Complex*, the holder of the non-tracable shares of the Company,
offered 2.5 A shares and 1.5 “B&{3JTC 1" share warrants for every 10 shares held by the registered
holders of tradable A shares on the record date for the non-tradable shares referm, and Anshan
Iron and Steel Group Complex* offered a total of 188,496,424 A shares and 113,097,855 "®&
HITC1* share warranis to other holders of A shares. The “BRESITC1” share warrants expired
in December 2006. A total of 110,601,666 share warrants were exercised, as a result of which
Angang Holding ‘ransferred 110,601,666 shares to the other holders of A shares at RMB3.386
per share. The "EXHJITC1“ share warrants which were nct exercised on the date of expiry were
cancelled thereafier. Following the exercise cf such warrants, the total number of shares of the
Comgany remainec unchanged, comprising 3,989,901,910 A shares held by Anshan Iron and Steel
Group Complex*, 1,053,083,787 A shares held by the other A shareholders and 890,000,000 H
shares held by the = shareholde’s.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

During 2007, the Company issued rights shares on the basis of 2.2 rights shares for every 10
existing shares to all the shareholders of the Company. From 10 October to 16 October 2007, the
Company issued 1,106,022,150 rights shares to A shareholders of the Company at the price of
RMB15.4 per share, including issuance of 228,240,496 shares to halders of shares not subject to
trading moratorium and issuance of 877,781,654 shares to holders of shares subject to trading
moratorium. Such newly issued domestic rights shares were approved to be listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange cn 25 October 2007. From 22 October to 5 November 2007, the Company issued
195,800,000 H rights shares to H shareholders of the Company at a price of HK$15.91 per share
(equivalent to RMB15.4 per share according to the then exchange rate). Such newly issued H rights
shares were approved to be listed on the Hong Kong Stock Zxchange on 14 November 2007. Upcn
completior: of rights issue, the total number of shares of the Company amounted to 7,234,807,847
shares, of which 4,867,680,330 shares were held by Anshan Ircn and Steel Group Complex*,
1,281,327,517 shares were helo by other A shareholders ang 1,085,800,000 shares were held by H
shareholders.

The Company’s principal activities include production and sale of steel products such as hot rolled
sheets, cold rollec sheets, galvarized steel sheets, colour coat =g plates, silicon steel, medium and
thick plates, wire rods, heavy section and seamless steel pipes. These products are widely used
in industries such as automobile, censtruction, ship-building, home electrical appliances, raitway
construction and manufacture of pipelines. The Company's products are strongly competitive in the
domestic and foreign markets and .ts equipment .s of an advanced standard in the PRC.
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Corporate Profile contines

CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

] Legal Name of ihe Company

Chinese: BARGBERLE
English: ANGANG STEEL COMPANY LIMITED

Legal Representaiive of the Company Zhang Xiaogang

Secretery 10 the Board of the Company.  Fu Jihu:

Company Address: 1 Qianshan Road West,
Qianshan District, Anshan City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC
Telephone: 86-412-8417273 86-412-8419192
Fax: 86-412-6727772

Registered Adcress of the Company. Produciion Area of Angang Steal,
Te Xi Disinei, Arsha~ €
Liacning Province, ihie Pr

Postal Ccde: 114021
International Website of the Company:; http:./Avww .ansteel.com.cn
E-mail Address: ansteel@ansteel.com.cn

5 Lompany’s Anaual Repert Avalleble at Secretarial oifice of the Board

Website for Disclosure ¢f http /Avww .hkex.com.hk and
Information in Hong Kong: htip:#angang.wspr.ccm.hk
Website for Publication of Annual
Repor: designated by CSRC htip:/Mww cninfo.com.cn
Stock Exchange Listings: A shares: Sherzhen Stock Exchange
H shares: The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock Abbreviations: A shares: Angang Steel

H shares: Angang Steel
Stock Code: A shares: 000898
H shares: 0347
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Financial and Business Highlights of the Group

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Unit: RMB million
2009 2008

Before After Before After
2010 adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment

Turnover 92,212 70,057 70,057 78,985 78,985
Profit before tax 2,378 877 872 3,847 3,842
Inccme ax expense 413 166 165 854 853
Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company 2,054 752 748 2,993 2,989
Total assets 107,119 103,126 103,254 94,826 34,958
Total liabilities 51,790 49,469 49,469 41,855 41,855
Equity attributable to .

owners of the Company 54,052 52,291 52,419 52,971 3,103
Net assets per share (RM8) 147 7.23 7.24 7.32 7.34
Earnings cer share (bas:c) (RMB) 0.284 0.104 0.103 0.414 0.413
Return on net assets (%) 3.80 1.44 1.43 5.65 5.63

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES IN THE PRC (“PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Unit: RMB million

Items Amount
Operating profis: 2,253
Total profit: 2,358
Net profit: 1,950
Net profit attribuzable to shareholders of the Company: 2,039
Net profiit less extraordinary items attributable to

shareholders of the Company: - 1,960
Net cash flow gerierated from operating activities: 9,026
Investment income: 411
Net non-operating income and expenses: 105
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents: 1,409
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Financial and Business Highlights of the Group o

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES IN THE PRC ("PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

(continued)

Note: Extraorcinary items and amounts of the Group durirg the reporting period

No, Extraordinary Items Effect on profit
(RMB million)

1 Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets 4
2 Government subsidies (except for government subsidies which are

closely related to the coporae business and entitled ir. standard

amount or quantities in conformity with the uniform standa:ds of

the State) attributatle to gains or losses for the period 17
3 Other non-operating income and expenses apart from those stated above <16
4 Sut-tctal 105
S Effect of inccme tax -26
6 Total 79

Note: for extracrdinary items, “+* refer to gains or incomes, -~ refer to losses or expenditures.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER
THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND IFRSs:

Unit: RMB million

Attributable to shareholders
The Group of the Company
Net profit Net assets Net profit Net assets
Year ended Year ended
31 December At 31 December 31 December At 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Under IFRSs 1,965 707 55,329 53,785 2,054 748 54,052 52,419
Under PRC
Accounting Stangards 1,950 685 55,345 53,798 2,039 17 54,068 52,432
Items and total amount as ad,usted under the IFRSs:
Production safety expenses 20 29 20 29
Deferred income tax assets -5 8 -18 -13 -5 8 -18 -13
Interests in jointly
controlled enities 2 2
Total agjustments 15 2 -16 -13 15 21 -16 -13




FUBLIC [LE 27C

Angang Steel Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2010 .

Financial and Business Highlights of the Group oo

MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICES OF THE GROUP
FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS (PREPARED UNDER THE PRC ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS)
Unit: RMB million
Increase /
decrease (%)
compared 2008
with the Before After
Item 2010 2009 previous year  adjustment  adjustment
Operating revenue 92,431 70,126 31.81 79,616 79,616
Total profit 2,358 843 179.72 3,842 3,832
Net profit attributable to 2,039 727 180.47 2,989 298°

shareholders of the
listed company
Net profit less extraordinary items 1,960 688 184.88 3,016 3,008
aitributable to shareholders
of the listed company

Net cash flows from 9,026 4,549 98.42 11,938 11,938
ope-ating activities
Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.282 0.100 182.00 0.413 0.412
Diluted earnings pe- share (RMB) 0.282 0.100 182.00 0.413 0.412
Basic earnings per share less 0.271 0.095 185.26 0.417 0416
extracrdinary items (RMB5)
Return on net assets 7 1.39 Increased 5.63 5.61
(fully difuted) (%) oy 2.38
percentage
points
Return on net assets 3.83 1.38 Increased 5.57 5.55
(we:ghted average) (%) by 2.45
percentage
points
Return 01 net assets 3.63 1.31 Increased 5.68 5.66
(fully diluted) by 2.32
less extraordinary items (%) percentage
points
Reiurn on net asseis 3.68 1.30 Increased 5.62 .60
(weighted average) by 2.38
less extraordinary items (%) percentage
points
Net cash flows per share from 1.248 0.629 98.41 1.65 1.65

operating activities (RMB)
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MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICES OF THE GROUP
FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS (PREPARED UNDER THE PRC ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS) (continued)

Increase/
decrease as
compared
with the At the end of 2008
At the end At the end previous Before After
Item of 2010 of 2009 year  adjustment  adjustment
(%)
Total assets 105,114 100,987 4.09 92,179 92,184
Equity attributable to owners
of the listed company 54,068 52,432 3.12 63,103 53,108
Net assets per share
attributable to owners
of the listed company (RMB) 7.47 7.25 3.03 7.34 7.34
Share capital 7,235 7,235 - 7,235 7,235

RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE AS CALCULATED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "REGULATIONS FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF INFORMATION DISCLOSURE BY LISTED COMPANIES (NO.
9)” ISSUED BY CSRC:

Return on net assets (%) Earnings per share (RMB/share)
Welghted
Profit for the reporting period Fully diluted average Baslc Diluted

Net profit attributable to hclders of

ordinary shares of the Company .77 3.83 0.282 0.282
Net profit less extraordinary items

attributable to holders of

ordinary shares of the Company 3.63 3.68 0.271 0.271




C e e
L'L:L;.....Lv Lo

Angang Steel Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2010

e 213

dalis

10

Financial and Business Highlights of the Group commes

CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’' EQUITY DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD
(PREPARED UNDER THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Remrs

Share

Unit: RMB million

Equity attributebly to the sharsholders of the Bsted comgany
Total
Cplal Surphus Spaclal  Undistdduted Minority ~ shareholders’
v sy resives profit  Subtotal Iterest equity

A: the begia-iag cf the deriod
Ficease “or the perioé
Decrezse for the penos

At the exg 5i e perod

123

113

3130 i3 b4 10280 243 1,35 53,79
13 23 R 20:9 2231 29

2 i 847 661 8 )
33 35N n 1161 4,068 in 55,34

Reasons for changes

The increase in capital reserve was due to the increase of RMB13
million in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets anc
the decrease in capital reserve was due to the decrease of RMB2
million in other equity of joint venture

The increase in surplus reserves was due 1o the allocation of 10%
(RMB213 million) of profit after tax 1o surplus reserves.

The increase in special reserve was cue 1o the provisicn of RMB32
million of production safety expenses and the decrease of RMB12
million in production safety expenses incurred.

The increase in undistributed profit was due to net profit
attributable to the shareholders of the listed company of RMB2,039
rillion generated in 2010; the decrease in undistributec profits
was due to (i) the payment of RMB434 millicn as annual dividends
for 2009 ang (i) the allocation of RMB213 million o surplus
reserves.

The decrease in minority interests was attributable to the loss
of Tianjin Angang Tian Tie Cold Rolled Sheets Company Limited
("Angang Tian Tie"), a subsidiary of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement

On tehalf of the Board of Angang Steel Company Limited, | am pleased to present the annual

report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 and hereby extend my regards to all
the shareholders.

OPERATING RESULTS FOR 2010

Based on tre IFRSs, the Group recordec an annual profit attritutatle to owners of the Company
of RMB2,054 million for the year ended 31 December 2010, representing an increase of 174.60%
from the previous year, and its basic earnings per share was IM50.284.

Based on the PRC Accounting Standards, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to the
owneis cf the Company of RMB2,039 million for the year ended 31 December 2010, representing
an increase of 180.47% from the previous year, and its basic earnirgs per share was RMB0.282.
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OPERATING RESULTS FOR 2010 (continued)
PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

As audited and confirmed by RSM China Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership),
the net profit attributatble to the shareholders of the Company fcr year 2010 amounted to
RMB2,039 million and as at the year end of 2010, the profit available for distribution to the
snarenolders of the Ccmpany was RVB11,672 million under the PRC Acccunting Standards.
In accordance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the articles of association of the
Comgzany, the Board of the Company recommended a cash dividend of RMB0.15 per share (inclusive
of tax) for 2010 based on the Company’s total issued share capital of 7,234,807,847 shares as
of the date of this annual report. The proposal for distribtion is subject to the consideration by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting for the year 2010. Subject to the approval by the
sharerolders at the annual general meeting for the year 2010, the Company will, according to such
proposal, distribute the final dividend to the H shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of H shareholders of the Company at the close of business on Frioay, 29 April 2011.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China anZ the Detailed
Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
which came into effect on 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic enzerprise which pays dividend
10 a non-resident enterprise shareholder shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax at a rate
of 10% for such shareholder. As a result, the Company will withhold enterorise income tax on
the firal dividend for 2010 to be paid to non-resident enterprise shareholders (including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other groups and organizations) at a rate of 10% at
the time of distributing such dividend to the shareholders. The dividend after the deduction of such
withholcing tax will be RMBO.135 per H share of the Company (for reference oniy).

Distribution for the last three years

Net profit Proportion of

attributable to the amount of

shareholders cash dividend in

of the Distribution Amount of realized

Year Company proposal cash dividend net profit
(RMB million) (RM8 million)

2009 727 RMBO0.06 per share 434 59.70%

2008 2,981 RMBO.21 per share 1,519 50.96%

2007 7.525 RMBO.SS per share 3,979 52.88%

Total 11,233 — 5,932 52.81%

Note: The realized net profit of the Group have been adjusted in accordance with the prevailing requirements
under the PRC Accounting Standards.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

1. New accomplishments in production and operation

During the reporting period, the Group produced 22,125,000 tonnes of iron, 21,657,300
tonnes of steel and 20,872,800 tonnes of steel products, representing an increase of 7.87%,
7.91% and 9.86%, respectively, as compared with the previous year. Sales of steel prcducts
amounted 1o 20,693,000 tonnes, representing an increase of 11.14% as compared with the
previous year. The Group also realized a 99.14% production to sale ratio for steel products.

2. New achievements in energy saving and emission reduction

The Greup implemented 18 environmental protection projects, including the gas
desulphurization for Bayuquan series | sintering machine (A% BI% 5| M), west zche
series | sintering machine (@A IEF ML M), no.3 furnace sintering machine (= R M & #),
no.2 furnace s:ntering machine (ZRRELM) as well as the efflux wasiewater treatment
(M7 EIKRIB) of the heavy plate production line, with a planned investment of RVB319
million. The gas turbine combined circle power piant (CCPP) project of Bayuquan (1% R &
CCPPIB) and the coke dry quenching power generatfon (CDQ) oroject (BBEBRECOQEA)
had successfully passed the on-s te inspection.

A series 0 energy saving prejects, including the renovation of the boilers of power plants (%
B 5 8 BUR), the residual heat power generation project of No. 3 steef smelting plant
(R =MV U) the saturated steam power generation project of No. 2 steel smelting
plant (nertrern line) (Z4RBLAMRMK AH W), the sinterirg residual heat steam power
generation project at the west zone (7 T iR &R TR R) and the wastewater treatment
project of Xidagou (X855 /%x ZE A ) gradually have commenced operation and played
a role in energy conservation.

There was no environmental accident at or above grade Il for the year. The collection,
transportation and disposal mechanisms cf hazardous waste were further 1~proved with
disposal of waste grease being standardized. The Group achieved the best record on the
atmospheric pollutant emission rate, and the utilisation rate of recyclable solid wastes.

13
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

3.

Breakthroughs in scientific research innovation and new product
development

The Company have achieved a substantial breaktnrough in its three major series of steel
products for ruclear cowe: generation faciliies (%R A E). The Group attained 3 passing-
at-first inspection rate over 98% for its steel products used on the containment vessels of
nuclear reactors (¥ X M R M A 3), achieving a leading position ir the PRC. Tre series
of steel products used for nuclear island ({8 K5I E), namely 15MnNi, ZOMNDS and
SA-533, rave been Celivered and te Group is the first steel manufacturer in the PRC to
produce the 18BMNDE products for testing and evaluation. Moreover, the development of
steel procucts ‘or nuclear power conventional islands and ancillary facilities - SA-516, with a
width specification of 4,800mm, was the first of its kind in the PRC market. The 100m 60kg/
msteel rails used for cassenger dedicated railways with a speed of 350km have been used
on Shanghai-Hangzhou High-speed Railway, while high-speed heavy rails for vehicles with
a speed of 380 km/h have been successfully develcped and used on Beijing-Shanghai High-
speed Railway. Faving successfully developed and produced the steel rails with a weight of
60kg/m in compliance with the Australian s:andards, the Comgany succeeded in its first bulk
export of such products to Australia. The Cempany has passed the assessment of localization
(R & {5 ) by CNOOC and completed a small-scale trial production of the steel products
used on the first localzed seafloor pipeline in the PRC, namely, the X70(31.87%m) and
X65(30.2mm) series of steel products used on the seafloor pipeline steel (§E®&4:M) in
South China Sea (#%). The quality of the 7690 series of ultra-high strength steel usec on
hulls and marine engineering facilities (£t #8;8 ¥ T.58) developed by the Company complies
with the national standards. The Company is the first in the country to pass the certification
by shipping societies of such products ang thus having a leading position in the relevant
PRC market. The Q500gE series of steel producis have passed the technical examination
for 5COMPa-grade high sirength rail steel (3% HIMFBMEB) dy Ministry of Railway and
the Comgany is the first steel manufacturing enterprise in the PRC which has passed such
examination. The Group developed and produced new products of a total of 4.85 million
tonnes.and generated revenue of a total of RMB23.94 billion from such new products,
representing an increase of 5.2% and 25.7%, respectively, as compared with to the previous
year. The Group has also achieved the best-ever results in terms of both the quanity and
quality of the patents and technical know-how that it developed during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
4. Improvement in marketing

The Groug enhanced its management of marketing channels and targetec markets. The
Group actively seized the opportunities offered by the development of Bohai economic r~
which is encouraged by the PRC government and increased its market share in northern
regicns. Focusing on the strategic development of its principal croducts, namely, steel
products used on vehicles and home appliances, the Ccmpany stepped up its development
of direct-supply enterprise customers and products of importance for the Group's strategic
expansion. Tne Company ranked (i) the first in the PRC market in terms of its sales volume
of steel used on home appliances, ships and containers; and (i} the second in terms of its
sales volume of steel used on vehicles, The orders from direct-supply enterprise custorers
accounted for 53.01% of our total orders, representing an increase of 7.2 percentage points
as comparec w th the previous year.

The Compary actively participated in bid for key national projects and ras succeezed in bid
for various key national prjects in 2010, such as Petrochina Jinzhou - Zhengzhou oil pipeline
construction project (P EERM — WH A BRI I2), oil storage base projects of Sinopec
at Rizhao (3R, Caofeidian (WiC ) ard Cezi Island (T} F %), Sinochem International
Huizhuo project (% (L ER AR MM H B), CNOOC Dalian project and the energy storage station
project in Hohhot.

The Company proactively expanded its cverseas markets and enhanced iis international
operation, as the result, it has exported a :otal of 1,706,600 tonnes of steel products.

5. New progress in technological improvement projects and external
investment and cooperation

The Group has invested a total of AMBS.254 billion on fixed assets. The production line
for high-grade anc non-oriented silicon steel products (%A% &I E B H) in the western
district of Anshan has fully ramped up to its designed production capacity and achieved its
production targets. The Company has also had a capacity for sizeable production of the
orierited silicon steel products which were developed solely by the Company’s own research
and develocment team. Heat-loading testing has commenced on the wire rod procuction
lines which have been under overall renovation.

The Company established a wholly-owned subsidiary Angang Cold Rolled Steel Plate (Putian)
Co., Ltc. ("Angang Putian*), pursuant to its develooment strategy to expand its geographic
presence and extend its operation chain. The design of the main structures of the production
facilities of Angang Putian has been completed and orders for major machine and equipment
have placed. Currently, Angang Putian is underiaking civil engineering and rfrastructure
construction.

15
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

6.

Continuous improvement in corporate management

The Company introduced a result-griven management systems to streamline, optimize and
integrate all management procedures. In 2010, the Company passed the review by China
Association for Quality and was granted the “The 10th Quality Award of China* (B+/E2
)8 ¢ I

By taking full advantage of its budgetary control, keeping abreast of the market changes
and actively reviewing its profit outlook, the Company further optimized its product mix and
enhanced its resources allocation.

DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR 2011

1.

16

Iron and Steel Market Analysis and Opportunities and Challenges for the
Company’s Development

Looking into 2z01%, the Company will face both opportunities and challenges in its
development, both internally and externally.

From the pcsitive perspective, the global economy is expected to continue to resume growth
and the domestic economy will sustain a moderate momentum. Strong and sustainable
demand will provide room for the growth in the iron and steel industry. The promotion
and implementation of policies and measures relating to joint restructuring, elimiration
of obsolete production capacity, energy saving and emission reduction as well as industry
management standardization, will pave way for the steady growth of the steel industry and
market. from the internal perspect ve, the Company has made a substantive improvement
of technology and equipment upon the large-scale corporate modernization during period
of the “Eleventh Five-Year Plan”. The rapid improvement of the production and operation
efficiency ir the new district o¢ Bayuquan (R REEHFE) will fac litate tne integration of the
operaticns at both Anshan and Yingkcu, thus highlighting the effect of an extensive business
layout and complementary strengths.

From the negative perspective, the global economy is in a slow process of recovery with
fierce market competitions. As growth in steel product consumption slows down due tc
economy changes in China while the prices for raw materials and fuel remain high, the iron
and steel industry will encounter greater challenges.
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Chairman’s Statement ontines

DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR 2011 (continued)

2.

Operation plans of the Company for 2011

With achieving outstanding and efficient oerformance in mind, in 2011, the Company
aims at strengthening its business and will spare no effort in quality improvement, market
expansion and cost reduction, so as to become the most internationally competitive steel
manufacturer and to contribute to the prompt fulfillment of its new strategic targets.

(1) To strengthen overall management and control and achieve new brezkthrough in
production and operation.

(2)  To strengthen scientific researci in order 0 ach eve treacthrough from e~hancement:
of corporate innovation and core competitiveness.

(3) To enhance comprehensive marketing management so as to achieve record in
marketing results and higher service standards.

(4)  To strengthen energy saving and emissicn reduction to scale new heights in low-
carben technologies and green cevelopment,

(5)  To speed up the progress of capital projects in order 10 achieve breakthrough in the
level of equipment modernization.

(6) To embed its result-driven managemen: mode so as to further enhance the overal}
quality of the enterprise.

(7)  To expedite the development of the new district of Bayuguan and achieve new
breakthrough in the construction of role model plants.

17
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Chairman’s Statement comines

DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR 2011 (continued)

3.  Capital requirements, utilisation plan and funding sources of the Group for
2011

In 2011, the Group intends to earmark RMB7,737 willion for major construction projects
such as the safety, scientific research, the phase & renovation of energy-saving and
ervironme~tal orotection and chem:cal incustry (FIRzZRER R{r TrUBIBIE). tar capacity
expansion and corstruction of the new 3# slab casting machine.

In 2011, the Group’s capital requirements will be mainly financed by proceeds raised from
the short-term debentures, cash generated from cperating activ sies and bank loans.

Chairman
Zhang Xlaogang

Anshan City, the FRC
29 March 2011

18
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Movement in Share Capital and
Shareholders’ Profile

MOVEMENT IN SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2010, the shareholding structure of the Company was as follows:

Unit: Share
Befors the change Ingease/deceass After the dange
during the period during the parlod{+) during the perlod
hsoe ¢f
Numbe? Percsntage  new chares Others Sub-total Namber Percentage
(%) %)
L Sharessubectto
tradlng moratorhm 4,340902,843 6.00 - - = 43830260 60.00
1 Sate-twned shares 4340834729 60.00 - - — 430870 50.00
2. Sute-swoed kgal sescr snares - - - - - - -
3. Cihetdcmesicshaes 12.33% 300 - - - 7934 0.0¢
rdaeey shaes hek
by so=exc
Isgal pe-sons - - - - - - -
shaes hele
by:zmic
At persz: 1754 W0 - - - 17534 0.00
4, Foreign soares - - - - - - -
rducing shaes heid by owerseas
lagat perons - - - - - - -
shas b By pverseas
il sers==: - - - - - - -
L Shates not sbject to
trading moratorhum Qmn - - - 2893905204 £0.00
1. Renminki gy s-rres 1,608,108 234 Pk - - - 1,808,:05.204 uN
2. Damesxally bsiee foeign shaies - - - - - - -
3. Oversex: bsad forsgn
thares 1,085,300,000 15.01 - - —  1,083,800.000 15.01
4. Others - - - - - - -
B Tota shares 1,34 831,847 120,96 - - - 1234807847 100.00

During the reporting period, there was no change ir shares subject to trading moratorium.

19
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Movement in Share Capital and
Shareholders’ Profile comines

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS

1. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had a total of 209,849
shareholders, of which 565 were holders of H shares.

2. As at 31 December 2010, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were

as follows:

Details of shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders

Number of
shares held
subject to Number of
Nature of Percentage of  Total number trading  shares pledged/
Name of sharsholder sharsholder shareholdings  of shares held moratorium frozen
(%) (share) {share)
Anshan Iron and Holder of s:ate 6729  4,868547.330  4,34(,884,705 -
Sieel Group Complex* owned shares
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Holder of 1472 1,064,296,048 - Unknown
foreign shares
Chira Censtruct on Bank Otners .65 46,£85,337 - Urknows
— China In‘eenationa China
Advantage Securities
Imvesiment fund (B BRBT
— LERE-RREBHANEE)
Eank of China — Efunds Shenzhen Others 0.25 18,025,641 - Unknown
Siock Exchange 100 bndex
Open-Enced Securides
Investmen; fung (P RB1]
= 258A”I00R BN
AZRAPBHAREY)
LBS AG Otkers 0.23 16,360,642 - Unknown
Shanghai Pudzng Developrent Bank  Others 0.20 14,699,936 - Urknown
~ Securities lnvestrrent Fund of
Cranguin inli Trend Stock Fund
(ERAMBREST ~ RUER
AKRALBERRED)
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Movement in Share Capital and
Shareholders’ Profile wommen

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

2. As at 31 December 2010, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were
as follows: (continued) -

Detalls of shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders (continued)

Numbes of
shares held
sublect to Number of
Nature of Percentage of  Total number trading  shares pledged/
Name of shateholder shareholder shareholdings  of shares held moratortum frozen
' ) Gare) are)
hdusirial 3+ Comsmercial Others 020 14532914 - Uninown
Bank of Chiza — Rong Tong
Stenzhen Stock Exchange 100 Index
tvestment Furd (PR TH B
- RRARIOAKRRRAES)
KBC-Baoyng Pa:-Coastal Areas Growth  Others 0.18 13.372,885 - Unknown
Equity Securities Iwvestment fund
Inzernational Finance — HSBC Othess 0.16 11,584,517 - Unkriown
— IPMORGAN CHASE BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
DEUTSCHE BANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT  Othess 0.15 11,567,270 - Unknown

21
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Movement in Share Capital and
Shareholders’ Profile commes

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

2.

22

As at 31 December 2010, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were

as follows: (continued)

Sharaholdings of the top 10 shareholders not subject to trading moratorlum

Name of shareholder

Number of shares
held not subject to
trading moratorium
(share)

Cass of shares

HKSCC (Nominees) Limited

China Construction Bank— Crina International
China Advantage Securities Investment Fund
(PERRRT — LANBTEED
BHARER)

Bank of China — Efunds Shenzhen
Stock Exchange 1C0 Index Open-Ended
Securities Investment Fund (BT — B H 1
RE0Z UM AR ERRKZRED)

UBS AG

Shanghai Pudong Development Sank
— Securities Investment Fungd of Changxin Jinli
Trend Stock Fund (LB AR BRBTT
— EMESHABRRUBRRRES)
Industrial and Commercial 3ank of China
— Rong Tong Sherzhen Stock Exchange
100 Index Investment Fund {P & I B #H15
— BRRRI00EHERLRESR)
IC3C-Baoying Pan-Coastal Areas Growth
Equity Securities Investment Fund
International Finance ~ HSBC
— JPMORGAN CHASE BANK,
NATIONAL ASSCCIATION
DEUTSCHE BANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

AB Property & Casualty Insurance
— traditional insurance products

1,064,896,048

46,685,337

18,025,641

16,860,648

14,699,936

14,532,914

13,372,885

11,594,617

11,567,270

10,862,000

Qverseas listed
foreigr shares

Renminbi
ordinaty shares

Renminti
ordinary shares

Renminzi
ordinary shares
Renmin3i
ordinary shares

Renminbi
ordinary shares

Renminci
ordinary shares
Renmindi
ordinary shares

Renminbi
ordinary shares
Renminti
ordinary shares
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Shareholders’ Profile e

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

2. As at 31 December 2010, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were
as follows: (continued)

Shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders not subject to trading moratorlum (continued)

Explanations on the connected Anshan lron and Steel Group Complex*, the largest
relationship or concerted action sharehclder of the Company, has no relationshp with
among the shareholders any of the other top 10 shareholders of the Company
menticned acove or any of the top 10 sharehclders not subject to trading

moratorium. No: is Anshan Iror, and Steel Group Complex*
a party to any concerted action as provided in the
Procedures for the Administration of Informaticn Disclosure
for Change in Shareholdings of the Shareholders of Listed
Companies. The Company is not aware of any connected
relationshiz among other shareholders of the Company or
any parties acting in concert as provided in Frocedures for
the Administrat on of Information Diszlosure for Change in
Shareholdings of the Shareholders of Listed Ccmpanies.

3. Details of the controlling shareholder of the Company

The centrolling shareholder of the Company is Anshan lron and S:eel Group Complex*

Legal representative: Zhang Xiaogang
Date of incorporation: 1948
Scope of operation: Production of steel products, metal products (non-franchise), cast

iron tubes, metal structures, metal wire and products, sintering and
coking products, cement, power generation, metallurgical machinery
equipment and parts, electrical machinery, electricity <ransmissicn
and supply and control equipment and meters, mining of iron and
manganese ores, refractory earth and stone extraction.

Principal products: Steel pressing prcducts and metal products

Registered capital: RMB10,794 mitlion

Shareholding structure:  Wrolly-owned by the PRC

23
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Movement in Share Capital and
Shareholders’ Profile e

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

4.

Ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and its de
facto controller

The State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council

100%
A 4

Angang Holding

100%

Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*

67.29%

Angang Steel Company Limited

Interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company held by substantial shareholders and others

Save for disclosed below, as at 31 December 2010, no cther person (otrer than the
Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior management) kad any interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (*SFO”) (Chapter 571, the
Laws of Hong Kong):

Interest in ordinary shares of the Company

Percentage In
Number and Percentage  PercentageIn total issued

. dlass of in total total Issued domestic
Name of shareholder shares held  shara capital H shares shares Capacity
Anshan Iron and 4,868,547,330 67.29% - 79.18% Beneficial
Steel Group Complex* State-owned owner
shares
HKSCT (Nominees) Limited 1.064,896,048 14.72% 98.07% - Nominee
H shares
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Movement in Share Capital and
Shareholders' Profile e

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

6.  Trading moratorium on the former holders of non-tradable shares out of the
top 10 shareholders was as follows:

Unit: Share
Name of
shareholders Number of Number of
sublect to shares subject  Explry date shares released
trading to trading  of trading from trading
No. ( f I moratorium Trading moratotium

1 Anshan kron 4,340,884,709 1 fanuary 2011 4,340884,709 1. The shares held by Anshan Iron and Steel

ard Steel Group Complex* following the
Group completion of the Nos-tradable Share
Complex* Reform Plan will oe s.bject to a trading

moratorium of 3€ months f-om listing
date of such shares except for the
shares to be trans’erred to any hokders
of tradable ordinary domestic s=ares
upo- hisher exercise of the warrants;

2. On 23 February 2006, the Company issued
a toial of 2.97 biltion new circulating
A shares 10 Anshan Iron and Steel
Group Complex*. Such newly issued
shares were Cepositec to Ansha- Iren
and Steel Group Complex*s account
and are subject to a trading moratarim
of 36 months from the complesion of
the trans'er of such nevdy s ed shares
to Anshan [ron and Steel Grou
Complex*;

3. Anshan lron anc Steel Greup Complex*
shall mainteir: @ minimgm
of 60% sharehofz ng :n the Company
following the comgetion of
thi acquisition of 100% equity interest
in ANS till the end of 2010.

Note: 4,340,884,709 shares held by Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex* that were subject to
trading moratorium were released from trading moratorium on 7 January 2011.

25
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Summary of General Meeting

The Company convened the 2009 annua! general meeting on 18 June 2010, announcement of
resolutions in respect of which was cublished in China Securities Journal and Securities Times on 19
June 2010.

26
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Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xlaogang, aged 57, a professor-level senior engineer nolding a PHD degree in
engineering, is the Chairman of the Company and General Manager of Arsnan lron and Steel
Groap Complex*. Mr. Zhang has octained a bacrelor's degree from Wuhan University, 2 master's
degree from Northeastern University and a PhD degree from the Central Iron & Stee! Research
Institute. e has been working for Argang Holding over 30 years and has held various senior
management positens in Angang holding, including the Head of the Technology Department,
the Deputy Chef Engineer, Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex* and the General Manager of
ANSI and the Starding Deputy General Manager of Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*. He
is an alternate member of Seventeenth Cen:ral Committee of the Communist Party of China and
representatives of the Eleverth National “eople’s Congress. Mr. Zhang is an expert in metallurgical
industry with extensive knowledge n the development and innovat.on of metallurgical technology.
He was a member of the expert panel in the "State 863 and 973 Frojects”, Chairman of China
Iron and Steel Association, and was awarded the First Prize fcr Scientific and Tecknological Prog-ess
by the state. Mr. Zhang is currertly the Vice Chairman of World Steel Association (t+ R45i18
), @2 member of the expert panel of the Standardization Adminisiration of China, the Director
of the Steel Rolling Acacemic Committee and the Chairman of International Organization for
Standardization ISQ/PC17/SC17 and the Director of Low Alloy Steel Acaderic Cemmittee of The
Chinese Society for Metals.

Mr. Yang Hua, aged 49, is the Vice Chairman and the Secreary to the Party Committee of the
Comoany and an associate professor. Mr. Yang graduatez from tre Faculty of Philosophy of Peking
University with a master's degree in 1990: He joined Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex* in
the same year and has teen a Deputy Head of the Educaticn Division of Angang Pa-ty Scirool,
a Deputy Secreta’y to the Party Committee of Iron Smelting Plant and Half Continuous Rolling
Plant of Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex®, the Secretary to the Farty Commiitee of Iron
Smelting Plant of Angang *olding, the Head of Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*, Office, the
Assistant to General Manager of Anshan Ircn and Steel G-oup Complex*, the Secretary to the Party
Committee of the Cemeany, a Deputy Secretary to the Party Committee of Arsnan Iron and Steel
Group Complex* and the Secretary to the Farty Committee of ANSI.

Mr. Chen Ming, aged 50, is the Vice Chairman and General Manager of the Company and
a professor-level senior engineer. Mr. Chen graduated frcm Anshan Institute of Iron and Steel
Technclogy with a master's degree in iron and steel metallurgy. He has oeen working for Angarg
Holding for cver 20 years and has held various senior management positicns within his ter~
of off-ce, including the General ingineer 5¢ No. 3 Steel Plant of Angang, the Vice Cisector and
Director of No. 2 Steel Plant of Angang, a Deputy General Manager and the Head of Production
Depar:ment of ANSI, the Head of the Planning and Development Department of Angang, tre Head
of Strategic Development Departrent of Angang and the Deputy General Manager and Acting
General Manager of the Comgany.
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Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management conines

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wanyuan, aged 50 is a Director of the Company, the Deputy General Manager ¢f Anshan
Iron and Steel Groug Complex* and a orofessor-level senior accourtant. Mr. Yu jsined Anshan
Iron anc Steel Group Complex* in 1998. Mr. Yu graduated from Northeastern University with
a bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering. He studied at School of Economics of Xiamen
University in 1984. He obtained his second bachelor's degree in management engireering from
Northeastern University in 1990. Mr. Yu has held the positions as Deputy Director of Financial
Department of Northeastern University, the Accounting Director of Shenyang Xinji Real Estate
Development Company, Deputy Chief Accountant of Northeastern University, the Assistant to
General Manager, Deputy Chief Accountant, Chief Accountant and the Head of the Department of
Finance and Accounting of Anshan Iron ard Steel Group Complex*.

Mr. Fu Jihul, aged S9 is a Director, Secretary to the Board of the Company and a senior
accountant. Mr. Fu graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics with a master’s
degree in accounting. He joined Anshan lron and Steel Group Complex* in 1969 and has neld
various positions including the Deputy Manager of the Finance Department.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Shijun, aged 67, is an Independent Nor-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li currently
serves as a principal analyst of China Iron and Steel Asssciation, Deputy Secretary-General of the
Chinese Society for Metals. Mr. Li is a professor-level Senior Ingineer. He graduated from Beijing
Iron and Steel College with a bachelor’s degree. Mr. Li had been, among others, Deputy Director of
the Techrology Division of Ministry of Metallurgical I~dustry, Ceputy Cirector of the Planning and
Develcpment Division of the State Bureau of Metallurgical industry and Executive Deputy Secretary
General of China Iron and Steel Association.

Mr. Ma Guoglang, aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ma
is currently Vice President of Dongbei University of Finance and Economics, a professor and tutor
of doctorate candidates. He has obtained a master's degree from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics and a Ph.D degree from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. He is concurrently
an evaluation expert of the National Planning Office of Philosophy and Social Sciences, and Vice
Chairman of the Chinese Taxation Institute. Mr. Ma has served in Dongbei University of Firance
and Economy as a lecturer, the Deputy Head and Head of Taxation Department, tne Dear of the
Finance and Taxation School and the Assistant to the President of Dongbei University Finance and
Economics.
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Senior Management conmes

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Kwong Chl Kit, Victor, aged 44, is an Independent Ncn-executive Director of the Company.
He is currently the financial controller of Anwell Technologies Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Singapore Exchange Limited. He has aver 16 years of experience in the auditing,
accounting and financial managersient in the ccmmerce, manufaciuring and public administration
areas. Mr. Kweng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong has
obtained a bachelor's degree in Commerce from Curtin University of Technology in Australia. Mr.
Kwong is als¢ an independent director of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Hong Keng Stock Exchange, and Get Nice
Holdings Limited, a company also listed on the Hong Xong Stock Exchange.

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Wen Baoman, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company
and the Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party Committee of Anshan Iron and Steel Group
Complex*. Mr. Wen is also the President of the Angang Communist Party School, a member of
the Standing Commission of Anshan Municipal Committee of the Communis: Party of China and
a senior politician. Mr. Wen graduated with a bacheler's degree from Liaoning Provincial Party
School. Mr. Wen has been with Angang Holding for over 30 years and held various senicr positions
of Angang Holding, including the Secretary to the Commitiee cf the Communist Youth League of
Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*, the Head cf the Office of the Communis: Party Ccmmittee
of Angang Holding, the Vice Charman of the Labour Union of Anshan Iron and Steel Group
Complex*, the Head of Propaganda Department of the Communist Party Committee of Angang
Holding, a member of the Standing Committee of the Commurist Party of Angang Holding, the
Secretary to the Communist Party Cormittee of Angang Construction Compary* and the Cnairman
of the Labour Union of Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*.

Mr. Shan Mingyl. aged 57, is a Supervisor of the Company and the Chairman o¢ the Labour Union
of the Company ang a senior pelitician. M:. Shan graduated frcm the correspondence ed.cation
of Central Party’s School majoring in economics and management. He joined Anshan Iron and
Steel Group Complex* in 1969, and had been the Deputy Head and Head of the Organization
Depariment, Director of Human Resources Department, Deputy Secretary to the Party Committee
of Angang Machinery Manufactaring Co., Ltd., Vice Chairman of the Labour Union of A=snan Iron
and Steel Group Complex*, and Chairman of the Labour Union of ANSI.
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Senior Management coninuea

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (continued)
Supervisors. from staff representatives:

Mr. Xing Gulbln, aged £1, is a Supervisor, currently the secretary 0 a branc~ of the Party of the
Company in the continuous casting operation area. Mr. Xing graduated from Liaoning Gongyun
College with an associate degree. Mr. Xing joines Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex* in 1981
and served as a worker, Head and Chief of the Boiler Division, Deputy Director and Direcior of the
workshop, etc. He was recognized as a model worker in the naticnal metallurgical industry in 1994
and a national model worker in 1995. He was granted one of the national outstanding youths
award by the Communist Youth Party of the central government in 1996,

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT MEMBERS

Ms. Zhang Lifen, aged 46, is the Deputy General Marager of the Company and a senior engineer.
Ms. Zhang graduated from Uriversity of Science and Technology Beijing with a Master’s degree in
metallurgical materal engineering. Ms. Zhang jo.med Anshan Iron and Sieel Grouo Complex* in
1986 and has been the Assistant to Plant Manager, Deputy Piant Manager, Acting Plant Manager
and Plant Manager of Wire Rod Plant of Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*, the Deputy
General Manager and the Assistant 1o the General Manager of the Company.

Mr. Fu Wel, aged 51, is a Deputy General Manager of the Company and a senior engineer. Mr. Fu
graduated from University cf Science and Technclogy Seiji~g with a master's degree in Induszrial
Engineering. He joined Anshan Iron and Steel Groun Complex* in 1982 and held various positions
includirg the Assistant to the Plant Manager and Chairman of the Workers’ Union of Cold Rall
Plant Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex*, the Deputy Head and Head of Facility Division, and
Assistant 1o the Ceneral Manager of the Company.

Mr. Ma Lianyong, aged 49, is the Chief Aczountant of the Company and a professor level senior
accountant. Mr. Ma received a master's degree in industrial foreign trade and industrial accounting
from Beihang University and a master's degree in management engineering from Nertheastern
University. Mr. Ma joined Anshan iron"and Steel Group Complex* in 1984, and served as the Chief
Accountant of Angang Construction’s Comzlex Construction and Irstallation Corporaton and
Anshan Yinzuo Group Company Limited, the Deputy Head of Fund Division of Finance Department
of Angang Holding anc the Deguty Head of Finance Degartment of ANSI.
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Angang Steel Company Limited

Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2210,

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is @ major steel manufacturer in the PRC. Its principal business includes procuction
and sale of products including hot rolled products, cold rolled procucts, medium and thick plates
and other steel products. The domestic market share of the Comoany’s hot rolled sheets, cold
rolied sheets, galvanized sheets, silicon steel, medium and heavy plates, wire rods, heavy rails and
seamless steel pipes are 5.22%, 6.68%, 3.86%, 13.72%, B.04%, 0.76%, 13.51% and 1.33%,

respectively.

Principal business of the Group by industries and products (prepared in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Standards)

Unit: RMB million
Princlpal business by Industries
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
decrease of  decrease In  decrease In
operating operating  gross profit
revenue cost margin
compared compared compared
Operating Operating  Gross profit with the with previous with the
revenue cost margin prevlous year year previous year
(%) (%) (%)  (percentage
poirits)
Steel pressing
anc processing 92,212 82,486 10.55 31.62 29.62 1.38
Princlpal business by products
Hot rolled produc:s 27,23° 24,779 9.00 1.56 6.23 1.14
Ccld rolled products 38,726 31,88¢ 17.66 60.30 49.66 5.85
Medium and t~ick plates 15,008 14,857 1.01 44,24 $6.09 <751
Other steel products 7,769 7,042 9.36 334 8.21 4.07
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Report of the Directors onmes

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS (continued)

Note:

)]

2)

3)

4)

The increase in operat-ng revenue of hot rolled croducts was mainly due %o the increase in prcduct
prices; tne increase in operating cost was mainly attributable to the inzrease in prices of raw materials
ans fuels; the increase in gross prefit margin was mainly due to the rise in product prices.

The increase in operating revenue of ccld rolled products was primarily owing to i) the increase in
product pr-ces; i) the growth in sales volume of products; the increase in operating cost was mainly due
10 1) the expansion in products sales volume: 2) the rise in prices of raw matenials anc fuels, including
imported ore, alloy, scrap steel and coal; the increase n gross profit margin was mainly astributable to
increase in product prices anc adjustment to preduct mix.

The increase in operating revenue from medium ang trick plates was primarily due to the realization o
production capacity of the th ck plate production line of Bayuauan Branch, which resulted in the growth
in eroduction and sales volume; the increase in cperating cost was due 1o i) the growth in sales volume
of procucts; and ii) the increase in prices of raw materials a~d fuels, including imported ore, alloy, scrap
steel and coal; the decrease in gress profit margin was primarily due to the fall in prices of weld ng anc
the thick glate products for export.

The increase in operating reveriue of other steel procucts was primarily owing to the rise i~ product
prices; the increase i~ operating cost was primarily owing to the increase in prices of raw mater-als; the
decrease r gress profit margin was primarily owing to the more signficant increase ' cost than tha: in
product price of heavy section procucts,
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS (continued)

Segmental information of operating revenue of the Group by geographical

locations of sales (prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards)

Operating Revenue

Unit: RMB million

Increase/decrease in
operating revenue
compared with the

previous year

(%)
Noriheast China 33,647 40.17%
North China 12,122 9.33%
East China 21,176 19.11%
South China 14,714 29.37%
Central south China 1,556 25.99%
Northwest China 996 44.35%
Southwest China . 390 -12.75%
Export sales 7,830 123.14%
Total 92,431 31.81%

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 June 2010, the Compary convened its 2009 annual general meeting in Anshan, at whch
the 2009 profit distribution plan was considered and approved. It was resolved o distribute a cash
dividend of RMBO.6 per 10 shares based on the tctal share capital of 7,234,807,847 shares for
year 2009. On 30 Jurie 2010, the Company distributed cash dividends to holders of H shares. The
applicable exchange rate was the average of the basic exchange rate of Senminbi and Heng Kong
dollar announced by the Bank of China one calendar wee prior to the holding of the general
meeting, being HK$100 to RMBS87.645. The cash dividends actually paid to holders of H shares was
HK$74 million. On 30 June 2010, the Company distributed cash dividends to holders of circulating
A shares and state-owned shares, totaling RMB369 million. The cash dividends for 2009 distributed

by the Company were 3MS434 million in total.
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SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2010, effective interests in the Company's issued share capital held by Directors,
Supervisors and senior managemert were as follows:

Number of Humber of
Termsof sharesheld asat  shares held a5 at Reason of
Name Posttion Gender Age appointment 1 lanuary 2010 31 Decamber 2010 Change
{Share) Share)
Crarras Vile 1) 2003.05-presen: 0 0 -
Vice Crairan Nile 49 2003 05-present 1] 0 -
Vice Charman Msle S0 2005.06-present 510 610
General Ma-ager 210.12-present
Yo Warguz ety Wake S0 H03.05-present 16317 1637 -
ke Directar, Secesay Male 3 2005.06-resent 8582 £540 -
1o the Soerd
hZezencent Noa-excuine Male 67 2005.05-sresent 0 0 -
Srely:
MG Gooqang Irdecentent Noneexecutve Mile g 2006.06-cresert ¢ ¢ -
Dece
Kwong Chi K, Fde: R Male 4 2008 05-zresen: 0 0 -
vicer
Wen 3zeman Crazran ¢’ e Vil 50 2009 06-creser: ¢ S -
Suoervsory Commitiee
Shin Vivgyl Sugenviscr Wil 5 2009.05-cresens S SiM -
Xig Guitn Supenviser Wile H] 2009.05-presans 0 0 -
Thing Ui Depuy Ceresat Manzger ‘erale 4% 2009.11-cresens [ ¢ -
S W Deoty Cere:al Manige' Wale 31 2000082 esent 1531 53N -
My aryzeg sigf Acouriant Wale 49 2002.03-resent 0 4 -

Notes: All the shares mentioned above are A shares of the Company. Such shares were held by the persons
mentioned above in the capacity of individual beneficial owner except for Mr. Chen Ming, Mr. Yu
Wanyuan and Mr. Shan Mirgyi in the capacity o family interest (held by his spouse).
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY HELD BY DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, nore of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management cf the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its asscciated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the $FO) which were recorded in the register required 10 be kept under Section 352 of tne
SFO, or which were notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix 10 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

POSITIONS HELD BY DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IN THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

1. Mr. Zhang Xiaogang, Chairman of the Ccmpany, has served as the General Manager of
Anshan Iron and Steel Groug Complex* since January 2007.

2. M:. Yu Wanyuan, Director of the Company, has served as the Deputy General Manager of
Anshan iron and Steel Group Complex* since December 2001.

3. Mr. Wen Baoman, Chairmar of the Supervisory Committee of the Comgany, has served as
the Deputy Secreta'y of Party Committee of Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex* since
May 2005.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of each of the Directors, Supervisors and Serior Management was proposed
by the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee under the Board and the Supervisory Committee
respectively. Such remuneration has been approved upon discussion by the Board and the
Supervisory Committee, and proposed for aoproval by the shareholders at the general meeting.
Such remuneration was determined according to the business performance of the Company and
the remuneration offered by comparable enterprises in the PRC.

Total
remuneration Whether receiving
recelved from remuneration
the Company from the

during the shareholders of the
reporting perlod Company or other

Name Position (Inclusive of tax) assoclated entitles
(RMB0°000)
Zhang Xiaogang Chairman ] Yes
Yang Hua Vice Chairman 42.3 No
Chen Ming Vice Chairman, 40.3 No
General Manager
Yu Wanyuan Director 0 Yes
fFu Jihui Director, Secretary to 36.6 No
the 2oard
L Shijun Independent 9.0 \o
Non-executive Director
Ma Guogiang Independent 9.0 No
Non-executive Director
Kwong Chi Kit, Independent 9.0 No
Victor Non-executive Directer
Wen Baoman Chairman of the o] Yes
Supervisory Committee
Shan Mingyi Supervisor 37.3 No
Xing Guibin Supervisor 15.6 No
Zhang Lifen Deputy General Manager 35.6 No
Fu Wei Deputy General Manager 37.4 - No
Ma tianyong Chief Accountant 37.2 No
" Total — 309.3 —

Note: The iotal remuneration above did not include the Company’s coniribution to retirement schemes and
other welfare funds.
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RESIGNATION, APPOINTMENT OR DISMISSAL OF THE COMPANY'S
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT DURING THE

REPORTING PERIOD

1. The *2th meeting of the fifth session of the 20ard was convened on 21 June 2010, at which
the resignation of Mr. Liu Wei as tne independert non-executive director of the Company

was passed.

2. The 17t~ meeting of the fifth session of the Board was convened on 29 December 2010,
at which the resignation of Mr. Chen Ming as the actirg general manager of the Company,
and the appointment of him as the deputy general manager of the Company were passed.

OPERATIONS AND RESULTS OF THE MAJOR CONTROLLED COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURES (PREPARED UNDER THE PRC ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS)
Net profit
Totd assees as for the year
Name of controBed company Registered  at 31 December ended 31
No. of jolnt venture Shareholding  Major products of servites apil 210 December 201
(M3 mifien) MR )
1 Argang S’ Legsies Wurer) 0% Fraoucton, sxessng widlessle 1 WY lier 4] -
Comnry J-iue reiz 25 rass 0° stael ° relevan grocues
i A=jirg Potan 0% Feox real ol og soocess, oenczon of Wi mlice i £
sieel o coproducts a-d -epcd
i, s'es ang procesiing of sieel poducty
and relatec sevees
3 Argarg Tigr e S3% St 1oling 200 processay, pIocoie, W30~ Bor 3758 -m
cracessang a~d sales of coid “olles sheels,
Gava e shee 176 (oliu’ 2caied 1hets,
meadgy equpT et ichualogy sy
“echnolagical samvee (el 4G
iemes 3es) ~2on ind ppor 2cihess
4 ANSCTXS Gibainig Ce, e, SCH  Procucton of oz bet 2id galansed siael US132 mbor s s
{ANCTES") croders axg alyes el plre 9%
Sirp procucs, sait of self-siod xied procuzs
and v o wiarazies eves
S ANSCDazhean, -eavy Induistes K% Procesring of seel producs, ad mawliuing,  WSIR0 s fSon 1,550 n
Dalan Sreel roduct Arocess g oad datisic™ an6 s of stawciutd sizel
D> buton Comoiny L~ ted .
£ Thargenan FAV Sieel Proxessing X Pocisiing ad oraducton of seel productsad AMES mber m b2
v Derbuo- (o, Ld 11 eI
! ANSCTCS Crangeran Sedl % Pioducton, proceis, sakes secvce: of D12 m o k1) 3

logste: Ce, 4.

swelprodacs, stzel servaes
LS 2nd ofhe’ re'es
CQrmenw 2TV

In particular, the impact of ANSC-TKS on the net profit of the Company for 2010 reached more
than 10%. The operating income of ANSC-TKS in 2010 amounted to RMB4,394 million and the

operating profit amounted to RMBS62 miltion.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The total amount of purchase from the Company’s five largest suppliers was RMB41,557 million,
representing 55.12% of the Company's total purchase for the year, 24.73% of which was
attributable to the Compary’s largest supolier. The sales to the Company’s five largest customers
aggregated to RMB23,710 million, representing 23.54% of the Company's total turnover for the
year and the largest customer accounted for 8.41%.

Except for those disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directars, Supervisors and their
associates nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors hold 5% or more of the
shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the aforementicned sucpliers or customers of
the Company during 2010.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Mr. Xwong Chi Kit, Victor, an Independent Director of the Company who has been a Director since
18 Septemter 2009, entered into a service cont-act with the Company starting from 18 September
2009. Other Directors and Supervisors have entered into service contracts with a term of three
years starting from 12 June 2009. All Directors and Supervisors’ contracts of the Company shall
expire upon the election of Directors of the sixth session of the Board at the 2011 Annual General
Meeting. No Director or Supervisor has entered into any service contract with tne Company which
may be terminated by the Company within one year and compensation shall be paid other than
statutory compensation,

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the recorting period, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of
its subsidizries of its securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
In accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the laws of the PRC, no

pre-emptive rights exist to require the Company 0 offer new shares to the existing shareholders in
proport on to their shareholcings.

DIRECTORS® AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

In 2010, none of the Cirectors or Supervisors of the Company had any material interests in any
contracts in which the Company, or the holding companies or any of its subsidiaries were involved.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes in the prozerty, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs on pages 243 to 245 of *his annual report.

OPERATING RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 3* December 201G and its firancial position as at
that date are set out in the financial statements prepared in accordance with I7RSs included in this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in share capital during the year are set out in note 26 tc the financial statements prepared
in accordance with IFRSs on pages 255 to 257 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Changes in the reserves during the year are set ot in note 28 to financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRSs on pages 258 to 259 of this annual repari.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the empioyee retirement scheme of the Company ave se: out in note 34 to financial
stateents prepared in accordance with IFRSs on page 267 of this annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of continuing connected transactions for the year are set cut on pages 71 to 78 of this
annual report.

FHVE-YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the resits and statement of financial positior of the Company for the past five years
are set out on pages 277 to 278 of this report.

CHAPTER 13 DISCLOSURE

Tre Directors corfirmed that there was no matter cccurring in 2010 which would have given
rise 10 a disclosure requirement Lnder Rules 13.13 10 13.19 of the Heng Kong Listing Rules. Tre
Company’s centrolling s~areholder did not pledge any of its shares in the Company to secure any
debts, guaranees or other support cf obligatiors of the Company, nor did the Cempany sign loan
agreements imgosing specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholders.
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC SHAREHOLDINGS

According to the information obtained by the Company through public channels, and so far as the
Directors are aware of as at the latest practical date before the publishing of this annual report,
the Company has been maintaining sufficient public shareholdings to comply with the Listing Rules
during the year.

AUDITORS

RSM Nelsor Wheeler (Ce-tified Publ:c Accountants in Hong Kong} ard RSM China Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (Registered Accountants in the PRC) were appointed as
the Comcany’s international and domestic auditors respectively in 2010.

A resolution for the appointment of RSM China Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) and RSV Nelson Wheeler as the Company's domestic and international auditors,

respectively, for 2011 will be croposed at the 2010 Annual General Meeting to be held on 30 May
2011,

WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD
The Board meetings during the reporting period

1. The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 8th meeting on 20 January
2010, at which the resclution in relation to the capital increase in favour of WISDRI
Engineering and Research Incorporation Limited was considered and appreved.

2. The ffth sessio~ of the Board of the Company convened the 9th meeting on 29 January
2010, announcement of resolutions in respect of which was gublished in China Securities
Journal and Securities Times on 39 january 2010.

3. The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 10th meeting on 19 April 2010,
announcerrent of resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities Journal
and Securities Times on 20 April 2010.

4. The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened tre 11th meeting on 29 April
2010, at which the first quarterly report of the Company for 2010 and its summary were
considered and approved.

5. The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 12th meeting on 21 June 2010,
announcerent of resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities Journal
and Securities Times on 22 June 201C.
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WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD (continued)

The Board meetings during the reporting period (continued)

6. The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 13th meeting on 11 August
2010, announcement of resolutions in respect of whick was published in Crina Securities
Journal and Securities Tires on 12 August 2010.

7. The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 14th meeting on 17 August
20°0, at which 2010 Interim Report was cons cered and approved.

8. The fifth session of the Socard of the Company ccrvened the 15th meeting on 23 October
2010, at which the third quarterly report of the Company for 2010 and its summary were
considered and approved.

9, The fifth sessior of the Board of the Corrpany converec the 16th reeting on 29 Decerber
2070, at which the proposals in relation to tre Comoany’s investment in Dalian Shipping
Heavy Industry Greup Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (KSR AR T SRE M TIRA R 2 5)) and the
Company’s investment in Dalian Shipbuilding Group Steel Industry Cc., Ltd. (KilliE ¥ G R E
R 2 3)) were considered and azproved.

10.  The ‘ifth session of the Board cf the Company convenez the 17th meeting on 30 December
2010, announcemert of resolutions in respect cf which was published in China Securities
Journal anc Securities T mes o~ 31 Decembzer 20°0.

Execution of the resolutions passed at general meetings by the Board

On 18 june 2010, the Company ccnvened its 2089 annual general meeting in Anshan, at wh ch
the 2009 profit distributior plan was considered and approved. It was resclved to distr bute a cash
dividend of RM30.6 per 10 snares based on the tctal share capital of 7,234,807,847 shares. Cn 30
Jure 2010, the Compary distributed cash dividends to holcers of ~ shares. The applicable exchange
rate was the average of the tasic exchange rate of Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar an~ounced by
the Bank of China one calendar week prior to the Roldirg cf the gereral shareholder meeting for
that year, being HK$100 to RMB87.645. The cash d.vidends actually paiz to holders of H shares was
HK$74 millicn. On 30 June 2010, the Compary distributed cash dividerds to holders of circulating
A s~ares and state-owned shares; in a total amount ¢f RMB369 million. The cash dividend ‘or 2009
distributed by the Company was RMB434 mllion in total.

Performance of duties of the audit committee under the Board

For perfermance of duties by the audit committee, please refer to the content concerning the audit
committee in Corporate Gevernance Report as se: out in nage 65 of this repert.
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WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD (continued)

Performance of duties of remuneration and evaluation committee under the board

Please refer to the content concerning Remuneration and Zvaluation Committee in Corporate
Governance Report as set cut in page 63 of this report.

Implementation of the management system on insider information holders (“R %

mAEmR . ATANK")

During the repcrting period, the Company implemented the management system on insider
information rolders with strict compliance, and no insider infcrmation holder was found wsing
insider infcrmation before the disclosure of material and sensitive information that will affect the
shares prices of the Company to deal in the Company’s shares.

Responsibility of internal control and working plans

it is the respensibility of the Board of the Company to establish a zomplete and comprehensive
inte'nal control system w th effective implementauon.,

For the sake of effective imple~entation of the two standardizations under tre internal control
system for 2011, the Company will ensure the consisten: implementation of complementary
guidelines (At Z# 31) through inspecting the existing management standard of internal control and
complyirg with its requirements, and will refine the following working plans on internal control
management system:

1.  Working plans for establishment of internal control
Stage 1 (to be completed before 31 :uly 2011)

(1) Orgarize various departments of the Company for understanding and learning of
Application Guidelines for Internal Control of Enterprise ({2 3 /831 ™I R A #31))
and the implementation of department functions. According to the requirements of
application guidelines, the Company will amend those incompliance of the existing
internal control management system. Meanwhile, the Company will reconfirm the
standardized implementation scope under internal control which covers various
business flows of the Comgany and the subsidiaries, streamline the inherent risks
thereof, and confirm and determi=e the risk inventory;

(2)  Engage an external auditing firm or ccnsultancy firm,
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WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD (continued)

Responsibility in internal control and working plans (continued)

1.

Working plans of internal control building (continued)
Stage 2 {to be completed before 31 October 2011):

The Compary will prefect the internal control system n accordance w'th the Company’s
actual situation together with the specifications and requirements of its internal control:

(1) tc engage external institutions to conduct evaluation in respect of the establishment of
the Company’s internal control system and to formulate reform proposal for internal
control syster in light of the faults discovered;

(2) 10 put into practice the reform proposal, including the adjusiment of organizational
structure and procedures (if applicable), amendmen:s to policies and syste~s and
deployment of staff;

(3) toinspect the results of reform;

(4)  to disclose the actual work implemen:aticn of internal control.

Working plan of self-evaluation on internal control

The Company plans to complete the work of self-evaluation by the end of 2011:

(1) 1o prepare the working plan of self-evaluation, determine the subsidiaries and business
flows to be included in the self-evaluation and confirm the specific schedule and staff
assignment for the evaluaticn work;

(2) 1o resolve the standards for evaluatior on the faults of internal control and to conduct
comparative analysis in accordance with the qual:ative criteria and quantitative

criteria;

(3)  to conduct systematic evaluation on the operation of the Company’s irternal control
system;

(4) to find out and evaluate the faults discovered in the operation of Company’s internal
control system as well as to prepare a summary of fault evaluation. Meanwhile, the
Company wl propose reform suggestion, prepare the list of reforms and classify faults
into general defects, significant defects and material defects according to the severity;

(5)  to prepare the self-evaluation repo-t of internal control anc tirely disclose as required.
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WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD (continued)

Responsibility in internal control and working plans (continued)
Il Audit working plan on internal control

The Company plans to complete the audit work of internal contro! cefore the disclssure of
the 2011 annual report and disclose the a.dit repor: of interral control under requirements:

(1) to determine the auditing firm for internal control by the end of June 2011;

(2)  to complete the audit work of internal control before the disclosure of 2011 annual
report;

(3)  to disclose the self-evaluation report and the audit report of internal control when the
2011 annual report is disclosed.

By order of the Board
Zhang Xiaogang
Chairman

29 March 201
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

During the year, members of the Supervisory Committee have duly fulfilled their duties in
accordance with the Company Law and the articles of association of the Company in order to
protect the lawful interests of the Company anc its shareholders.

(] Members of The Supervisory Committee atterded one general meeting and four Board
meetings of the Company as non-voting participants and convened four supervisory
meetings. The Supervisory Committee has given independent opinions and recommendations
on the basis of their full knowledge of the Company’'s major production and operation
decisions and implementation process.

1. The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 4tk meeting on 19
Acril 2010, at which the following resolutions were corsidered and approved:

(1) To approve the Company's 2009 Annual Report and its summary;

(2)  To approve the Work Report of the Supervisory Cormittee of the Company for
2009;

(3)  To approve the Proposed Remuneration for Supervisors of the Company for
2009;

(4)  To approve the Self-evaluation Report on Internal Control of the Company for
2009.

2. The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company ccnvened the Stk meeting on 29
April 2010, at which the 2010 First Quarterly Report of the Company and its summary
were considered and approved.

3. The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company cenvened the 6t~ meeting cn 17
August 2010, at which the 2010 Interim Repor: of the Corpany and its summary
were considered and approved.

4. The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 7th meeting on 29
October 2010, at which the 2010 Thirg Quarterly Report of the Comzany and its
summary were considered and approved.

()} In 2010, the Supervisory Committee of the Company also monitored the Company’s
operations to ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Company Law, and the articles of association of tne Company. It examined the connected
transactions entered into between the Company and Anshan fron and Steel Group Complex*
and reviewed the relevant information in order 10 ensure the fairness of such transactions.
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Report of the Supervisdry Committee comnves

The Supervisory Cornmittee had given independent opinions on the following issues:

1.

During the year, the Company's operations had complied with all relevani laws and
regulations and no violation of regulations had occurred. The Company has comprehensive
internal control system and tne decision making procedures of the Company complied witn
applicable laws and regulations.

cne of the Directors and senior managerent of the Company had violated any laws or
regulations or the articles of association of the Company when performing their duties or
had otherwise acted in a manner which infringed upon the interests of the Company.

The Company’s financial report truly reflected the Co~pany’s financial position and operating
results.

The Company’s actual investment projects financed by the latest raised proceeds were in line
with the projects undertaken.

The acquisitions of assets were carried out by the Company at reasonable prices and there
was no insider dealing or any damage to part of the shareholders' interests or any loss to the
Ccmpany’s assets.

During the year, rcutine continuing connected transactions and other connected transactions
were conductec on a fair basis in the Compary’s production and cperation. There was no
insider dealing and the interests of the Company were not adversely affected.

On behalf cf the Supervisory Committee
Wen Baoman
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

29 March 2011
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Challenged with the fierce competitions in the iron and steel indus:ry during 2010, all of the sta‘f
of the Company enceavored to put the grinciple of “ensuring the siable operation, maintaining the
production capacity, improving all-round indicators as well as reducing the ¢osts and increasing the
efficiency” into practices through jcint and ccncerted efforts, thus keeping a solid momentum in
production and operation with progress in all aspects.

Operating results

Based on the IFRSs, the Group recorded the annual profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB2,054 million ‘or the year endec 31 December 2010, representing an increase of 174.60% as
compared with the previous year, and its basic earnings per share was RMB0.284.

Based on the PRC Accounting Standards, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company of RMB2,039 million for the year ended 31 December 2010,
representi~g an increase of 180.47% as compared with the previous year, and its basic earnings
per share was RMB0.282.

Analysis on the Group’s Financial and Operational Status

Prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards Unit: RMB million
Item 2010 2009 Change
(%)
Total assets 105,114 100,987 4,09
Non-current liabilities 13,369 11,702 14,25
Shareholders’ equity 55,345 53,798 2.88
Operating revenue 92.431 70,126 31.81
Profit from operations 2,253 789 185.55
Net profit 1,950 686 184,26
Net ircrease in cash and
cash equivalents 1,409 -732 292.49
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Analysis on the Group’s Financial and Operational Status (continued)

Prepared under the IFRSs Unit: RMB million
Reason
Item 2010 2009 Change for change
(%)

Total assets 107,119 103,254 3.74 A
Non-current liabilities 13,308 11,641 14.32 8
Equity attributable to

owners cf the Company 54,052 52,419 3.12 C
Turrover 92,212 70,057 31.62 ]
Gross profit 6,518 4,153 56.95 o]

Profit for the year

atiributable to owners

of the Company 2,054 748 174.60 0
Net increase in deposits

with banks, cash and

cash equivalents 1,409 =732 292.49 E

Notes:

A, The increase of R\VB3.865 million in total assets as compared w.th the end of the previous year was
mainly attributable to (1) the increase of the net profit of the Company; and (2) the issuance of shan-
term debentures by the Company.

B. The increase of IMBt,667 million in non-current liabilities as compared with the ens of the previous
year was mainly attributable to (1) the increase of the Company’s long-term borrowings; and (2) the
increase in assets-related government subsidies for the year received by the Company.

C. The increase of RM81,633 mflion in equity atiributabie to owners of the Company as compared with
the eng of the previous year was mainly attributable to (1) the increase of RMS1,387 million in retained
profits (in which, the net profit attributable to owners of the Compary has increased by RMB2,054
millicn in the year; the paymen: of t~e dividends for 2C09 has reduced by RMB434 million; the
withdrawal of surplus reserve for transfer of reserve has reduced by RMB213 million and the transfer of
reserve for the provision of safety production expenses has reduced by RM320 million); (2) the increase
of RMB246 million in reserves (in which, the provision of surplus reserve accounted at 10% of the profit
after tax has increased by ’MB213 million, the special reserve for the provision ¢f safety production
expenses has increased by RMB20 million and the changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets has Increased by RM813 million).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Analysis on the Group’s Financial and Operational Status (continued)

Notes: (continued)

D.

The increase of turnover, gross profit and the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was mainly attributable to (1) the increase in the product price; {2) the Company’s efforts in enhancing
the adjustment over the product structute and improving the production and sales volume of highly-
effective products given the improvement in the steel product market, and (3) the reinforced measures
in reducirg costs and improving efficiency to sutstantially cu: down the costs cf procedures in resconse
to the adverse impact from the hike of price of raw materials and fuel.

The net Increase cf RMB2,141 million in deposits with banks, cash and cash equivalents as compared
with the prev-ous year was malnly attributable to (1) an increase of RMB4,479 million ir net cash inflow
from operatirg activities as compared with the previous year arising from the increase in net profit and
operating payables; (2) a decrease cf RMB44S million in net cast outflow from investing activities as
compared with the previous year due to a reduction in the acquisition of fixes assets and expenditures
of construction in progress; and (3) the increase of RMB2,783 million in net cash outflow from financing
activities as compared with the previous year due to the larger amount of cash payments for borr*wmgs
as compared with the cash received from berrewings for the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Changes in financial figures including the Group’s assets and expenses

Prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards Unit: RMB million
titrease/decrease
of percentage in

total assets &

at the end of

the year &5

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 compared with

As a percentage As a percentage in the end of the

Rem of Balance Sheet Amount in total assets AmoLnt total assets prev ous year
% % (percentage points)

Cash at basks and on hand 3651 14 224 2R 1.25

Frepayments 8,380 197 6,212 6.15 1.8

Censtruction in progress S,211 5.02 10,588 1048 <546

Censtruction materials 1,047 1.00 2334 3 1.3

3ls payables 4819 464 3509 348 147

Accounts payables 4,683 44 3318 33 1.7

Oiner cument liatiities 3,023 288 L] 004 284

Other non-current liazilites 591 0.5 139 0.14 042

Notes: In preparing fina=cial statements of the Group, its assets were measued at historical cost but the
available-for-sale finarcial assets were measured at fair value upon initial recognition.

1) The increase of RMB1,409 million in cash at banks and on hand as comdared with the end of the
previous year was mainly attributable to (1) the net cash inflow of 3MB9,026 million from the
Company's operating activities. (2) the net casn autflow of RM34,750 million from investing activities
such as the acquisition of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets; and (3) the net cash
outflow of RMB2.8€7 million from financing activities such as repayment of debts.

2) The increase of RMB2,168 millizn in prepayments as coTparec with the end of the previous year was
mainly attributable to the increase in prepayments for imported *aw materials and fuel and the payment
for domestic procurements driven by the expansion of production capacity and the rising costs of raw
materials and fuel.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Changes in financial figures including the Group’s assets and expenses (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3)

4)

S)

6)

7

8)

The decrease of RVB5,311 mill:on in expenditures of construction In progress as compared with the en¢
of the previous year was mainly attributable to the transfer from construction in progress to fixed assets
afier completion ¢f Bayuquan, Tian Tie and silicon steel projects. ’

The decrease of RMB1,287 million in corstruction materials as compared with the end of the previous
year was mainly attributable to the consumption by const-uction projects.

The increase of RMB1,370 million in bills payatles as compared with the end of the grevious year was
mainly contributable tc the increase in the precurement expenses driven by the expansion of production
and sales volumes and the increase in prices of raw mazerials and fuel.

The increase of RMB*,365 million in accounts cayables as compared with the end of the previous
year was mainly attributable to the increase of tne procurement expenses driven by the expansion of
production and sales volume and the increase in prices of raw matesials and ‘uel.

The increase of RMB2,981 millicn in ather current liabilities as compared with the erd of the previous
year was mainly attributable to the issuance of short-cerm debentures of RM33,000 million during the
year by the Company.

The increase of RMB452 million in cther non-current liabil ties as compared with the end of the previous
year was mainly attributable ‘o the increase of assets-related government subsicies received by the
Comgany for the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Changes in financial figures including the Group’s assets and expenses (continued)

Prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards Unit: RMB million

Increase (+)/
decrease (-)

from the
item of Income Statement 2010 2009  previous year
%
Selling expenses 1,622 1,081 50.05
Administrative expenses 3,441 2,962 16.17
Financial expenses 1,249 902 38.47
Income tax experse 408 157 159.87
Notes:
1) The increase of RMB541 millicn in selling expenses as compared with the previous year was mainly

attributable to (1) the increase of sales volume of products; (2) the increase in package expenses due
to tne increase in sales volume and packaging materials costs; (3) the increase in expcrt trarsporiation
expenses, expcrt operation fees and consigned sale handling charge due to the increased export
volume; (4) the increase in railway, seaway and highway transportation expenses due to the increased
CIF settlement amounts and transportation fees; and (S) the increase of IMB37 million in seiling

expenses arising from the consolidation of financial statements of Angang Tian T e for the year.

2) The increase of RMB479 million In administrative expenses as compared with the previous year was
primarily attributable to (1) the increase in, among others, the repairing costs, tax expenses, assistance
fees and maintenance fees arising from the expansion of tre Company's preduction and sales volumes;
and (2) the increase of RMB41 million in admin'strative expenses arising from the ccnsolidation of

financial statements of Angang Tian Tie for the year.

3) The increase of RMB347 million in ‘inancial expenses as ccmpared w th the previous year was primarily
attritutable to (1) the decrease in capitalized interests as a result of the decreased construction
expenses, and (2) the increase of RMB83 million in financial expenses due to the consolidation of

financial statements of Angang Tian Tie for the year,

4) The increase of RMB251 million in income tax expense as compared with the previous year was primarily

attrizutable to the total increased profit of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Components of cash flows generated from the Group’s operating activities,

investing activities and financing activities

Prepared under the PRC Accounting Stardards

Item

2010

2008

Unit: RMB million

Main reason for change

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Net cash flows from
investing activities

Net cash flows from
financing activities

9,026

-4,750

-2,867

4,549

-5,213

-68

The increase in net cash inflow from
Sperating activities as compared
with the previous year was mainly !
attributable to the increase in net
profit for the year and operating
payables.

Tne decrease in net cash cutflow
from investing activities as
compared with the previous year
was mainly due to the decreased
acauisitions of fixed assets and
expenses of constructicn work in
orogress.

The increase in net cash outflow
from financing activities was
mainly due to the increase in cash
repayment of berrewings during
the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

ftems related to fair value measurement
Prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards Unit: RMB million

Gatns or

Gabns or  losses arksing

losses arising  from changes
Balance at from changes  In falrvalue  bmpalment Balance at
the beginning I fair value reported made for the end of

ftem of the period for the period In equhty the perfod the period
financiat assets
Indh.ding 1. Financial assets a1 fair value
through zrofit or koss

2. Availatle-for-sale financial assets 161 0 i3 0 173
Subtotal of financial assets 161 0 13 0 179
Financial kabilities
Total 161 0 13 0 179

The Company formulated Acccunting Treatment Measures and other internal centrol policies
relating to fair value measurement,

The Company has no financial asset in fore gn currency.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Number of Employees, Employees’ Qualifications, Salary Policy and Training
Programmes of the Company

As of 31 December 2010, the Company hac 29,875 employees, of which 20,359 were producticn
staff, 283 were sales staff, 2,588 were technicians, 274 were accounting staff and 2,234 were
administration perscnnel. Cf the Cempany's employees, 6,290 held bachelor or nigher degrees,
representing 21.05% of the tctal number of the employees; 7,104 ~eld diplomas, representing
23.78% of the total number of the employees and 12,394 held the certificate of secondary
education, representing 41.49% of the total number of the emcloyees.

In 2010, 19,247 employees attended and comcleted centralized training course and 20,952
employees attended on-the-job training. 47° member counts of senior management attended
training for, among others, political theory knowledge, strategy managemert, and 7,175 ceunts of
management tecanolegy siaff attended training for management knowledge, computer, English,
expertise and studying in institutes and colleges. 6,19 oroduction staff counts attended training
for technical grades, computer and equipment inspection. 5,482 emaloyee ccunts attended training
for specislized operation security qualifications. 20,952 employee counts attendes training for
operating skills, 2,147 employees attended training for team and group security management
knowledge, 67 errployees attended training for on-the-tot studying for master's or doctor's cegree
and 4,015 employee coun’s attended other trainings. As a -esult of these trairings, the overall
qual iy of employees nad been improved, which equipped the Company with competent human
resources for the achievement of production and ogeration targets.

The Company has adopléd a position and performance-cased annual remuneraton packages ‘or
senior management; positicn-based linkec remuneratior and new procuct development incentive
packages for research personnel; sales/profit-linked remuneration package for sales personnel; and
positicn-based remuneration packages for other cersonnel.
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INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY
External investment

The Company’s external investment for 2010 aggregated to RMB82S million, representing an
increase of 26.53% over RM3652 million last year.

In particular, the Company invested RMB80O million and RM825 million, in Angang Putian ang
WISDRI Engineering & Research Inccrporation Limited respectively.

Investment projects not funded by proceeds and the progress thereof:

Unit: RMB8 million

Project
budget Project Project
Project name amount progress proceeds
High performance cold rolling
silicon steel production line 3,400 87% -41
Seamless @177 petroleum pipeline 817 90% -7
Wire groduction line renovation 629 87% 0
Project of benzene hydrogenation 385 99% 12
Total 5,231 — -36

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE
GROUP (UNDER THE IFRSs)

As of 31 December 2010, the Group had long-term loans of RMB12,717 million {(exclusive of foans
due within one year) witr interes: rates ranging from 4.86% to 5.94% cer arnum. Under the terms
of 3 to 25 years, the loans will expire in 2012 to 2030. The foans are mainly used for replenishing
working capital and project capital. The Group's long-term loans due within one year amounted to
RMBS,961 million. W.th good credibility ard relatively high crofitability of procucts, the Group will
have sufficient cash to repay the existing liabilities falling due in the future.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE
GROUP (UNDER THE IFRSs) (continued)

As of 31 December 2010, the Group's cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB1,439 million to
RMB3,651 million from RMB2,242 million in the previous year, which was ~ainly attributable to (1)
net cash inflew from operating activities of RMB7,450 million; (2) net cash cutflow frem investing
activities of ’M834,795 million; (3) net cash outflew from financing activities of RMB1,246 illion.

As at the end of 2010, the Group's total assets less currert liabilities amounted to RMBE8,637
millior, compared with RMB65,426 million at the end of 2003.

The shareholders’ equity o the G-oup amounted to RMB55,329 million at the end of 2010,
compared with RMBS3,785 mill:icn at the end of 2009.

PLEDGED ASSETS

The Group has a shert-term borrowings of RMB2CO million at the end of the year, which was the
pledged borrowings <f Tianjin Tiantie borrowed from Tianjin Binhai Rural Commercial 8ank (X
BB RABRRT). Certar constructions in progress o Tian Tie Project were pledged for the
borrowings, which has a carrying value of RMB717 million, with a collateral term starting from 31
October 2010 0 30 October 2011.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As 2t 31 December 2010, the Group had capital ccmmitmerts of RMB4,303 million, which was
pr-marily attr cutable to construction and renovation contracts entered into but not performed or
serformed partally and external investment contracts enterec into but nct performed or performed
partially.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have zny contingent liabilit es.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Groue did rot ~ave significant foreign currency risk exposure arising from its experted products
and imported procurement of raw materials for production and equicments for projects as the
Group adopts loccec exchange rates to settle the amaunts with export and .mport agents.

GEARING RATIO

Under the IFRSs, the ratio of the Group’s sharehclders’ equity to liavilities in 2010 was 1.07 tires
(2009: 1.09 times).
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Corporate Governance

STRUCTURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

In strict compliance with the requirements of the Company Law, Securities Law, relevant rules of
the China Securities Regulatory Cecmmission as well as the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange anc the Rules Governing the Listing of Shares on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, the Company has regulated its cperations and established a sound corporate
governance system.

Four special committees have been set up by the Board of the Company with independent non-
executive directors acting as conveners of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, and accounting for the majority of such commitzees’
members.

DISCHARGE OF DUTIES BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has formulated the Work System for Independent D'rectors in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations. The independent non-executive directors have discharged their duties
in accordance with the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations, reviewed carefully the
financial and other relevant information of the Company and expressed their independent cpinicns
on significant matters of the Company in order to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
minority shareholders.

Attendance of the independent non-executive Directors at the Board meetings of the Company in
2010 are set out as follows:

Raquired
Namae of Independ; d. at the d d:
non-axecutive Director  Board mestings In parson by praxy Absence  Remark

(rumber of times)  (rumber of times)  (number of times)  (number of times)

U Stifun 10 9 1 0 -

Ma Guogiang 19 10 0 -

Kwong Chi Kic, Victor 10 1 ¢ -

Liu wei H 4 1 Q0 Ten.re expired & 3t June 2010

THE COMPANY IS COMPLETELY INDEPENDENT OF ITS CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER IN TERMS OF BUSINESS, STAFF, ASSETS, ORGANIZATION,
FINANCE, ETC. SUCH INDEPENDENT CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND
OPERATION ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF

THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS. THE COMPANY. HAS

AN INDEPENDENT AND COMPLETE BUSINESS AND IS CAPABLE OF
OPERATING INDEPENDENTLY.
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APPRAISAL AND INCENTIVE MECHANISM FOR THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has set up position-based and risk-based annual salary distribution schemes for the
senior management personnel. The position-based salary scheme is linked to the Company's overall
operating results while the risk-based annual salary system is linked to the performance of and
operaticnal indicators assumed by individuals.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Corporate Governance Practice

With shares listed in both Hong Kong and Shenzhen, the Company is committed to improving
its corporate governance in accordance with international corporate governarce standards. The
Board and the management understand that they are responsitle for establishing good corporate
governance practices and procedures and the strict implementation of such practices and
precedures, in order to protect the interests of the shareholders and to maximise the investment
return for the shareholders in the long term.

. Since the Hong Kong Stock Exchange promulgated the Code on Corporate Governance Fractices

(abbreviated as the “Code”), the Company has imoroved its corporate governance in line with
principles ¢f the Code. During the reporting period, the Company has been in compliance with all
provisions of the Code and most of the recommended best practices.

Securities Transactions of Directors

The Board has adopted the relevant code for securit:es transactions by directors in comoliance with
the Hong Kong Listing Rules. In the responses to the Company’s special enqu-ries with the members
of the Board, they have confirmed that they have complied with the standards set out in Appendix
10 to the Hong Korg Listing Rules.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing securities transactions by the
employees of the Company who may possess or have access to price sersitive information in
relation to the Company or its securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the reporting period, the Board has been in compliance with the Rule 3.10(1) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, which requires
a company tc maintain at leas: three incdependent non-executive directors, and with the Rule
3.10(2) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Secunities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, which
requires one of those incependent non-executive directors to possess professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirements of the “ong Kong Stock Excrange, the Compary has verified wit~ its
independent non-executive directors in respect of their independence as follows: the Company has
accepted the writter confirmation of each of the independen: ron-executive directors ascertaining
that they are in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in respect of their independence. Tre Company is of the opinion that
all o¢ the independent non-executive directors are indecengent. .




[

2L

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 |  Angang Steel Company Limited

Corporate Governance comies

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees
@ Composition of the Board

The current sessicn of the Board of the Comgany comprises 8 members including 1
Chairman, 4 executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors. The number of
independent non-executive directors of the Company represents over one-shiré of members
of the Bcard.

The Board of the Company establishes 4 special committees, which are all comprised of
directors. In particular, the majority of the members of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Commitiee, Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are independent non-executive
directors who are also the conveners. There is at least one independen: non-executive
director in the Audit Committee who possesses professional qualifications in accounting.
Each of the special committees repcrts to the Board and submits proposals to tre Beard for
consideration ard approval. Members of the Bcard of the Company and their attendance in
2010 are as follows

Attendance
Name Positlon In the Board to meetings
Zhang Xiaogang Chairman 100%
Yang Hua _ Executive Director 100%
Chen Ming Executive Director 100%
Yu Wanyuan Executive Director 100%
Fu lihui Executive Director 100%
Li Shijun Independent non-executive Director 100%
Ma Guogiang Independent nor-executive Directer 100%
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor Independent non-executive Directer 100%
Liu Wei Former Independert non-executive Director 100%

The directors (including independent non-executive directors) are subject to a term of 2 years
ard may offer themselves for re-elect en.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

)]

Duties and Operation of the Board

The Board is accountable to the general meetings ard exercises the following powers:
i. to convene and report at the general meetings;

ii. 1o implement the resoluticns passed at the general meetings;

iii. 1o decide the Company’s business anc investment plans;

iv. 1o prepare the Company’s annual budget and its implementaticn plan;

V. to prepare the Company’s profit disiricution plan and loss recovery plan;

vi. 1o prepare the propcsals for the increase or reduction of the Company’s registered
capital, issue of debentures or other securities as well as listing;

vi. 1o draw up plans for sgnificant acquisiticn by the Company, purchase of the
Company’s shares or the merger, division and dissolution of the Company and change
of corporate form;

viii,  to determine the Company'’s internal management structure;

ix. to appoint or dismiss the Company’s manager and the Secretary to the Board,
to appoint or dismiss the Comoany's deputy general manager and other senior
management including financial controller as nominated by the manager, and
determine their remunerations, awards a~d punishment;

X. to prepare the Company's basic management system;

Xi. 1o prepare amendments to the articles of association of the Company.

Save for the resolutions in respect of the matters specified in sub-paragraphs vi, vii ard
xi above, which shall be passed by votes of more than two-thirds of the directors, the

resolutions in respect of cther matiers specfied above may be passed by votes of at least
half of the directors.




ANNUAL REPORT 2010 |  Angang Steel Company Limited

Corporate Governance comes

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

@

Duties and Operation of the Boarg (continued)

The Board of the Company is responsible for the preparation ¢f the financial statements for
each financial period, which gives a true anc ‘air view of the state of affairs, results and cash
flows of the Company during the relevant period.

In 2010, the Boad of the Company held a total of 10 Board meetings.

Remuneration and Evaluation Comm ttee

The members of the Remuneration and Evaluaticn Committee of the Company and their
attendarce in 2010 are as follews:

Attendance
Name Position In the Committee to meatings
Liu Wei the former convener 100%
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor convener —
Li Shijun member 100%
Yarg Hua member 100%
Yu Wanyuan member 100%

Main duties cf the Remuneration ard Evaluation Commiztee are:

i to research the assessment criteria of directors and se=ior maragement; to carry out
the assessment and grov de acvices;

ii. to study and review the remuneration policies and proposals of employment for the
directors and senior management.

In 2010, the Remuneration ard Evaluation Committee of the Company held * meeting.
During the reeting, the performance of the directers and senior maragement personrel of
the Company during 2009 was assessed ans ther remunerations during 2009 were reviewed,
and submitted to the 8oard for consideration.
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The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

@

64

Remuneration and tvaluation Committee {continued)

In March 2011, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee of the Company held a
meeting, at which the performance of directors and senicr management personnel of the
Cempany during 2010 was assessed and the corresponding remunerations during 2010 were
examined. The Remuneration anc Evaluation Comm ttee was of opinicn that remunerations
of directors and senicr management personnel in 2010 were linked to overall ogerating
results, performance and operating indicators assumed by individuals, which olayed an active
role i~ stimulating the initiatives of directors a~d senior management personnel and was in
line with the level of domestic counterparts.

Ncemination Commitiee

The memters of the Nomination Committee of the Company and their attendance in 2010
are as follows:

Attendance
Name Position In the Committee to meetings
Li Shijun convener 100%
Zhang Xiaogang member 100%
Ma Guogiang memgcer 100%
Fu Jihui memeer 100%

Main duties of the Nominatior. Commit:ee are:

to study the criteria and procedures of selection of directors ard senior management,
and provide suggestions;

ii. tc conduct extensve search for qualified cardidates of directors and senior
management personnel; and

iii. to assess the candidates for Zirectors and senior management and provide relevant
recommendations.
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The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

@

. General Manager of the Company in accordance with the qualificatior. requirements and the

Corporate GOVernance «onwes

Nomination Committee (continued)
In 2010, the Nomination Committee of the Company held 1 meeting to nominate the

relevant laws a~d regulations and the articles of association of the Company and to submit
the same fo- the consideration of the Board.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee of the Company and their attendance in 2010 are as
follows:

Attendance
Name Positlon in the Committee to meetings
Ma Guogiang cenvener 100%
Liu Wei former member 100%
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor member 100%
Yu Wanyuan member 100%
Chen M g member 100%

Main duties of the Audit Committee are:

i to maxe proposals in relation to the engagement or change of external auditors;

ii. to supervise the Company’s internal auditing system and implementaticn;

jiif. to facilitate communication between internal auditing department and external
auditors;

iv.  to review financial information of the Company and its disclosure; and

v. to review the Company’s internal control system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

®

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee of the Company reviewed the internal control system and report of
the Company with reference to the latest requirements set out in Rule C.2.2 of the CG
Code of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, takrg intc acccunt of tre resources of
the accounting ard financial reporting of the Company, the sufficiency of qualifications
and experience of its staff and the training ccurses for employees and the relevant budget.
It will also sucmit the reviewed inte’nal control report tc the Board of the Company for
consideration.

tn 2010, the Audi: Committee of the Company held a total of 4 meetings. During the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the quarierly, '~terim and annual financial
statements and financial information set out in the quarterly, interim and annual reports
of the Company, reviewed the internal control system of the Company, and made
recommendations in relation to tne engagement of externat auditors.

The Audit Committee and the management of the Company have icintly inspected ihe
Cempany's accounting policy and have discussed on the issues in relation to the auditing,
internal control and financial statements of the Company, including a review of the audites
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

In accordance with relevant regulaticns of CSRC and Shenzhen Stozk Zxchange, the Audit
Committee of the Company performed their duties with due diligence, and summarised its
performance as follows:

Opinions after reviewirg the 2010 Annual Report

The Company’s financial statements for 2010 was prepared based on the requirements of
the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises, expenditures were reasonable; revenues,
expenses and profits were recognized truly and accurately; relevant provisions were made
as specified by the laws, regulations and relevant systems, which reflected the Company’s
financial positions and operating resulis and cash flow on a true, accurate and complete
basis; it was apgroved to be submitted to the Bcard of the Compary for consideration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

® Audit Committee (continued)
Review opinions on the Audit Work Summary by Accountants for 2010
RSM China Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) and RSM Nelson
Wheeler Certified Public Accountants performed their duties during the auditing the
Company's ‘inancial statements for 2010 in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC and Hong Kong and in compliance with professional ethics of accountants, and
expressed their opinion on the Compary’s financial statements, enabling the Company to
satis’y the requirements from the domestic and overseas regulatory insti-utions.
Review opinions on the Appointment of RSM China Certified Public Accountants {Special
General Partnership) and RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified Public Accountants as domestic and
overseas Aucitors of the Company for 2011
The Board is proposed to appo.nt RSM China Certifiec Puzlic Accountants (Special General
Partnership) and RSM Nelson Wheeler as domestic and overseas auditors of the Company

for 2011 with a term from the close of Annual General Meeting for 2010 to the time of
convening of Annual General Veeting for 2011,

Chairman and General Manager

The positions of Chairman and General Manager of the Comgany are assumed by different persons
with definite division of duties.

Duties of the Chairman:

i. to preside over the gene-al meetings and to convene and preside over tre Board meetings;
ii. to supervise and check the implementation of resolutions of the Board;

iii. to sign the share certificates issued by the Company; and

iv. to exercise other powers conferred by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Chairman and General Manager (continued)

Duties of the General Manager:

The General Manager of the Company reports 1o the Board and exercises the following powers:

i. 10 take charge of the Company’s operation and management and to organize and implement
the resolutions of the Boarc and report to the Board;

i, to organize and implemen: the Company’s anrual business plar ang investment plan;
iii. o maxe proposals in relation to the Company’s internal organizational structure;

v, to make proposals in relation to the Company’s basic management system;

v. 1o prepare the basic rules and regulations of the Company;

vi. 10 make proposals in relation to the appointment or termination of appointment of the
deputy general manager or other senior managemert perscnnel of the Company (including
the financial controller);

vii. 10 apgoint or dismiss the management personnel other than those required to be appointed
or dismissed by the Bcard; and

viii.  other powers as conferred under the articles of association of the Company or granted by
the Board.

Auditors’ Remuneration

RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified Public Accountants and RSM China Certified Public Accountants
(currently renamed as “RSM China Certified Public Accountants (Scecial General Partnership)*)
were appointed at the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company as tne overseas and domestic
auditors of the Company, respectively, for the year 2010. Tne remuneration of tne Company’s
auditors for 2010 amounted to RMBE.10 million. The Company reimtursed the auditors out of
pocket expenses arising from auditing. RSM China Certified Public Acccuntants (special general
partnership) and RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified Public Accountants had provided auditing services
to the Company for three consecutive years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
Internal control

To integrate the internal control regime in accordance with the Company Law, Securities Law,
relevant regulations of the China's Securities Regulatory Commission, Rules GoVeming the Listing
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Rules Governing the Listing of Shares on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Rules for Corporate Governance of Listed Companies and Guidance
for Internal Control of Listed Companies of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and with reference
to the actual condition of the Company’s business, organizatcn setup end business goals. The
design of the internal control regime has fully taker into consideration of regulations and laws as
well as relevant requirements including the Listing Rules. There are no material shortcomings and
abnormality ir the completeness, systematism, efficiency and compliance in the current internal
control system, thus providing reasonable assurance 1o honest and legal operation, true and reliable
financial reports, improvement in operaten efficiency and results and avoidance of predicatle
significant risks of the Company. Accordingly, it will help the Comgany formulate proper business
goals and achieve them as scheduled.

The Company has been equipped with internal auditing mechanism, which requires an overall
evaluation of the internal contre! syster on a regular basis every year. The daily auditing is exercised
by functonal depar:ments and front units of the Company by adopting on an uniform basis of the
mode of “internal review of management”, focusing on activities including examination of financial
conirol, ocerational control, legal compliance control and risk control. Major part of internal review
mechanism is to supervise and ensure the effective operation of internal corirol system.

The Company established and improved the internal control system of financal regort in
accordance with trhe Accourting Law of the People’s Republic of China ((PRARKER &N
7&)). the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises and its implementation guidefines as well
as General Rules for Financial Cperations of Enterprises ((£> 8B #iBA])) . and formulated a set
of management rules to specify the requirements on the formulation, preparation, review, binding,
analysis and stcrage of the Company's firancial report which ensured its compliance with laws and
regulat ons, its trutHfulness and completeriess and effective use. During the reporting period, no
material defect was found in the intetnal control of financial report.

The Boarc has conducted auciting for the operation of internal cortrol system of the Company in
2010, reporting that the internal control sysiem is sound, comprehensive and effective, and the
resources for accounting and financial repcrting, tre qualifications anc exceriences of e~ployees
and the training courses for employees and the refevant budgets are sufficient.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
Special measures on corporate governance

Pursuant io the relevant notice concerning good practices on corpcrate governance of listed
cempanies and an array of principles uphols by the CSRC, the Company continued to develop its
coroorate governance measures. In order to enhance the sales network, improve the sales system
and reduce the cennected transactions between the Company and Anshan Iron & Steel Group
Complex*, its cortrolling shareholders, the Company and Angang Group International Trade
Corporation (BRI MEERE BN H 2 5)) (“Angang Trade”) entered into the “loint Venture
Agreement regarding the establishment of Angang Trading Co., Ltd.* by Angang Sieel Company
Limitec* and Angang Group International Trade Corporation” (EGRGEHBATREEARE
IREBRRILAMRBUBARFERREL TN RIBM)) on 28 August 2009, pursuant
to which the parties jointly invested in a company with limited liability engaged in the domestic
trading of steel products. The company has a registered capital of RMBS73 million. The registered
capital was held as to 51% by the Company and as 10 49% by Angang Trade.

The transaction was approved by the Company on the third extraordinary general meeting in 2009
of the Company on 28 December 2009. The said company is in the process of establishment.

Connected Transactions and Peer Competitions

As production in the iron and steel industry is on a continuous basis, to ensure stable productior
and operation in the Compary's daily course of business, the Company relies on Anshan Iron
& Steel Group Complex* and its subsidiaries for most of its raw materials and a portion of its
products are required to be sold to Arshan lron & Steel Group Cemplex* and its subsidiaries. Since
listing, the Company had made tne most of the capital market platform, diversified its financing
channels into the issue of convertible bonds, new private issue and share placemen: and contmued
to acquire quality assets of Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* o expand and grow its business
rapicly. In 2006, the overall principal business of Angang Steel (8245 £58) was listed.

In November 2010, the 2 million-tonne iron and steel project in Chacyang, which was iointly
funded and established by Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* and Lingyuan Iron & Steel Group
Co., Ltd. (R IBMM MM B R £2 5)) was completed and put into cperation. For details of the
iron and steel project in Chacyang, please see the announcement on the resolutions of the 8th
meeting of the fourth Board of the Company published in China Securities Journal, the Securities
Times ard http:/Awww.cninfc.com.cn on 27 March 2007.
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Significant Events

|

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

The Company was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration in 2010.
EQUITY IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES HELD BY THE COMPANY

Unit: RMB8 million

Change In
Book vakie owner's
Petcentage n attheend (Loss nd gain [nterest
Initial the ofthe | durngthe | during the
levestment | company's reporting reporting reporting
Stodk Code Abbreviation amount equity patiod perlod perdod | Avalable Source of shares
600951 Trupe Gy 81 1.9% 18 - 13| Avlackfoale | Sodipes
31 )] el sw's of Skares
e - 81 - 179 - 13| - -

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

The Ccmpany had no material azquisition and disposal of assets in 2010.

MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

In 2010, the Greup purchased a portion of its raw materials, energy and services necessary for
preduction from Anshan lron & Steel Group Complex* and its subsidiaries, and sold scme of its
preducts 10 Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* and its subsidiaries. The transactions and prices

were implemented in accordance with the supply of raw materials and services agreements entered
intc between the parties.
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties:

Item Priing principle Price Amount

(RM8 milicn)

As 2 percentage
of the
conractual
value of similar
transactions

%)

Ion Concentrate | Mot nigher than the average mport price of domestic
iron concentraie reported to the PRC customs in tne
preceding halfyear anc the redway tansporation
cos from Bayusuan Pot to the Company as wel
¥ asjusiment subject to the grade of the iron
once~traie which was basec cn the average

RVB742/tonne 5.807

weghted grade of the iron concentrate imported by
the Company in the preceding hatf yea~. For every 1
percentage point increase cr Cecrease |n the grade
of o~ comcentiate. the price will be irceased o
Cecreased by RVBIW “omne. Anshan ton & Steel
Group Complex® has undertacen o Give a G'scourt
ecual 1o 5% of the average import price of domestic
iron concentrate reported 1o the PRC custems in
the prececng half-year on the maximim pike
determ ned.

2.8
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties: (continued)

As a percentage
of the
contractual
value of similar
fem Priting prinziple Price Amount transactions
{RM3 miliicn) (%)
Pelel Based on the average price of sellets purchased by RM2966ronne 5.758 99.48
the Corpany from independent tHied parues ir the
preceding halfyear reportng period. For every 1
percerilage poini of increase o decrease in ihe grade
of pelets, tre price will be ‘ncreased o decreased by
RMB1Jtonne.
Sinter cre The orice of iron concentiace plus processing cost in the RM2933~0nne 2591 100.00
preceding hatf-year reporting perioc and 10% gross
pro‘t magn. (The crocessirg cost of whe is not
higher thas that of sm:lar sroducts procuced by the
Company)
Scrag stee! Maiket prices - pE)l 2095
Silles - bl 100.00
Sub--otal - 14,458 4738
Hectraity Siate price IS YW 1853 3240
Water RM33.25t0rne 8 45,84
Steam Market prices RMB37/G) 2 88.87
Sut-totl - 197 3316
Lime stone Nct higher than the sefling prices offered by relevant RMB54/tonne 15 100.00
Ume powcer menbers of Anshan lor. & Steel Grouz Complex® to RM3370/Tonne 828 31.76
Sehactoy i~dependen trird parties _ 5 309
maieriak
Cther 3xcillary - 172 246
materak
Spare paris - 449 10.38
and took
Suz+iotat - 1,653 11.87
Towal - - 18.092 35.89
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties: (continued)

As a percentage
of the contractual
value of simllar
Rem Priing principle Amount transactions
(RMB miion) o,
Radway transpzitation Sta‘e price 663 54.62
Road transportatio™ Maket orices 392 80.28
Agency senvices 1.5% as cormissicn (not moe than re <85 100.00
Import of raw materiak, commiss ¢ns levied 2y the main state import ang
equipment, export companies of Caina) or free of charge
compenens and
ancillary materials
Procuct expot
Dcmestic sales
cf preducss
Repara~d ma~tenanze Marke! prices 1,244 73.12
of ecuipment
Desigr: and engineer ng services 1,257 47.23
Construction preject agency Free of charge - -
and managerrert sevices
Education facilities, vocaticnal | Marke: orices ? 44,48
education, on-the- cb trairing,
translation sevices
Campany vekicle se~vices ) 1 100.00
Crarge fer arrangerrent of 3 49.08
ousiress anc
meeling expenses
Greening sevices Expenses of labou’, materals and manageme-t 50 99.48
Secu: 1y sevice were faid Based sn marcet otices 56 82.42
Newspaper ard Staze price 2 22,98
orrer pabl catons
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties: (continued)

As a percentage
of the contractual
value of similar
Ttem Pricing principle Amount transactions
(RMB millior) %)
Telecommunication: b.s ness State price or depreciation cost olus 83 80.23
2nd services maintenance costs
irformasion system
Environmenzal protection and | State price 8 81.83
security inspection services
Supply of ~eat State price 2 617
Production coord.nation ard Expenses of labour, matenals and mznagement 1246 81.22
mastenznce were paid based on market prices
Life assistarce 165 73.40
ard maintenance
Processing with Processing cost plus gross orofit margin - -
suopl ed matenials af n9 more than 3%
Total - 5.665 6581
Interest on fund for setdement | State price 1" 20.16
Loans and discounted interest | State prce 410 27.80

Note: In which, for the twelve months ended 31 December 2010, steel products provided by Angang
Trade as a domestic anc overseas agent amounted 1o 6,760,000 tonnes and 1,710,000 tonnes
respectively.
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2) Sale of products and provision of labour services to related parties

As 2 percentage
of the
contractal
valus of simitar
Item Pridng principhe Prie Amount transactions
(RME milion; %)
(ol rofec sneels | Tre sellirg price ffered by the Comgzary w0 the V3301485 -re 1634 11,69
Heavy *bies rdegecent 1hrd panes For rovesr ew 9°0ducs RN33.526k0mne 623 541
o develonec for e otrer party, the prce 1§ Zasec o1 the [P i85 ™
marcet price 1@ ircet ke exs's; if the maveel pree
Henw seqicr coes 2t exsi, e 0 e I Dases cn the sincple of e Wk gilrorve 5 ik
ot ‘0 lez saes 2081 9lus 2 reascracle sioh, whe (hs reascazble srofit V52 558 0ne 3687 1464
Mezy- cltes | e s rot bigher than the awerige gross ot margr V33,75 fionre 476 520
Gl 2ed sheers < velieo prodkis crovaee by relevani memoer of 2VBL.3Norre a0 565
Colow: caied i V5 8160°re § 112
205
Sea~less ooes RV34,04515"ne Q 30
Moes rer FM32.25515"ne 7 100.00
3 kets RM33,526/13"ne 7 5.5
Cote fVa8831s-ne " 100.00
Cremal - 30 113
by-creeucs
stal - ERIH 1009
aope” Martet orces - 10 89.55
Aba-derec - 1 §1.0C
mate~.ak
Meus sew g difeerca from e basc orce ¢ srie oe s e - -
Wl - er.rG process of Angarg Holeng Gro.o
Retses zsse’s Vzicet 0'ce 0 appra sec pree - ‘ 2.8
o0 idle assets
$.t-10tl ] 8.7C
Toul - 238 1020
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2) Sale of products and provision of labour services to refated parties (continued)

As a percentage

of the

contractual

value of sknllar

ftem Pekdng principle Price Amount transactions

(R4 mificn) %)

\ew wrier Slae cne RM32.34 fores 4 9397

Clezn recycles | »o.cto™ (ost plus a 3oss proe marg o° 5% W08 forre A %.98
wie

ok water WE284 Ponre 05 100.00

G W 9] 359 8.9

shst farrace gas WU a9 933

Siean AVEI.50C: 2 2.7

htzgen AVIECAIW W5 0.98

Sayer MESIBIM ¢ b

RUHYEREL (Y 14 6.55

V8550 KM 1 .76

- 1.5 151 water RM313.39/5) 43 0.03

sooudtiesicg | Makes prces - 4 8:.20
sexe

rrsergon - as 0.8
e

- - 549 3.0

The above connected transactions of the Group were all settled in cash.

Explanation as tc the necessity and continuity of connected transactions: as production in the
iron and steel industry is on a continuous basis, to ensure stable production and operation in
the Company’s daily course of ousiness, the Compary relies on Anshan Iron & Steel Group
Complex* and its subsidiaries for most of :ts raw materials and a portion cf its products are
required to Te sold to Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* and its subsidiar es, Therefore,
the above cont-ruing connected transactions ae necessary to the smooih operaticn and

produc:ion of t~e Group.
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2)

Sale of products and provision of labour services to related parties (continued)

The above connectec transactions, as confirmed Bty the Independent Board Committee
who are independent of the controlling sharetolder, were entered into @ in the crdinary
course of business of the Company; @ or normal commercial terms or on the terms rot
less favourable to the terms offered by independent third parties; or on the terms which
were fair and reasonable as far as the sharerolders of the Company were concerned if no
comparable reference was available; @ in accordance with the terms of Supply of Materials
and Services Agreement which were fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole; and @ in 2010, the total amount of continuing connected
transactions of tne Company d'd not exceed the relevart caps as set out in Supoly of
Materials and Services Agreement.

The auditors to the Company have reviewed the above connected transactions and issued
a letter to the Board confirming tha: @ the above continuing connected transacticns have
received the approval of the Board; @ so far as they are aware, there is no instance of non-
compliance with provisions of Supply of Materials and Services Agreement; and ® the aciua!
amounts of such connected transactions cid not exceed the relevant ¢aps under the waiver.

Amounts due to or from related parties of the Company or guarantee provided by
related parties to the Company

There were nc claims or obligations be:ween the Company and related parties for non-operating
purpose as at 31 December 2010,

As at 31 December 2010, 3MB1.0 billion of the Company’s bank loan was guaranteed by Anshan
Iron & Steel Group Complex*, while RMB1.1 billion of Angang Putian's bank loan was also
guaranteed by Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex*.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR IMPLEMENTATION

(1)

(2)

(3)

@)

The Company did not enter into any trust, contractual or lease arrangement during the
reporting period.

There was no material guarantee granted by the Company at the end of the reporting
period.

The Company did not entrust any financial management during the reporting period.

There were no other material contracts entered into by the Company curing the regorting
period.

Opinions of independent Directors in relation to cumulative and current external
guarantees and capital occupied by the controlling shareholders and other related
parties:

In accordance with the principles of the “Notice in Relation to Certain Issues Concerning the
Regulation of Funds Transfer Between Listed Companies and Related Parties, and External
Guarantees Granted by Listed Companies” [2003] No.56 (the “Notice”) issued by CSRC, we have
faithfLlly and carefully reviewed and finalized the external guarantee of Angang Steel Company
Limited* (hereafter as the “Comgany”) and flew of funcs between the Company and its related
parties, and rereby make the following exslanations:

§)

(2)

3)

(@)

The Company has complied with the relevant requirements of the Listing rules since its
listing, and nas not provided any guarantee to its controlling s~arerolders, any other related
party which has 3 less than 50% shareholding in the Company. any non-legal person unit or
any indwidual.

The Company has not provided any guarantee for any other company during the reporting
period.

During the reporting period, none of the controlling shareholcers or other related parties had
occupiec the Company's capital.

To date, the Company has not been subjected to penalty, criticism or condemnation by the
securities regulatory authorities in respect of the Company’s external guarantees.
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Significant Events womnes

UNDERTAKINGS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

(1) Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex*, the controlling shareholder of the Company, made
the minimum undertakings required under the relevant laws, rules and regulations, during
the perioc of the Non-tradable Shares Reform. in addition to the minimum undertakings
required, Anshan lron & Steel Group Complex* has also made the following special
undertakings in relation to the State-owned Share Reform Plan:

1

2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

The shares held by Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* following the implementation
of the State-owned Share Reform Plan will te subject to a trading moratorium of 36
months from the listing date of such shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange except
for the shares correspending to the exercise of the warrants by any holder of tradable
A shares.

For the tradable A shares cf the Company issued to Anshan Iron & Steel Group
Complex* for the acquisition of the entire equity interests in ANSI, such shares will
also be subject to a trading moratorium of 36 months from the date on which the
shares are deposited to Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex*'s account.

Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* will maintain a minimum of 60% shareholding
in the Company fcllowing the completion of the acquisitic~ of the entire equity
interests in ANS| till the end of 2010.

Anshan lron & Steel Group Complex* will reimburse other shareholders for any loss
arising from its failure to fulfil the whole or part of its undertakings.

Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex*® will arrarge for the deposit of the relevant
shares of the Company as consideration under the State-cwned Share Reform Plan
with China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limitec, Shenzhen Branch
to ensure fulfilment of its obligations under such arrangement.

Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex* will pay for all the costs arising from the
imple~rentation of the State-owned Share Reform Plan.

Anshan lron & Steel Group Complex* further undertakes that:

“Angang Holding will perfcrm its undertakings on a good faith basis and accept the legal liabilities
thereunder. Unless the trans‘eree agrees and is eligible to make the undertakings, Angang Holding
will not transfer any of such shares held.”

During the reporting period, there was no breach of such urdertakings by the undertaker.
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UNDERTAKINGS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (continued)

(2)  On 27 October 2009, the Company and Anshan Iron & Sieel Group Complex* entered into
the Supsly of Materials and Services Agreement (2010-2011), pursuant to which, Basic Price
of iron concentrate is “not higher than the average free-on-board import price reported to
the PRC Customs. for the first half of the year before adjustment (“Average Import Price”)
plus railway transportation expenses from Bayuquan Port to the Company and the price after
adjustment azcording to grade. Among other things, adjustment according to grade is on the
basis of weighted average grade of iron concentrate imported in the first half of the year.
Price adjusiment for every 1% of increase or decrease in iron concentrate grade is RMB10/
tonne.” Anshan lron & Steel Group Complex* has made the undertaking on 4 December
2009 1o give a discount of 5% of Average Import Price on the maximum price which was
determined according to the Basic Price. The validity of suck undertaking skall be consistent
with the Supply of Materials and Services Agreement (2010-2011).

During the reporting period, there was no breach of such undertakings by the undertaker.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held or 30 May 2011, details cf which and
the -proposes resolutions are set out in the accompanying notice of the annual general meeting of
the Comgany.
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Audit Report

Zhongrui Yuehua shenzi(2011]No. 04120
All Shareholders of Angang Steel Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Angang Steel Company Limited (the
Company) and subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise consolidated balance sheet and the
balance sheet of the parent company as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated income statement
and the income statement of the parent company, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of the parent company,
the consolidated cash flow statement and the cash flow statement of the parent company for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's management I1s responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Mumnistry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit
We performed our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require ihat we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the enlity’s preparation of the financial s:atements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Audit Report (continued)

OPINION

in our opinion, the financial statements comply with the requirements of China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China and present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and the financial
position of the parent company as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated results of operations
and cash flows, the results of operations and cash flows of the parent company for the year then
ended.

Zhongrui Yuehua Certified Public Accountants Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

China Beyjing Li Zhushan
29-3-2011

Caoc Bin
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Angang Steel Company Limited

Prepared by: Angang Steel Company Limited
As at 31 December 2010
Monetary unit: RM3 millon

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets Note 31 Dec. 2010 31 Dec. 2009
Current assets:
Cash at banks and on hand (1) 3,651 2,242
Trading financaial assets
Bills receivable 7(2) 3,703 3,396
Accounts receivable 7(3) 2,061 1,770
Prepayments 7(S) 8,380 6,212
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Other receivables 7(8) 15 19
Inventories 7(6) 13,134 10,658
Non-current assets due within 1 year
Other current assets
Total current assets 30,944 24,297
Non-current assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets 7 179 161
Long-term equity investments 7(8) 1,986 1,629
Investment real estate
Fixed assets 7(9) 57.267 53,805
Construction in progress 7(10) 5,277 10,588
Construction material 7(11) 1,047 2,334
Intangible assets 7(12) 6,967 7,061
Deferred income tax assets 7(13) 1.447 1,112
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets 74,170 76,690
Total assets 105,114 100,987
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continuegy 7™ 429 s comoary oo

As at 31 December 2010
Monetary unt: RMB millon

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Note 31 Dec. 2010 31 Dec. 2009

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans 7(16) 10,395 13,710
Bills payable 7017) 4,879 3,509
Accounts payable 7(18) 4,683 3.318
Advances from customers 7(19) 6,157 5,942
Employee benefits payable 7(20) 322 326
Tax and surcharges payable 7(21) {1.836) (2,296)
Interest payables 7(22) 79
Other payables 7(23) 2,737 3,283
Non:current liabilities due within 1 year 7(24) 5,961 7.653
Other current liabilities 7(25) 3,023 42
Total current liabilities 36,400 35,487

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term loans 7(26) 12,717 11,502
Deferred income tax liabilities 7(13) 61 61
Other non-current liabilities 7127) 591 139
Total non-current liabilities 13,369 11,702
Total liabilities 49,769 47,189

Shareholders' equity:

Share capital 7(28) 7,235 7,235
Capital reserve 7(29) 31,521 31,510
Special reserve 7(30) 70 S0
Surplus reserves 7(31) 3,570 3,357
undistributed profit 7(32) 11,672 10,280

Ditferences from translation of foreign currency
Subtotal of Shareholders’ equity

attributable to parent company 54,068 52,432
Minonty interest 1,277 1,366
Total shareholders’ equity 55,345 53,798
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 105,114 100,987
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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P —— Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Monetary unst; RMB miion

Items Note 2010 2009
1. Operating income 92,431 70,126
Including: Operating income from

main business 7(33) 92,431 70,126
2. Operating costs 90,589 69,523
Including: Operating costs for main business 7(33) 82,694 63,712
Business tax and surcharges 7(34) 285 183
Selling expenses 7(35) 1,622 1,081
Administrative expenses 7(36) 3,441 2,962
Financial expenses 7(37) 1,249 902
Impairment losses on assets 7(39) 1,298 683

Add: gainsflosses from fair value variation .
Investment income 7(38) a1 186

Including: Income from investment in jointly
controiled enterprises and .
associates 393 176

3. Operating profit 2,253 789
Add: Non-operating income 7{(40) 142 93
Less Non-operating expenses 7(41) 37 39
Including: Loss on non-current assets disposal 35 39

4. Profit before income tax 2,358 843
Less: Income tax expenses 7(42) 408 157

S. Net profit for the year 1,950 686
Net profit attributable to

shareholder of parent company 2,039 727
Gainsflosses attributable to
minority shareholder (89) (41)

6. Earning per share

(1) Basic earnings per share 7(43) 0.282 0.100
(2) Diluted earnings per share 7(43) 0.282 0.100
7. Other comprehensive income 7(44) : 1" 87
8. Total comprehensive income 1,961 773

Share of total comprehensive income
attributable to shareholder of
parent company 2,050 814

Share of total comprehensive

income attributable to minority interest (89) 41)
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement reparedby. Angang Seel Compary Lnred
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Monetaty unit. RM8 million

Items Note 2010 2009

1. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receved from sales of goods or

rendering of services 95,169 72,934
Refund of tax and fare received 800
Other cash received relating to

operating activities 7(45) 672 292
Sub-total of cash inflows 95,841 74,026
Cash paid for goods and services 80,121 63,879
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 2,698 2,554
Cash paid for all types of taxes 2,720 2,255
Other cash paid relating to operating activities  7(45) 1,276 789

86,815 69,477
7(46) 9,026 4,549

2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash recewed from return of investments
Cash received from investment income 93 47
Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets H 23
Net cash received from the disposal of
subsidiaries and other operating units
Other cash received relating to
investment activities 7(45) 87 1,730

Sub-total of cash inflows 185 1,800

Cash paid fcr acquisition of fixed assets
intangible assets and other long-term assets 4,910 6,870
Cash paid for acquisition of investments 25 143
" Net cash paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries and other operating units
Other cash paid relating to
investment activities

Sub-total of cash outflows 4,935 7,013
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ey oo rme . Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Monetary untt' RM8 mifiion

Items Note 2010 2009

3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash recewved from absorbing investment
Including: received of subsidiary from
minority shareholder
Cash received from borrowings 25,265 20,140
Other cash received relating to
financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows 25,265 20,140
Cash paid for setthng debt 26,077 17,084
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or

profit or reimbursing interest 1,985 3,086

Including: dividends or profit paid to
minority interest
Other cash payments relating to
financing actwvities 7(45) 70 38

Sub-total of cash outflow

4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents

5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  7(46) 1,409 (732)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at year-begin  7(46) 2,242 2,944

6. Cash and cash equivalents at

the end of the year 7(46) 3,651 2,242
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Legal representative:
Zhang Xiaogang

Chief Accountant:
Ma tianyong

Controller:

Ma Lianyong
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Prepared by Angang Stee! Company Limited
As at 31 December 2010
Monetaty unit. RM8 mifion

Consolidated Statement of changes
in shareholders’ equity (continued)
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legal representative:

Zhang Xiaogang

Chief Accountant:

Ma Lianyong

Controller:
Ma Lianyong

91




O

Angang Steel Company Linited | ANNUAL REPORT 2010

ey

Balance Sheet

Prepared by: Angang Steel Compary Limrted
As at 31 December 2010
Monedary unit. RM3 million

Assets Note 31 Dec. 2010 31 Dec. 2009
Current assets:
Cash at banks and on hand 2,542 1,138
Trading financial assets
Bills receivable 3,167 3,157
Accounts receivable 15(1) 2,061 1,770
Prepayments 7,285 5,294
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Other receivables 15(2) 15 12
Inventories 12,378 10.045
Non-current assets due within 1 year
Other current assets
Total current assets 27,448 21,416
Non-current assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets 179 161
Long-term equity investments 15(3) 4,248 3,094
Fixed assets 53,744 51,720
Construction in progress 3,559 8,713
Construction material 205 2.317
Intangible assets 6,469 6,609
Deferred income tax assets 1,189 904
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets 69,593 73,518
Total assets 97,041 94,934
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Prepared by: Angang Steel Company Lamited ’ .
a3 Dceroer 010 Balance Sheet (continued)
Monetary urst: RMB million .

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Note 31 Dec. 2010 31 Dec. 2009

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans ’ 8,300 12,200
Bilis payable 3,794 2,776
Accounts payable 4,467 2,818
Advances from customers 5,846 5.822
Employee benefits payable 322 325
Tax and surcharges payable (1,508) (2.149)
Interest payables 79
Other payables 2,310 3,263
Non-current liabilities due within 1 year S.541 7,338
Other current labilities 3,023 a2
Total current liabilities 32,174 32,435

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term {oans 10,057 9,822
Deferred tax liabilities 59 61
Other non-current liabilities 554 139
Total non-current liabilities ' 10,670 10,022
Total liabilities . 42,844 42,457

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital 7.235 7,235
Capnal reserve 31,521 31,510
Special reserve 70 50
Surplus reserves 3,570 3,357
Undistributed profit 11,801 10,325
Total shareholders’ equity 54,197 52,477
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 97,041 94,934
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Income Statement

Prepared by’ Angang Steel Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Moneary unit. RM8 mufiion

Items Note 2010 2009
1. Operating income 15(4) 90,033 69,469
Less Operating costs for main business 15(4) 80,287 62,988
Business tax and surcharges 285 183
Selling expenses 1,569 1,066
Administrative expenses 3,378 2,946
fFinancial expenses 1,150 884
Impairment losses on assets 1,298 683

Add gainsflosses from fair value variation .
Investment income 15(5) 408 186

Including: Income from investment in
jointly controlled enterprises
and associates 390 176
2. Operating profit 2,474 905
Add Non-operating income 141 90
Less: Non-operating expenses 36 39
Including: Loss on non-current assets disposal 35 39
3. Profit before income tax 2,579 956
Less: Income tax expenses 456 184
4. Net profit for the year 2,123 772
S. Other comprehensive income 11 87
6. Total comprehensive income 2,134 859
Legal representative: _ Chief Accountant Controlfer:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Prepared by Angang el Compary Limted Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Monetary untt RMB mulhon

Items Note 2010 2009

1. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receved from sales of goods or

rendering of services 92,578 72,277
Refund of tax and fare received 800
Other cash received relating to operating

activities 635 292
Sub-total of cash inflows 93,213 73,369

Cash paid for goods and services 77,901 63,263
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 2,640 2,543
Cash paid for all types of taxes 2,712 2,245
Other cash paid relating to operating actwities 1,257 786
Sub-total of cash outflows 84,510

perating activities

2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash recewed from return of investments
Cash recewed from investment income 93 47
Net cash recewved from disposal of
fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets S 23
Net cash received from the disposal of
subsidiaries and other operating units
Other cash received relating
to investment activities 70 537

Sub-total of cash inflows 168 607

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets

intangible assets and other long-term assets . 2,347 6,473
Cash paid for acquisition of investments 825 575
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries

and other operating umnits
Other cash paid relating to

Investment activities

Sub-total of cash outilows 3,172 7,048
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Cash Flow Statement (continved) Frepad o Aniang Steet Compary Limced

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Monetary unit. RM8 miffion

Items Note 2010 2009

3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from absorbing investment
Cash received from borrowings 21,670 20,040
Other cash received relating to
financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows i B 21670 20,040
Cash paid for settling debt 24,152 16,834
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or

profit or reimbursing interest 1,743 3,035
Other cash payments relating to

financing activities 70 38
Sub-total of cash outilows 25,965 19,907
Net cash inflow from financing activities (4,295) 133

5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 15(6) 1,404 (1,776)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at year-begin 15(6) 1,138 2,914

6. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the year 15(6) 2,542 1,138
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Prepared by Angang Steel Company Limited
As at 31 Decernber 2010
Monetaty unst' RMB miiton

Statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity

2010
Lessen: Surplus Total of
Share Gpital veasury Spedal public  Generalrisk Undistributed  shareholders’
ftems apital reserve stodt Tesarve reserve reserve profit equity
1. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2009 135 nsw S0 339 10325 Q4N
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CoTecnor of .a5i ATur LG 010
e
1 Balance as at 1 fan. 2010 135 nsw 9 3351 10325 S24n
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1
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4. Balance a5 2t 31 Dec. 2010 1235 nsa 0 3510 1801 4,197
Legal representative: Chief Accountant: Controller:
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Statement of changes in

Prepared by | Angang Steel Company Limited

As at 31 December 2010
Monetary unit RM3 milon

shareholders’ equity (ontinued)
2009
Lessen: Surplus Geneal Total of
Share Gpul  tasuy Specal pablic fisk Undistributed shareholders’
fems capital reserwe stodk reserve reserve resarve profit equity
1. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2009 1235 34 330 114 53,103
AdS Change of xoueag poky H [t])] 5 5
Comacbon, of Last &oou"ang eftory
Che
2 Balance 3s 2 1 hn. 2010 1335 343 Hi 328 11,149 93,108
3. Ingeaserdecease in 2010
{** means fosg) 8 29 n (824) 631)
{1} Netxol: m m
{2 Ouhwe corprerensye icone 8 8
Seblotal o (1) and (2) 8 m 859
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4 Balance a5 3t 31 Dec. 2010 1235 1510 SO 3357 1235 5141
Legal representative: Chief Accountant. Controller:

Zhang Xiaogang

Ma Lianyong

Ma Lianyong
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for the e 2010 Notes To The Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB mulon
unfess othenwise ndicated)

1. COMPANY PROFILE

Angang Steel Company Limited (formerly known as Angang New Steel Company Limited)
(abbreviated as “the Company”) was formally established on 8 May 1997 as a joint-stock
limited company.

The Company was established as a joint-stock limited company under the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), with Anshan lron & Steel Group Complex ("Angang
Holding”) as the sole promoter, pursuant to the approval document Tl GAI SHENG [1997] No 62
“Reply to the Approval of the Establishment of Angang New Steel Company Limited” issued
by the State Commission for Economic Restructuring of the PRC. The Company took over the
businesses of the Wire Rod Plant, the Thick Plate Plant, and the Cold Rolling Plant (collectively
referred to as the “Plants”) of Angang Holding. According to the Division Agreement which
tock effect from 1 January 1997, Angang Holding transferred the production, sales, research
and development, administration activiues of the Plants together with the relevant assets and
liabilrties as at 31 December 1996 as its contribution to the Company. The above net assets were
converted into 1.319,000,000 shares of the Company of RMB1.00 each.

The Company issued 890,000,000 foreign invested ordinary shares (“H shares”) with a
par value of RMBt 00 each on 22 July 1997 which were subsequently listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 24 July 1997. The Company also issued 300,000,000
ordinary A shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each on 16 November 1997 which were
subsequently listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 25 December 1997,

The Company issued 1.5 billion share converuble bonds in the PRC on 15 March 2000. The
bonds reach its maturity on 14 March 2005. Total of 453,985,697 A shares of the company
were transferred from the bonds

On 26 January 2006, the Company made an additional issue of 2,970,000,000 ordinary
A shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each at an issue price of RMB4.29 each to Angang
Holding for a total consideration of RMB12.74 billion. Proceeds of the issue were used to
partly finance the acquisiion of the entire equity interest in ANSI Upon the completion
of the entire equity acquisition of ANSI, all the business, assets and liabilities of ANSI were
transferred to the Company, and ANS! has applied for deregistration.

According 10 a special resolution approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting or: 20
June 2006, the Company changed its name from Angang New Steel Company Limited 1o Angang
Steel Company Limited on 29 September 2006 upon the issuance of revised business license.

The Company proposed to issue A shares and H rights shares to all shareholders with
5.932,985.697 outstanding shares on the basis of 2.2 Rights Shares for every 10 existing
Shares in October 2C07. The subscription price for A shares and H shares 1s RMB15.40 per
share and HKD15.91 respectively. The entitlements 0 the Rights Shares under the Share
Rights Issue represent a total of 1,301,822,150 shares, including 1,106.022.150 A shares
and 185,800,000 H shares The new shares are listed for trade on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 25 October 2007 and 14 November 2007
respectively. The Company had obtained the revised busiress license on 31 March 2008

At the balance sheet date, the Company’s legal representative: Zhang Xiaogang; Registered
capitai. RMB7,234,807.847; Business certificate code: 210000400006026; Registered office:
Production Area of Angang Steel, Address of the Company Tie Xi District, Anshan City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC. 99
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) gy eess el 210

unless otherwise indicated)

COMPANY PROFILE (continued)

The Company and its subsidiary (abbreviated as “the Group”) are principally engaged in
ferrous metal smelting and steel pressing and processing.

The financial statements has been approved by the Board of Directors in April 19, 2010
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group are based on the assumption of going concern
principal according to the actual transactions and events, n light of the accounting standard
for business enterprise promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of PRC in Feb. 2006 and
38 specfic accounting standards, the following promulgated application guidelines,
interpretations and other related rules (“Enterprise Accounting Standards”), and the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, “public offering of securities of the Company Information
Disclosure Rule No. 15 - Financial Report of the General Provisions” (2010 Amendment) the
disclosure requirements.

According to the relevant provisions of Accounting Standards, the Group has an accrual
accounung basis. Except for certain financial instruments, the financial statements are on the
basis of historical cost measurement. If assets are impaired, relevant provisions are made in
accordance with relevant rules.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE ENTERPRISE ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Group declared that the Financial Report prepared by the Group was in line with
requirements of the Enterprise Accounting Standards, These financial statements present
truly, accurately and completely the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2010, the results of operation, the cash flow of the Group for the year then ended. In
addition, these financial statements also comply with, in all material respects, the disclosure
requirements of “Regulation on the Preparation of Information Disclosures of Companies
Issuing Public Shares, No. 15: General Requirements for Financial Reports” revised by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission ("CSRC™) in 2010.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Group is the calendar year from 1 January to 31
December.

(2) Functional currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operated. The Group choose RMB as its functional currency

The Group choose RMB as functional currency when the financial statements are
presented.
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For the year 2010
{Expressed in RMB million
unless otherwise ndicated)

4.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(3

Business combinations

Business combination refers 1o a transaction or event bringing together two or more
separate enterprises into one reporting entity. Business combinations are classified into
the business combinations under the same control and the business combinations not
under the same control

(a)

(b)

The business combinations under the same control

A business combination under the same control is a business combination in
which all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same
party or the same parties both before and after the business combination and
on which the control is not temporary. In a business combination under the
same control, the party which obtains control of other combining enterprise(s)
on the combining date is the combining party, the other combining enterprise(s)
1s (are) the combined party. The “combining date” refers to the date on which
the combining party actually obtains control on the combined party.

The assets and liabilities that the combining party obtained in a business
combination shall be measured on the basis of their carrying amount in the
combined party on the combining date. As for the difference between the
carrying amount of the net assets obtained by the combining party and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid by it {or the total par value of the
shares issued), the additional paid-in capital shall be adjusted. if the additional
paid-in capital is not sufficient to be offset, the retained earnings shall be
adjusted

The direct cost occurred for the business combination of the combining party
shall be recorded into the profits and losses at the current period

The business combinations not under the same control

A business combination not under the same control s a business combination
in which the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same
party or the same parties both beiore and after the business combination. In a
business combination not under the same contro!, the party which obtains the
control on other combining enterprise(s} on the purchase date 's the acquirer,
and other combining enterprise(s) is (are) the acquiree. The “acquisition date”
refers to the date on which the acquirer actually obtains the control on the
acquiree.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) g e ieis 21

4.

uniess otherwrse indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(3) Business combinations (continued)

(b)

The business combinations not under the same control (continued)

For the business combinations not under the same control, the combination
costs shall be the fair value, on the acquisition date, of the assets paid, the
liabilities incurred or assumed and the equity securities issued by the acquirer
in exchange for the control on the acquiree. The direct cost for the business
combination of the combining party shall, including the expenses for audit,
legal services, assessment, and other administrative expenses be recorded
into the profits and losses at the current period. The transaction expenses of
the issued equity securities or liability securities for the consideration for the
combination shall be recorded into the amount of initial measurement of the
equity securities or liability securities.

The adjustment of the combined cost is likely to occur and can be reliably
assured, contingent consideration shall be measured and its subsequent
measurements effect goodwill. The relevant contingent consideration shall
be recorded into the combination costs according to its fair values on the
acquisition date. The goodwill should be adjusted if the new or further
evidences of the exist situation on the acquisition date arises and results in the
adjusting of contingent considerations within 12 months from the acquisition
date.

The combined cost of acquirer and the merger of the identifiable net assets
should be measured in light of their fair values on the acquisition date. If the
combination costs are more than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
obtained, the acquirer shall recognized the difference as goodwill; if the
combination costs are less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
obtained, the acquirer shall firstly reexamine the measurement of the fair values
of the dentifiable assets obtained, liabilities incurred and contingent liabilities
incurred, as well as the combination costs. After that, if the combination costs
are still less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets obtained, the
acquirer shall recognized the difference as profit or loss of the current period

(4) Preparation methods for consolidated financial statements

(a)

Recognition principle of the scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation of consolidated financial statements shall be
ascertained on the basis of control power. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
all of the activities. The scope of consolidation includes the Company and
its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries refer to enterprises or entities controlled by the
Company
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

@

Preparation methods for consolidated financial statements (continued)

(b)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

from the date on which the company acquire the control power of the net
assets and the decision-making of the actual production and management, the
Company begins 1o incorporate them into the scope of consolidation; from
the date on which the company loss the effective control, the company stops
to incorporate them into the consolidation scope. For the disposed subsidiary,
operating results and cash flows before the disposal date have been properly
ncluded in the consolidated income statement and consolidated cash fiow
statement; for the disposed subsidiary during the reporting period, the opening
balances of the consolidated balance sheet shall not be adjusted. For the
subsidiary increased from under the same control, its operating results and cash
flows after the acquisition date have been properly included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated cash flow statements, and does not adjust
the opening balances of should not be adjusted. For the subsidiary increased
from business combinations under the same control, its operating results and
cash flows from the beginning to the end of the reporting period in which
combinations take place have been properly included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated cash flow statements, and adjust the
comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements simultaneously

If the accounting policy or accounting period of each subsidiary is different
from that of the Company, the subsidiaries shall prepare financial statement
again in compltance with the accounting policy and accounting period of the
Company. For the subsidiary obtains from the business combinations not under
the same control, its financial statements shall be adjusted based on the fair
value of identifiable net assets of the acquisition date.

Al significant balances of the amounts receivables or payables, transactions
and unrealized profits of the intragroup shall be eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The portion of the subsidiary’s equity and net profits that are not attributable
to the Company shall be presented as “Minority Equity” and “Minority Interest”
on the consolidated financial statements under the owners’ equity and the net
profits respectively. Subsidiary’s net profit or loss for the period attributable to
minority interest shall be presented in the consolidated income statement below
the “net profits” as “Minonty Interests”. When the amounts of the loss for the
current period attributable to minority’s shareholders of subsidiary exceed the
Minority shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owners’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess amounts should offset the minority interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
{continued)

(5)

(6)

Recognition standard for cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits that are available for
payment at any time and short-term (within 3 months from the purchase date) and
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant nsk of change in value.

Business of foreign currencies and the translation of foreign financial
statement

(a)

(b)

Business of foreign currencies

At the time of initial recognition of a foreign currency transaction, the amount
in the foreign currency is translated 10 RMB at the spot exchange rate of the
transaction date. (Generally, a spot exchange rate is middle price quoted by
the People’s Bank of China on the day of transaction), nonetheless, business of
foreign currency exchange or transaction involving foreign currency exchange
shall be translated into RMB by actual exchange rate

Translation of financial staternents fisted in foreign currency

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are transliated into RMB at
the spot exchange at the balance sheet date, the arising difference shall be
recorded into the profits and losses at the current period, except:

(1) Ansing from foreign currency borrowings for the purchase and
construction or production of qualified assets shall be subject to the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 17 - Borrowing Costs;

(2)  The profits and losses arising from the change in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset shall be included directly in the owner's
equity with the exception of impairment losses and the difference arising
from foreign exchange conversion of other carrying amounts variation
from cash available sale financial assets in any foreign currency with
the exception of post-amortization cost shall be recorded into the other
comprehensive income.

The foreign currency non-monetary items measured at the historical cost sha!l
still be translated at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date, of which
the amount of functional currency shall not be changed. The foreign currency
non-monetary items measured at the fair value shall be translated at the
spot exchange rate on the date of fair value ascertained, and the translation
difference, treated as the variation of far value (include the variation of
exchange rate), shall be recorded into the profits and losses at the current
period or other comprehensive income and included into the capital reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(7) Financial instruments
(a) The method for determining the fair value of financal assets and liabilities

The fair value refers to the amount, at which both parties of a transaction who
are familiar with the condition exchange their assets or clear off their debts
under fair conditions. For which there is an active market, the quoted prices in
the active market shall be used to determine the fair values thereof. The quoted
prices in the active market refer to the prices, which are easily available from
the stock exchanges, brokers, industry associations, pricing service institutions
and etc. at a fixed term, and which represent the prices at which actually
occurred market transactions are made under fair conditions

Where there is no active market for a financial instrument, the enterprise
concerned shall adopt value appraisal techniques 1o determine its fair value.
The result obtained by adopting value appraisal techniques shall be able to
reflect the transaction prices that may be adopted in fair dealings on the value
appraisal day. The value appraisal techniques mainly include the prices adopted
by the parties, who are familiar with the condition, in the latest market
transaction upon their own free will, the current fair value obtained by referring
to other financal instruments of the same essential nature, the cash flow
capitalization method and the option pricing model, etc.

(b)  Classification of financial assets, recognition and measurement

Conventionally trading financial assets, shall be accounting recognized and
termination recognized according to the trading date. Financial assets shall be
classified into the following four categories when they are initially recognized:
the financial assets which are measured at their fair values and the variation
of which is recorded into the profits and losses of the current period, the
investments which will be held to their matunty, loans and the account
recevables, and finanaial assets available for sale. Initial recognition of financial
assets is measured at their fair values. For the financial assets measured at
their fair values and of which the variation is recorded in to the profits and
losses of the current period, the transaction expenses thereof shall be directly
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period; for other categories
of financial assets, the transaction expenses thereof shall be included into the
initially recognized amount.

(0] The financial assets shall be measured at fair values and the variation of
which shall be recorded into the current profits and losses,

Include transactional financial assets and the designated financial assets

which are measured at their fair values and of which the variation is
included in the current profits and losses;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(7) Financial instruments (continued)
“(b)  Classification of financial assets, recognition and measurement (continued)

0] The financial assets shall be measured at fair values and the variation of
which shall be recorded into the current profits and losses, (continued)

The financial assets meeting any of the following requirements shall be
classified as transactional financial assets: !

(1) The purpose to acquire the said financial assets is mainly for
selling of them in the near future;

(2) Forming a part of the identifiable combination of financial
instruments Which are managed in a centralized way and for
which there are objective evidences proving that thé enterprise
may manage the combination by way of short-term profit making
in the near future;

(3)  Being a derivative instrument, excluding the designated derivative
instruments which are effective hedging instruments, or derivative
instruments to financial guarantee contracts, and the derivative
instruments which are connected with the equity instrument
investments for which there is no quoted price in the active
market, whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, and which
shall be settled by delivering the said equity instruments.

The financial assets meeting any of the following requirements can be
designated, when they are initally recognized, as financal assets or
financial liabilities as measured at its fair value and of which the vaniation
is included in the current profits and losses

Q)] The designation is able to eliminate or obviously reduce the
discrepancies in the recogmition or measurement of retevant gains
or losses arisen from the different basis of measurement of the
financial assets or financial liabilities;

(2) The official written documents on risk management or investment
strategies of the enterprise concerned have recorded that the
combination of said financial assets, the combination of said
financial liabilities, or the combination of said financial assets and
financial liabilities will be managed and evaluated on the basis of
their fair values and be reported to the key management personnel,

The financial assets measured at fair values and the variation of which
be recorded into the current profits and losses should be subsequently
measured at their fair values, and gains or losses from variations of such

106 financial assets, and related dividends and interest income should be
included in the current profits and losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

(continued)

@)

Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Classification of financial assets, recognition and measurement (continued)

(i) The investments which will be held 1o their maturity

Refers 10 3 non-derivative financial asset with a fixed date of matunty,
a fixed or determinable amount of repo price and which the enterprise
holds for a definite purpose or the enterprise is able to hold until its

maturity

Investments held to maturity shall be measured on the basis of the post-
amortization costs by adopting the actual interest rate method, the gains
or losses arising from de-recognition, and impairment or amortization

shal! be included in the current profit or loss.

The actual interest rate method refers to the method by which the post-
amortization costs and the interest incomes or Interest expenses of
different installments are calculated in light of the actual interest rates
of the financial assets or financial liabilities (including a set of financial

assets or financial liabilities)

The actual interest rate refers 1o the interest rate adopted to cash the
future cash flow of a financial asset or financial liability within the
predicted term of existence or within a shorter applicable term into the

current carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When the actual interest rate 1s determined, the future cash flow shall be
predicted on the basis of taking all the contractual provisions concerning
the financial asset or financial liability (including the right to repay
the loan ahead of schedule, call options, similar options and etc.) into
account, and the future credit losses shall not be taken into account. The
various fee charged, trading expenses, premiums or reduced values, etc.,
which are paid or collected by the parties to a financial asset or financial
liability contract and which form a part of the actual interest rate, shall

be taken into account in the determination of the actual interest rate.

(i) Loans and the account receivables

Loans and accounts receivable refer to the non-derwative financial assets
for which there 1s no quoted price in the active market and of which the
repo amount is fixed or determinadle. The Group's loans and receivables
classified as financial assets include notes recewvable, accounts receivabie,

interest receivable, dividends receivable and other receivables.

Loans and accounts recevable shall be measured on the basis of the
post-amortization costs by adopting the actual interest rate method, the
gains or losses -arising from de-recognition, impairment or amortization

shall be included in the current profit or loss
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(7) Financial instruments (continued)

)]

Classification of financial assets, recognition and measurement (continued)
(v)  Financial assets available for sale

Refers 10 the non-derivative financial assets which are designated as
sellable when they are initially recognized as well as the finanaal assets
other than those as described below: loans and accounts receivables;
Investments held until their matunty, and financial assets red at their farr
values and of which the variation is recorded into the profits and losses
of the curren: period.

Financial assets available for sale shall be measured on adapting 1o the
fair value. The profits and losses arising from the change in the fair
value of a sellable financial asset shall be included directly in the owner’s
equity with the exception of impairment losses and the gap ansing
from foreign exchange conversion of cash financial assets in any foreign
currency. and when the said financial asset is stopped from recognition
and 1s transferred out, it shall be recorded into the profits and losses of
the current period

The interests and the cash dividends that the investee announces the
distribution shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the current
period

Impairment of financial assets

An enterprise shall carry out an inspection, on the balance sheet day, on the
carrying amount of the other financial assets other than those measured at
their fair values and of which the variation is recorded into the profits and
losses of the current period. Where there is any objective evidence proving that
such financial asset has been impaired, an impairment prevision shall be made

An impairment test shall be made on the financial assets with significant single
amounts. With regard to the financial assets with insignificant single amounts,
an independent impairment test may be ca-ried out, or they may be included in
a combrnation of fmancial assets with similar credit risk features so as 1o carry
out an impairment-related test. Where, upon independent test, the financiat
asset (including those financial assets with signif:icant single amounts ard
those with insignificant amounts) has not been impaired, it shall be included
in a combination of financ:al assets with similar risk features so as to conduct
another 1mpairment test. The financial assets which have suffered from an
imparment loss in any single amount shall not be included in any combinaticn
of financial assets with similar risk features for any impairment test
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

@

Financial instruments (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

0]

{in)

Held to maturity investments, loans and receivables impairment

Where a financial asset measured on the basis of post-amortization
costs 1s impaired, the carrying amount of the said financial asset shall
be written down to the current value of the predicted future cash flow
(excluding the loss of future credits not yet occurred), and the amount as
written down shall be recognized as loss of the impairment of the asset
and shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the current period

Where any financial asset measured on the basis of post-amortization
costs is recognized as having suffered from any impairment loss, if there
15 any objective evidence proving that the value of the said financial asset
has been restored, and it is objectively related to the events that occur
after such loss 1s recognized, the impairment-related losses as onginally
recognized shall be reversed and be recorded into the profits and losses
of the current period. However, the reversed carrying amount shall not
be any more than the post-amortization costs of the said financial asset
on the day of reverse under the assumption that no provision 1s made for
the impairment

Impairment of available-for sale financial asset

Where a sellable financial asset 1s impaired, even if the recognition o}
the financial asset has not been terminated, the accumulative losses
arising from the decrease of the fair value of the capital reserve which
was directly included shall be transferred out and recorded into the
profits and losses of the current period The accumulative losses that are
transferred out shall be the balance obtained from the initially obtained
costs of the sold financial asset after deducting the principals as taken
back, the current fair value and the impairment-related losses as was
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.

After impairment loss is made, If there is any objecte evidence proving
that the value of the said financial asset has been restored, and it is
objectively related to the events that occur after such loss is recognized,
the impairment-related losses as orginally recognized shalt be reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

)

Financial instruments (continued)

(©)

(d

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of avarlable-for sale financial asset (continued)

As for the sellable debt instruments the originally recogmzed impairment-
retated losses shall be reversed and recorded into the profits and losses
of the current period. Be recorded into the profits and losses of the
current period. As for the sellable equity instruments the oniginally
recognized impairment-related losses shall be reversed and recorded into
the other comprehensive income the impairment-related losses incurred
to an equity instrument investment for which there is no quoted price In
the active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
incurred to a derivative financial asset which is connected with the said
equity instrument and which shall be settled by delivering the said equity
instrument, may not be reversed

Recognition and measurement of transfer of financial assets

If financial assets meet any one of conditions as follows, financial assets shall
be derecognized:

4]

(2)

(3)

Derecognized the contract right of receiving the cash flow of the
tinancial asset,

Transferred the financial asset to another party and has transferred
nearly al. the risks and rewards related to the ownership of which to the
teansferee;

Transferred the financial asset to another party, although does not
transfer or retain nearly all of the risks ard rewards related to the
ownership of a financial asset but it gives up its contro! over the financial
asset

Where an enterprise coes not transfer or retain nearly all of the risks and
rewards related to the ownership of a financial asset and does not give
up its control over the financial asset, 1t shall, according to the extent of
its continuous involvement in the transferred financial asset, recognize
the related financial asset and recognize the relevant liability accordingly
Continuous Involvement in the transferred financial asset refers to the
r'sk level that the enterprise faces resuling from the change of the value
of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

@

Financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Recognition and measurement of transfer of financial assets (continued)

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions for termination
of recognition, the difference between the amounts of the following 2 items
shall be recorded into current profits and losses

i The book value of the transferred financial asset;

1 The sum of consideration received from the transfer, and the
accumulative amourt of the variation in fair value previously recorded
into the other comprehensive income

If the partialiy transfer of financial asset satisfies the conditions of termination
of recognition, the entire book value of the transferred financial asset shall be
apportioned according to their respective relative fair value between the portion
of derecognized part and the remains, and the difference between the amounts
of the following 2 items shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the
current perod:

i The book value of derecognized part;

i The sum of consideration of the portion derecognized and the portion of
the corresponding accumulative amount of the variation in the fair value
previously recorded into the other comprehensive income.

Classification and Measurement of financial liabilies

Financial liabilities shall be classified into the financial habilities measured at their
fair value and the variation of which shall be recorded into the current profits
and losses and other financial liabihities when they are inttially recognized:

The financial liabilities initially recognized by an enterprise shall be measured
a: their fair values. For financial liabilities measured at their fair vaiues and of
which the vanation 1s recorded into the profits and losses of the current period,
the transaction expenses thereof shall be directly recorded into the profits
and losses of the current period; for other categories of financial habilities,
the transaction expenses thereof shall be included into the initially recognized
amount.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(7) Financial instruments (continued)
(e} Classification and Measurement of financial liabilities (continued)

(1) The financial liabilities measured at their fair value and the variation of
which shali be recorded into the current profits and losses

The classified conditions of transactional financial liabilities and the
designated financial liabilities which are measured at their fair values and
of which the variation is included in the current profits and losses is the
same as transactional financial asset and the designated financial asset
which are measured at their fair values and of which the variation is
included in the current profits and losses.

An enterprise shall make subsequent measurement on its the designated
financial liabilities which are measured at their fair values and of which
the variation s included in the current profits and losses according to
their fair values. The profits and losses arising from the change in the fair
value, the interest or cash dividend which was gained in the period are
recognized into the profits and losses of the current period

(i) Other financial liabilities

The derivative financial liabilities, of which the fair value cannot be
reliably measured and quoted price does not exist in active marked, and
connected to the equity instrument and be obliged to settle by delivering
equity instrument, shall be measured at costs. An enterprise shall make
subsequent measurement on its other financial liabilities on the basis
of the post-amortization costs by adopting the actual interest rate
method. The profits and losses that arise when such financial liabilies
are terminated from recognition, or are impaired or amortized, shall be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.

(f) The termination of financial liabilities

Oniy when the prevailing obligations of a financial liability are relieved in all
or in part may the recognition of the financial liability be terminated in all or
partly. Where an enterprise (debtor) enters into an agreement with a creditor
s0 as to substitute the existing financial habilities by way of any new financial
liability, and if the contractual stipulations regarding the new financial liability is
substantially different from that regarding the existing financial liability, it shall
terminate the recognition of the existing financial liability, and shall at the same
time recognize the new financial hability

Where the recognition of a financial liability 15 totally or partially term:nated,
the enterprise concerned shall include into the profits and losses of the current
period the gap between the carrying amount which has been terminated from

112 recognition and the considerations it has paid (including the non-cash assets it
has transferred out and the new financial iabilities it has assumed)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(8)

Account receivables

Account receivables include trade debtors and other trade debtors

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Recognition of provision

On the balance sheet date, the Group carry out an overall inspection on the
carrying amount of the account receivables. Where there is any objective
evidence as followings proving that such account recevables has been impaired,
an impairment provision shall be made.

() A sertous financial difficulty occurs to the issuer or debtor; (1} The debtor
breaches any of the contractual stipulations, for example, fails to pay or delays
the payment of interests or the principal, etc. (i} The debtor will probably
go bankrupt or carry out other financal reorganizations; (iv) Other objective
evidences showing that the accounts receivables suffering impairment.

Measurement of provision

Where there is any objective evidence that the company can hardly recover
any of the account receivables according to the original terms, the account
receivables shall be subject to impairment test and the difference between the
current valve of the expected future cash flow of the assets and book value
shall be made as impairment provision. The reduced amount shall be recognized
as the loss of asset impairment and recorded into current profits or losses.

The Company regard account receivables above 30 million as account receivable
with single significant amount; The Company regard other recewvables above 10
million as other receivables with single significant amount.

Reversal of provision

if evidences show that the value of receivable is recovered and that recovery
is connected to the event subsequent to the recognition of impairment loses,
previously recognized impairment losses shall be revered and recorded into
current profits and losses, however, the book value after reversed impairment
losses shall not excess the amortized cost on the assumption that no impairment
losses have been made previously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
(9) Inventories
(a) Classification of inventory

)

()

The inventory of the Group comprises raw material, work in progress, finished
goods, consumables, spare parts, materials in transit, and outsourcing materials
etc.

Pricing of inventory received and dispatched

The inventories shall be initially measured in light of their cost when purchasing,
the cost of inventory consists of purchase costs, processing costs and other
costs

Recognition of the net realizable value of inventory and measurement of
provision for decline in value of inventories

The net realizable value refers to in the daily business activity the amount
after deducting the estimated cost of completion, estimated sale expense
and relevant taxes from the esttmated sale price of inventonies. An enterprise
shall confirm the net realizable value of inventories on the ground of reliable
evidence obtained, taking into consideration of the purpose for holding
inventories and the effects of events occurring after the date of the balance
sheet. On the balance sheet date, the inventories shall be measured at the
lower of the cost and the net realizable value. On the balance sheet date, if the
cost of inventories is higher than the net realizable value, the provision for the
loss on decline in value of inventories shall be made and be recorded into the
current profits and losses. The prowision of inventories except the spare parts
for decline in value is calculated by individual inventory 1tem. The provision for
decline in value of spare parts I1s calculated according to the actual situation
and the management’s estimations.

if the factors causing any write-down of the inventories disappeared, the
amount of write-down shall be resumed and be reversed from the provision to
the extent of provision previously made. The reversed amount shall be recorded
into the current profits and losses

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
Amortization of consumables

Consumables such as low-value consumables, packaging materials and
other consumables are amortized by lump-sum, units-production method or
equal instaliments method depending on their nature. The amounts of the
amortization are recorded in the cost of the related assets or the current profits
and losses.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments
(a) Initial Measurement

The initial cost of the long-term equity investment formed in the merger of an
enterprise, for the merger of enterprises under the same control, it shall, on the
date of merger, regard the share of the book value of the owner’s equity of the
merged enterprise as the initial cost of the long-term equity investment. For the
fong-term equity investment obtained by business combination not under the
same control, on the date of combination, the initial cost of long-term equity
investment shall be the summation of the assets paid, the liabilities incurred
or assumed and the equity securities issued by the acquirer in exchange for
the control on the acquire. The direct cost for the business combination of
the combining party shall, including the expenses for audit, assessment, legal
services and other administrative expenses be recorded into the profits and
losses at the current period. The transaction expenses of the issued equity
securities or hability securities for the consideration for the combination, shall
be recorded into the amount of initial measurement of the equity securities or
liability securities

Besides long-term equity investment obtained by business combination, the
initial cost of long-term equity investment obtained by other means shall be
ascertained in accordance with actual cash payment, the fair value of the equity
securities issued, the conventional value stipulated in the investment contract
or agreement ,etc. The initial cost consists of the expenses directly relevant to
the obtainment of the long-term equity investment, taxes and other necessary
expenses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)

(b)  Subsequent measurement of long-term equity investment and recognition of
investment income

A long-term equity investment of an investing enterprise, which does not do
joint control or does not have significant influences on the invested entity, and
has no quoted price in the active market and its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, are stated by employing cost method. A long-term equity investment
of the investing enterprise that does joint control or significant influences
over the invested entity shall be stated by employing equity method. A iong-
term equity investment of an investing enterprise, which is not to control the
invested enterprise, also does not do joint control or does not have significant
influences on the invested entity, and has quoted price in the active market and
its fair value can be reliably measured, are stated as available-for-sale financial
assets.

In addition, a tong-term equity investment of an investing enterprise, which is
able to control the invested enterprise, is stated by employing cost method.

1 The long-term equity investment stated by employing ¢ost method

The long-term equity investment stated by employing cost method shalt
be measured at initial iInvestment cost. In addition to the actual payment
when it obtains the investment and the cash dividends and profits
announced, which is included in consideration, the dividends or profits
declared to distribute by the invested entity shall be recognized as the
current investment income.

i A long-term equity investment of the investing enterprise stated by
employing equity method

When a long-term equity investment of the investing enterprise is stated
by employing equity method, if the initial cost of a long-term equity
investment is more than the investing enterprise’ attributable share
of the fair value of the invested entity's identifiable net assets for the
investment, the initial cost of the long-term equity investment may not
be adjusted. If the initial cost of a long-term equity mvestment is less
than the investing enterprise’ attributable share of the fair vaiue of the
invested entity's identifiable net assets for the investment, the difference
shall be recorded into the current profits and losses and the cost of the
long-term equ-ty investment shall be adjusted simultaneously
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement of long-term equity investment and recognition of
investment income (continued)

A long-term equity investment of the investing enterprise stated by
employing equity method (continued)

When a long-term equity investment of the invesling enterprise is
stated by employing equity method, the investment. profits or losses
1s recognized in accordance with the proportion of the net profits or
losses of the invested entity attributable to the Company. The investing
enterprise shall ascertain attributable to share of invested entity profit
on the ground of the fair value of all identifiable assets of the invested
entity when 1t obtains the investment and adjust the net profits of
the invested entity in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting periods adopted by the invested entity. All unrealized profits
of the intragroup with the join controlled companies and associates
which attnibutable to the Company shall be eliminated when preparing
the consolidated financial statements, then ascertained the investment
income. But if the adjustment for unrealized inter-group losses made to
the invested is losses of transfer of assets impairment, the losses shall
not be offset according to the principles of the Accounting Standards for
Enterprises No.6 — Impairment of Assets. For the other comprehensive
income of an investing enterprise, the book value of the long-term equity
investment shall be adjusted to the other comprehensive accordingly and
the amount of it shall be recorded into capital reserves
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)

(b)  Subsequent measurement of long-term equity Investment and recognition of
investment income (continued)

A long-term equity investment of the investing enterprise stated by
employing equity method (continued)

An investing enterprise shall recognize the net losses of the invested
enterprise until the book value of the long-term equity investment and
other long-term rights and Interests which substantially form the net
investment made to the invested entity are reduced to zero, unless
the investing enterprise has the obligation 1o undertake extra losses
In addition if the company has the extra obligation of its investing
enterpnise to undertake extra losses, the extra obligation shall be
recognized as projected liability according to expected obligation. If the
invested entity realizes any net profits In the subsequent periods, the
investing enterprise shall resume recognizing its attributable to share of
profits after its attributable share of profits offsets against its attributable
share of the un-recognized losses

The acquisition of minority interest

For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, as for
the difference between the new long-term equity investment because
of buying minonity interest and, the net assets, which is continuously
obtained since the acquisition date, be measured in accordance with new
proportions, the capital reserve shall be adjusted by the difference If the
capnal reserve 1s not sufficient to be offset, the retained earnings shall
be adjusted




169

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 |  Angung Stee) Company Limited

For the year 2010
{Expressed in RMB mifion

unless otherwise ndicated)

4.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b} Subsequent measurement of long-term equity investment and recognition of
investment income (continued)

V.

Disposition of a long-term equity investment

In the consolidated financial statements, where the parent company
dispose part of the parents’ long-term equity investment in each
subsidiary without losing control, the difference between the disposal
price and the net asset corresponding to the disposed long-term equity
investment shall be measured to equity. Where the parent company lost
the control of subsidiary companies because dispose part of the parents’
long-term equity investment, see Note. 4 (b).

The disposal of long-term equity investment by other means, for disposed
long-term equity investment, the difference between its book value and
the actual purchase price shall be included in the current profits and
losses. The portion of other comprehensive income previously included
in the owner's equity shall, when disposing of a long-term equity
investment measured by employing the equity method, be transferred
10 the current profits and losses according to a certain proportion. The
remaining equity shall be measured as long-term equity investment or
other related financial assets according to its book value and shall be
subsequently measured according to related accounting policy. The
remaining equity measured by employing the equity method changed
from the cost method shall be retrospective adjusted as prescribed in
these standards.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)
() Measurement standard of the joint control and significant influences

The term “control” refers to the power to determine the financial and operating
polices of an enterprise and obtain benefits from 1ts operating actwities of the
enterprise. The term “jomnt control” refers 1o the control over an economic
activity in accordance with the contracts and agreements, which does not exist
unless the investing parties of the economic actwity with one an assent on
sharing the control power over the relevant important financial and operating
decisions. The term “significant influences” refers to the power to participate
in making decisions on the financial and operating policies of an enterprise,
but not to conirol or do joint control together with other parties over the
formulation of these policies. When ascertaining whether or not it 1s able to
control or have significant influences on an invested entity. an enterprise shall
take the invested enterprises’ current convertible corporate bonds and current
executable warrants held by the investing enterprise and other parties, as well
as other potential factors concerning the voting rights into consideration.

(d) Method of impairment test and recognition of provision

On the balance sheet date, the Company shall check the long-term equity
investment whether there 15 a sign of imparment exists. If there is sign of
impairment, the estimated recoverable value shall be ascertained. When the
recoverable value of the assets is lower than 1ts book value, the Company shali
diminish the book vaiue to the recoverable value. The diminution amount shall
be recorded mto the profits and losses of the current period, and recognized
the corresponding provision for impairment.

Once any provision for impairment 1s recognized, it shall not be written back
within the assets’ usefu! life.

(11) Fixed assets
(a)  Recognition
Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group for use in the

production of goods, service rendering, and renting and operation management
purposes with useful fives over 1 year

by  Classification and depreciation method

The imtial measuremen: of a fixed asset shall be made at :ts cost and the
expected discard expenses shall be taken into consideration.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(11) Fixed assets (continued)

(b}

()

Classification and depreciation method (continued)

From the next month of bringing the fixed asset to the expected conditions for

~ use, the fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives. The useful lives, residual value rates of each class of fixed
assets are as follows:

Residual

Classes of fixed assets Useful lives value rate
(%)

Plants and buildings 10-20 years 3.5
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years 3-5
Other fixed assets 2-12 years 3-5

The “expected net salvage value” refers to the expected amount that an
enterprise may obtain from the current disposal of a fixed asset after deducting
the expected disposal expenses at the expiration of its expected useful hife.

Method of impairment test and measurement of provision

Method of impairment test and measurement of provision of fixed assets, see
Note 15.

The recognition criteria and valuation methods of fixed assets gained through
financial lease

The “finance lease” shall refer to a lease that has transferred in substance all
the risks and rewards related to the ownership of an asset. The ownership of
it may or may not eventually be transferred. In calculaung the depreciation of
a leased asset, the Group should adopt a depreciation policy for leased assets
consistent with that for depreciable assets which are owned by the lessee.
If it is reasonable to be certain that the lessee will obtain the ownership of
the leased asset when the lease term expires, the leased asset shall be fully
depreciated over its useful life. If 1t is not reasonable to be certain that the
lessee will obtan the ownership of the leased asset at the expiry of the lease
term, the leased asset shall be fully depreciated over the shorter one of the
lease term or its useful life
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

an

(12)

(13)

Fixed assets (continued)
(e)  Other explanations

The subsequent expenses related to a fixed asset, if the economic benefits
pertinent to the fixed asset are hikely to flow into the enterprise and the cost
of the fixed asset can be measured reliably, they shall be included in the cost
of fixed asset and the book valve of the replaced parts shall be derecognized;
otherwise, they shall be included in the current profits and losses:

When an enterpnse sells transfers or discards any fixed asset, or when any fixed
asset of an enterprise is damaged or destroyed, the enterprise shall deduct the
book value and relevant taxes from the disposal income, and include the excess
in the current profits and losses.

The useful life estimated residual values and depreciation method of the fixed
assets shall be checked at the end of each fiscal year, and be adjusted timely as
changes in accounting estimates if necessary.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction In progress shall be measured according to the actual
expenditure for the construction in progress. The cost includes the expenditure for
the construction in progress during the construction period, capitalized borrowing
costs before the construction is ready for its intended use and other related costs.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it 1s ready for its intended
use.

Method of impairment test and measurement of provision of construction in progress,
see Note 15.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs shall incude interest on borrowings, amortization of discounts
or premiums on borrowings, ancillary expenses, and exchange balance on foreign
currency borrowings. Where the borrowing costs incurred to an enterprise can be
directly attributable to the acquisition and construction or production of assets eligible
for capitalization, when the asset disbursements have aiready incurred, the borrowing
costs has already incurred; and The acquisition and construction or production
actvities which are recessary o prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
already started, it shall be capitalized and recorded into the costs of relevant assets.
When the qualified asset under acquisition and constructon or production is ready
for the intended use or sale, the capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be ceased.
Other borrowirg costs shall be recognized as expenses on the basis of the actual
amount incurred, and shall be recorded into the current profits and losses
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

13)

(14)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The actual cost incurred of the specially borrowed loan at the present period minus
the income of interests earned on the unused borrowing loans as a deposit in the
bank or as a temporary investment shall be capitalized. The Group shall calculate
and determine the to-be-capitalized amount of interests on the general borrowing by
multiplying the weighted average asset disbursement of the part of the accumulative
asset disbursements minus the specific borrowing by the capitalization rate of the
general borrowing used.

During the period of capitalization, the exchange balance on foreign currency
borrowings shall be capitalized. The exchange balance on foreign currency borrowings
shall be recorded into the current profits and losses.

The term “assets eligible for capitalization” shall refer to the fixed assets, investment
real estate, inventories and other assets, of which the acquisition and construction or
production may take quite a long time to get ready for its intended use or for sale.

Where the acquisition and construction or production of a qualified asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption period lasts for more than 3 months,
the capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be suspended. tll the acquisition and
construction or production of the asset restarts.

Intangible assets
(a)  Intangible assets

The term “intangible asset” refers to the identifiable non-monetary assets
possessed or controlled by enterprises which have no physical shape.

The intangible assets shall be initially measured according to its cost. The
subsequent expenses related to an intangible asset, if the economic benefits
related to intangible assets are likely to flow into the enterprise and the cost of
intangible assets can be measured reliably, they shall be included in the cost of
intangible asset. The other expenditures for an intangible item of an enterprise
shall all be recorded into the profit or loss for the current penod.

The right to use the land is usually stated as intangible assets. The expenditure
of the right to use the land and the cost of the constructions associated with
the plant which 1s self-developed, shall be stated as intangible assets or fixed
assets separately. If the buildings and plants are purchased, the relevant cost
shall be allocated among the right to use the land and plants; if it is hard to
allocate, all the relevant cost shall be stated just as fixed assets.

An enterprise shall amortize intangible assets with hmited service life from
the time when 1t is avallable for use. The reasonable amortization amount
of intangible assets shall be its cost minus the expected residual value. For
intangible assets with an impairment provision, the accumulative amount of
impairment provision shall be deducted from the cost as well. Intangible assets
with uncertain service life may not be amortized.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(14) Intangible assets (continued)
(3) Intangible assets {continued)

The Group shall, at least at the end of each year, check the service life and the
amortization method of intangible assets with definite service life and adjust
its service life as changes in accounting estimates if necessary. In addition an
enterprise shall check the service life of intangible assets with uncertain service
life during each accounting period. Where there are evidences to prove the
period of bringing economic benefits for the enterprise by the intangible assets
can be expected, it shall be estimated of its service life, and be treated as
intangible assets with certain service life

(b) Expenditures on research and development

Expenditures on an internal research and development project are classified
into expenditures on the research phase and expenditures on the development
phase. Research expenditures shall be recorded into current profits and loses
while development expenditures may be confirmed as intangible assets when
they satisfy the following conditions simultaneously, otherwise the development
expenditures shall be recorded into current profits and loses:

(1) 1t is feasible technically to finish intangible assets for use or sale;
(i) It is intended to finish and use or sell the intangible assets;

(i)  The usefulness of methods for intangible assets 1o generate economic
benefits shall be proved, including being abie to prove that there is
a potential market for the products manufactured by applying the
intangible assets or there 1s a potential market for the intangible assets
itself or the intangible assets will be used internally;

(iv) Itis able to finish the development of the intangible assets, and able
to use or sell the intangible assets, with the support of sufficient
technologies, financial resources and other resources;

(v) The development expenditures of the intangible assets can be reliably
measured.

If the expenditures can hardly be classified inio expenditures on the research
phase and expenditures on the development phase, they shall be recorded into
current profits and loses completely.

() Method of impairment test and measurement of provision

Method of impairment test and measurement of provision of intangible asseis,
see Note 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND AC_COUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(15)

Impairment of non-current and non-financial assets.

For the non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed assets, construction in
progress, intangible assets with limited service life, investment real estates measured
through the cost pattern, long-term equity investments in the subsidiary companies,
joint ventures and associated enterprises, an enterprise shall, on the day of balance
sheet, make a judgment on whether there is any sign of possible assets impairment
Where any evidence shows that there is possible assets impairment, the recoverable
amount of the assets shall be estimated and the enterprise shall make an impairment
test of assets. No matter whether there is any sign of possible assets impairment, the
business reputation formed by the merger of enterprises and intangible assets with
uncertain service lives shall be subject to impairment test every year

Where the measurement result of the recoverable amount indicates that an asset's
recoverable amount is lower than its carrying value, the reduced amount shall be
recognized as the loss of asset impairment and a provision for the asset impairment
shali be made accordingly. The recoverable amount shall be determined in light of
the higher one of the net amount of the fair value of the assets minus the disposal
expenses and the current value of the expected future cash flow of the assets. The net
amount of the fair value of an asset shall be ascertained according to the price of sales
agreement in fair transaction. Where there is no sales agreement but there is an active
market of assets, the net amount of the fair value of an asset shall be determined
according to the price bidden by the buyer of the asset. Where there is no sales
agreement and no active market of assets, the net amount of estimated farr value
of an asset shall be estimated in light of the best information available. The disposal
expenses shall include the relevant legal expenses, relevant taxes, truck age as well as
the direct expenses for bringing the assets into a marketable state. The current value
of the expected future cash flow of an asset shall be determined by the discounted
cash with an appropriate discount rate, on the basis of the expected future cash flow
generated during the continuous use or final disposal of an asset Where there is any
evidence indicating a possible impairment of assets, the enterprise shall, on the basis
of single item assets, estimate the recoverable amount. Where it is difficult to do so, it
shall determine the recoverable amount of the group assets on the basis of the asset
group to which the asset belongs. The term “combination of group assets” refers to
the minimum combination of group assets formed by several asset groups.

Once any loss of asset impairment is recognized, 1t shall not be switched back in the
future accounting periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(16)

7

Estimated Liability

The obligation, pertinent to Contingencies, shall be recognized as estimated liability
when the following conditions are satisfied simultaneously:

[0] That obligation is a current obligation of the Group,

(i) It is likely to cause any economic benefit to flow out of the enterprise as a
result of performance of the cbligation;

(i) The amount of the obligation can be measured in a reliable way.

The estimated liability shall be initially measured in accordance with the best
estimate of the necessary expenses for the performance of the current obligation
on the balance sheet date. To determine the best estimate, the Group shall fully
take the risks, uncertainty, time value of money, and other factors pertinent to the
contingencies into consideration,

When all or some of the expenses necessary for the liquidation of an estimated debts
of an enterprise is expected to be compensated by a third party, the compensation
should be separately recognized as an asset only when it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be obtained. The amount recognized for the reimbursement should
not exceed the book value of the estimated debts.

Revenue

(a) Revenue from selling goods

The revenue from selling goods shall be recognized when the following
conditions are met simultaneously:

1) The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to the buyer by the Group,

(i) The Group retains neither continuous management right that usually
keeps relation with the ownership nor effective control over the sold
goods,

(i1 The relevant amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(iv) 1t is probable that relevant economic benefit will flow into the Group;

(v} The costs of seiling goods, incurred or will incur, can be measured
reliably

The Group recognized the revenue from selling goods based on fair value of
amount that received or receivable on the contract or agreement
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(17) Revenue (continued)

(b}

()

Revenue from rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of service can be
estimated reliably, revenue from the rendering of service shall be recognized
in the income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction based on the proportion of services performed to date to the total
services to be performed.

The outcome of a transaction concerning the providing of labor services can be
measured in a reliable way, means that the following conditions shall be met
simultaneously:

(i) The amount of revenue can be measured in a reliable way;
(i) The relevant economic benefits are likely to flow into the enterprise;

(i)  The schedule of completion under the transaction can be confirmed in a
reliable way;

(iv)  The costs incurred or to be incurred in the transaction can be measured
in a reliable way

Where the outcome of service rendering cannot be estimated reliably, revenues
are recognized to the extent that the costs incurred that are expected to be
recoverable, and an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss as service
cost; and the service shall be stated as current expense. if the costs incurred are
not expected to be recoverable, no service revenue is recognized

Where a contract or agreement signed between enterprises concerns selling
goods and providing of labor services, if the part of sale of goods and the part
of providing labor services can be distinguished from each other and can be
measured respectively, the part of sate of goods shall be conducted as selling
goods and the part of providing labor services shall be conducted as providing
labor services. if the part of selling goods and the part of providing labor
services cannot be distinguished from each other, or if the part of sale of goods
and the part of providing labor services can be distinguished from each other
but could not be measured respectively, both parts shall be conducted as selling
goods.

Royalty revenue

The amount of royalty revenue should be measured and confirmed through
accrual basis accounting in accordance with the relevant contract or agreement
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(17) Revenue (continued)
{d)  Interest revenue

The amount of interest revenue should be measured and confirmed in
accordance with the length of time for which the Group's cash is used by
others and the effective interest rate;

(18) Government grants

Government grants is the monetary or non-monetary assets received from government,
not including the capital investment by government as an investor. Government
subsidies consist of the government subsidies pertinent to assets and government
subsidies pertinent to income

If government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount that is received or receivable. If a government grant 1s in the form of
a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at its fair value. if its fair value
cannot be obtained in a reliable way, it shall be measured at its nominal amount. The
government grants measured at its nominal amount shall be directly included in the
current profits and losses.

Government grant pertinent to an asset is recognized initially as deferred income and
amortized to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset.
A grant that compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent
periods is recognized initially as deferred income and recognized in profit or loss in
the same periods in which the expenses are recognized. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses incurred is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

If 1t 15 necessary to refund any government subsidy which has been recognized, it shall
be treated respectively in accordance with the circumstances as follows:

) If there is the deferred income concerned, the book balance of the deferred
income shall be offset against, but the excessive part shall be included in the
current profits and losses;

(2)  If there is no deferred income concerned to the government subsidy, it shall be
directly included in the current profiis and losses
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(19) Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities

(a)

b)

Current income taxes

On the balance sheet day, the current income tax liabilities (or assets) incurred
in the current perniod or prior periods shall be measured in light of the expected
payable (refundable) amount of income taxes according to the tax law. The
taxable income of enterprises, the basis of the measurement of the income tax,
shall be measured according to the adjusted accounting profit before tax for
the year by tax low.

Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities

Where there is temporary difference resulted from the difference between the

carrying amounts of the assets, liabilities or items that is not recognized as asset

or liability but can ascertain its tax base according to the tax law and their tax
base, the deferred income tax assets or the deferred income tax liabilities shall
be ascertained using balance sheet liability method

Except for the deferred income tax liabilities arising from the following -

transactions, an enterprise shall recognize the deferred income tax liabilities
arising from all taxable temporary differences:

i The initial recognition of business reputation;

ii The initial recognition of assets or liabilities arising from the following
transactions which are simultaneously featured by the following:

(i) The transaction is not business comb:nation;

(i) At the time of transaction, the accounting profits will not be
affected, nor will the taxatle amount (or the deductible loss) be
affected.

In addition, the taxable temporary differences related to the investments
of subsidiary companies, associated enterprises and joint controlled
enterprises shall recognize corresponding deferred income tax liabilities.
However, those that can simultaneously meet the following conditions
shall be excluded:

(0] The investing enterprise can contro. the time of the reverse of
temporary differences;

(i1} The temporary differences are unlikely to be reversed in the
excepted future,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

(19) Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

{b) Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

The initial recognition of assets or liabilities arising from the following
transactions which are simultaneously featured by the following:
({continued)

An enterprise shall recognize the deferred income tax liabilities arising
from a deductible temporary difference to the extent of the amount
of the taxable income which it is most likely to obtain and which can
be deducted from the deductible temporary difference. However, the
deferred income tax assets, which are ansing from the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities during a transaction which is simultaneously
featured by the following, shall not be recognized:

0] This transaction is not business combination;

@)} At the time of transaction, the accounting profits will not be
affected, nor will the taxable amount (or the deductible loss) be
affected.

Where the deductible temporary difference related to the investments
of the subsidiary companies, associated enterprises and joint controlled
enterprises can meet the following requirements simultaneously, the
enterprise shall recognize the corresponding deferred income tax assets:

(1) The temporary differences are likely to be reversed in the expected
future;

(11} It is likely to acquire any amount of taxable income tax that may
be used for making up the deductible temporary differences

As for any deductible loss or tax deduction that can be carried forward
to the next year, the corresponding deferred income tax assets shall be
determined to the extent that the amount of future taxable income to be
offset by the deductible loss or tax deduction to be likely obtained.

On the balance sheet day, the deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities shall be measured at the tax rate applicable to the
period during which the assets are expected to be recovered or the
liabilities are expected 1o be settled.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets shall be reexamined
on balance sheet day. If it is unlikely to obtain sufficient taxable income
taxes to offset the benefit of the deferred income tax assets, the carrying
amount of the deferred income tax assets shall be written down. When
itis probable to obtain sufficient taxable income taxes, such write-down
amount shall be subsequently reversed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
{continued)

(19) Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

e}

Income tax expenses
The income tax expenses include current income tax and deferred income tax.

The current income tax and deferred income tax, related to the transaction of
other comprehensive income or recorded into share holds’ equity, is recognized
as other comprehensive income or recorded into share holds’ equity, and the
deferred income tax of consolidation is adjusted as the book value of goodwill.
The other income tax and deferred income tax is recorded into current profits
or losses.

(20) Leases

The "finance lease” shall refer to a lease that has transferred in substance all the risks
and rewards related to the ownership of an asset. The ownership of it may or may not
eventually be transferred. The term “operating lease” shall refer to a lease other than
a financing lease.

(a)

(b)

The Group recorded operating leases as lessee

The rents from operating leases shall be recorded by the lessee in the relevant
asset costs or the profits and losses of the current period by using the straight-
line method over each period of the lease term. The initial direct costs incurred
by a lessee shall be recognized as the profits and losses of the current penod.
The contingent rents shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the current
period 1n which they actually arise.

The Group recorded operating leases as lessor

The rents from operating leases shall be recorded in the profits and losses of
the current penod by using the straight-line method over each period of the
lease term, the initial direct costs incurred to a lessor shall be recorded into the
profits and losses of the current period. The contingent rents shall be recorded
into the profits and losses of the current period in which they actually arise
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(20) Leases (continued)

(e}

(d)

The Group recorded finance leases as lessee

On the lease beginning date, a lessee shall record the lower one of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments
on the lease beginning date as the entering value in an account, recognize the
amount of the minimum lease payments as the entering value in an account
of long-term account payable, and treat the balance between the recorded
amount of the leased asset and the long-term account payable as unrecognized
financing charges. In addition, the negotiation and signing of the lease occurs
during the lease contract may be attributable to the leased items are also
included in the initial direct costs of leased assets. Minimum lease payments
net of finance charges not recognized should be listed in long-term liabilities,
respectively, and the balance due within one year term liabilities.

The lessee shall adopt the effective interest rate method to calculate and
recognize the financing charges in the current period. The contingent rents
shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the current period in which they
actually arise.

The Group recorded financial leasing as lessor

On the beginning date of the lease term, a lessor shall recognize the sum
of the minimum lease receipts on the lease beginning date and the initial
direct costs as the entering value in the account of the financing lease values
receivable, and record the unguaranteed residual value at the same time. The
balance between the sum of the minimum lease receipts, the initial direct costs
and the unguaranteed residual value, and the sum of their present values shall
be recognized as unrealized financing income. finance lease receivables net of
unearned finance income, respectively, should be listed in the balance of long-
term receivables due within one year and long-term receivables.

The lessor shall calculate the unrealized financing income at the current period
by adopting the effective interest rate method. The contingent rents shall be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period in which they actually
arise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

21

(22)

(23)

(24)

Employee compensation

During the accounting period of the employees providing services to the Group, the
enterprise shall recognize the compensation payable as liabilities.

As required, the Group participated in the workers’ Socal Security System set up by
government, including pensions, medical insurance, housing fund and other social
security system, the corresponding expenditure is included in the cost of related assets
or the profit or loss when arising

Before the lifting of the employment contracts of labor relations with employees, or
encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy offer of compensation proposal,
if the Group has a formal termination of employment relationship or a voluntary
reduction will be implemented immediately, while the company cannot unilaterally
withdraw from the termination or reduction of the proposed scheme, confirmed
the cancellation of Ilabor relations with employees expected habilties arising from
compensation and profit or loss.

The early retirement plan adopts the same principles as termination benefits. The
Group will provide services 1o workers to stop the normal retirement date within the
period to be paid back to pay salaries and social insurance, subject to the conditions
expected 10 be recognized in profit or loss (termination benefits)

Changes of the Significant accounting policies and estimates

In the year of 2010, the Group made no changes of the Significant accounting policies
and estimates.

Corrections of Prior Period Errors
In the year of 2010, the Group made no Corrections of Prior Period Errors.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In application of the accounting policies, for the uncertainty of business operation, the
Company needs 10 determine, estimate, or make assumption on the book value of
report subjects which are not able to be precisely measured.

These determinations, estimations, or assumptions are made upon the Company’s
experiences and with references to other relative factors. They will affect the report
value of revenue, expenses, assets and liabliies and the disclosure of contingent
liabilties on the balance sheet date However, their uncertainty may results In
significant adjustment of the book value of assets or liabilities afiected in the future.

The Company performs geriodic revision on the above determinations, estimations, and
assumptions on the basis of constant operation. When a change in accounting estimation
is just influencing the current term, its influenced amount is recognized in the current
term. When a change is influencing not only the current term but also the future terms,
its influenced amount is recognized in the current term and also the future terms.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(24) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)

-On the balance sheet date, the Group financial statements required crnitical judgments,
estimates and assumptions are as follows:

(a)

(b}

©

Provision for bad debts

The Group use allowance method to state bad debt losses according to the
accounting policies of accounts receivable. Impairment of receivables 1s based
on the assessment of the recoverability of accounts receivable. Identification of
impairment of receivables requires management judgments and estimates. The
differences between actual results and the original estimate will affect the book
value of accounts receivable as well as the recognition or reversal of provision
for bad debts in the period in which the estimate I1s changed

Provision for inventories

According to the inventory accounting policy, the Group adopts the lower

of cost and net reakzable value method to state inventories, and recognizes
provision for inventories on the condition that the cost of them is higher on
the net realizable value or they are slow moving or obsolete. Inventories to
net realizable value are based on the evaluation of inventories sold and its net
realizable value. Identification of inventories requires management to make
judgments and estimates on the basis of obtaining conclusive evidence, and
considering the purpose of holding inventory and the events after balance
sheet date Actual results and the differences between the original estimates
will be changed during the estimated book value of inventories and inventory
impairment provision or reversed. The differences between actual results and
the original estimate will affect the book value of inventories as well as the
recognition or reversal of provision for inventories in the period in which the
estimate is changed

Impairment of financial assets available for sale

The Group determines whether the impairment of financial assets available for
sale to a large extent depending on management’s judgments and assumptions,
and to determine whether the impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement. In the process of making the judgments and assumptions, the Group
is required to assess to what extent the fair value is lower than the investment
cost and the duration of it, as well as the financial position and short-term
business outlook, including industry conditions, technological change, the credit
rating, default rates, and counterparty risk, of the object to be invested
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(24) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)

()

Impairment of non-financial non-current assets

The Group determined whether there is evidence of possibie impairment for
non-current assets except financial assets on the balance sheet date. Intangible
assets of indefinite useful Iife, in addition to annual impairment tests, when 1t
exists signs of impairment, it is tested for impairment. In addition to financial
assets other than ron-current assets, when there are indications that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, impairment testing

When the asset or asset group’s carrying value exceeds 1ts recoverable amount,
being the higher between the net of fair value minus the disposal costs and the
present vatue of expected future cash flows, impairment has occurred.

The net of fair value minus the disposal costs, 1s recognized by taking away the
directly attributable incremental costs of the disposal of assets from the trade
price in fair trade of similar assets or observable market price.

It is required to make sigmificant judgments on the yield, price, reiated operating
costs of the assets (or assets group) and the discount rate used to calculate
the present value when estimating the present value of the cash flows. The
Group estimates the recoverable amount by using of all relevant information
obtainable, including the forecast of yield, price, and related operating costs on
the basis of reasonable and supportable assumptions.

Depreciation and amortization

The Group’s fixed assets and intangible assets, after taking the residual value
Into account, are depreciaied and amortized with the straight-line method
in their useful lives. The Group regularly review the service life to determine
depreciation and amortization costs In each reporting pernod. The Group
determine the useful Iife of assets on the basis of experience of similar assets as
well as expected technical updates. if the estimates are changed significantly,
the depreciation and amortization costs will be adjusted in the future

Deferred tax assets

If 1t is likely to obtain sufficient taxable income taxes to offset the berefit
deductible, the Group confirmed ali the unused tax tosses into the deferred
income tax assets. In créer 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets, the
Group’s management is required to use large judgments as well as tax planning
strategies to estimate the time and amount of the occurrence of the taxable
profits i the future
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

(24) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)

(9)

(h)

0}

income tax

There are some transactions whose ultimate tax treatment exist some
uncertainties in the ordinary business activities of the Group. Whether part of the
project ¢an be deducted from the benefit taxable is needed to be approved by
tax authorities. If there is difference between final results identified and initially
estimated, the difference will be effect current income tax and deferred tax.

Early retirement benefits and supplemental retirement benefits

The amount of early retirement benefits of the Group and supplementary
retirement benefit expenses and liabilities is determined, the amount determined
based on various assumptions. These assumptions include the discount rate, the
average medical cost growth, the retired officers and retired officers’ subsidy
rate and other factors. Differences in actual results and assumptions will be
recognized immediately in the event of the year and included in cost. Although
management believes that reasonable assumptions have been used, but the
actual experience of values and changes in assumptions will affect the balance
of the company’s early retirement benefits and additional retirement benefits
costs and liabilities.

Estimated liabilities

The Group use contract article, the existing knowledge and historical
experience, 10 recognize the provision for product quality assurance, expected
contract losses, and penalty resulted in delayed delivery. On the condition that
such contingent matters has formed a present obligation which is expected to
give nse to an outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the Group recognize
the best estimate of expenditure needed in settle of relenant current obligation
as accrued liabilities. Recognition and measurement of liabilities is expected to
rely heavily on management's judgments. In the judging process, the Group
need evaluation such contingencies related risks, uncertainties and the time
value of money and other factors.

5. TAXATION

Principal tax and tax rate

Type of tax

Taxation basis

VAT
Business tax

City construction and maintenance tax,

Education surcharge and local
education surcharge
Corporate income tax
Custom duty

17% of taxable income tess input VAT
3%-5% of taxable income
7%. 3% .1% of circulating tax paid

25% of taxable income
5%-15% of FOB
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(1) Subsidiary

(@)  Subsidiaries acquired by set up method

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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6. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1)  Subsidiary (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries acquired by business combination not under common control

Acwl
ionsmt Ot
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loss of minerity
[nterests excaed
Incuded In Deductble  squity obtained
The proportion  The Proportion consolidated Minorty minorty by owinority
Full name of shareholdng  of voting-right fatements inkerest inerest shareholders
%) (%}
Tagn Axgang Tuate (o
Rolied Sreets G:oup Limrad 50 0 Yes 21

Tianjin Tiantie was established jointly by the Group and Tianjin metallurgical
Metallurgical Holding (“Tiantie Group”).The proportion of shareholding of two
parts is 50% respectively. According to the Articles of Tianjin Tiantie. Tiantie's
financial and operational policy is in conformance with that of the Group
Chairman of the board is recommended by the Group. The board consists
of nine directors of which five are recommended by the Group and four are
recommended by the Tiantie Group (Resolution of the board passed by agreed
over half of the directors of board). Financial controller is recommended by the
Group

For above-listed reasons, the Group has control power over the Ttanjin Tiantie,
so Tianjin Tiantie is included among consolidation scope.
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6. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(2) The change of the consolidation scope

Angang Putian is a newly established subsidiary and included among consolidation
scope

(3) Subsidiaries that included in consolidation scope first time this year

Net assets at the Net profits of
Name end of the year the year
Angang Putian 794 (6)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the notes below(including notes to parent financial statements), unless otherwise special
indicated, the end of the year s 31 Dec 2010, the beginning of the year 15 1 Jan. 2010, “this
year” is twelve months ended on 31 Dec. 2010, “last year” is twelve months ended on 31
Dec. 2009.

(1) CASH AT BANKS AND ON HAND

Ending Beginning
items balance balance
Cash on hand 1 1
Cash at banks 2,975 1,542
Other monetary capital 675 699
Total : 3,651 2,242

Note: Cash at banks and on hand this year increased by 63% comparing with last year, was
mainly because of the increase of net cash inflow from operat:ng activities

(2) BILLS RECEIVABLE

(a) Classification of btills receivable

Ending 3eginning
Items balance balance
Bank accepiance bills 3,703 3,396
Total 3,703 3,396

(b)  As at the end of the year, ro bills receivable i1s used for morigage.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) gueses mmamion

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2)

(3)

BILLS RECEIVABLE (continued)

©) For this year, there was no bills receivable transferred 10 accounts receivable
due to that the issuer is unable to honour 1ts commitment.

(d)  Outstanding undue endorsed bills (the top five by significant amount)

Whether
Issuer tssuing date  bssuing date Balance  de-recognition  Notes
Zhefiang Xingrssteel Hokding Juito Dec 2010 Jan to Jun 2011 434 Yes
Growp Co., Ltd
Manfu Shoucheng (Bentd Ju o Dec 2010 an to May 2011 295 Yes
Industrie! Co., Ltd
Kaihuaa {Group) Co., Ud Aug to Dec 2010 an to jun 2011 0 Yes
Kaian Eneegy & Chemical July to Dec 2010 Jan to Jun 2011 142 Yes
Limited Company
CITK finzhou fenoalioy Co , Ltd Aug to Nov 2010 Feb to May 2011 131 Yes
Total 1.212
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(a)  Classified by account nature
Ending balance
Book balance Bad debt provision
Items Balance  Percentage Balance  Percentage
(%) (%)

Accounts recevable wiih significant single

amount on which bad debt provision

made indwidually 1,836 89
Other accounts recenable with

insgnificant single accounts on which

bad debt provision made indvidually 25 1

Total 2,061 100
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(3}

(b}

(d)

Classified by account nature (continued)

Beginning balance
Book balance Bad debt provision
ltems Balance  Percentage Balance  Percentage
(%) (%)

Accounts recetvable with significant

single amount on which

bad debt provision made individually 1,676 95
Other accounts recevable with

insignificant single accounts on which

bad debt provision made indwvidually 94 S
Totat 1,770 100

The aging analysis of accounts receivable

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Aging Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
(%) (%)

Within 1 year 2,054 100 1,764 100

1 to 2 years 3 2

2 10 3 years 1 1

Over 3 years 3 3

Total 2,061 100 1,770 100

Bad debt provision accrued at the end of the year

The management considered that significant accounts recewvable could be
recovered and the debtors are able to honour their commitment, so bad debt

provision rate 1s relatively low

The total amounts of accounts receivable due from shareholders with more
than 5% (including 5%) voting shares of the Group at the end of the year is

disclosed as follows:

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Bad debt Bad debt
Debtor Balance  provision Balance provision
Angang Halding 2
Total 2
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(e)

As at 31 Dec. 2010, the total amount of accounts receivable due from the

Group'’s top five debtors is disclosed as follows:

Debtors Relationship Amounts  Duration Percentage
(%)
Angang Group International Trade Fellow subsidiary 192 Witin 2 month 38
Comoration{*Angang Trade"}
FAW Puzchasing Center Third party 803 Within 3 month pL)
Shenzhven Southesn CMC Eastern Logsties Therd party 135 Within 2 month 8
Equipment Manufacturing Co., Uid
Angang Thyssensupp steel delivery Co., LTD. Jointly controlled 69 Wahin 2 month 3
(*Angang Changchun’) enterprse
Xinhui CIMC Container Co, Ltd Theed party S8 Within 2 month 3
Total 1,558 1%
(e)  The related parties transactions disclosed in Note: 9(6)
(4) OTHER RECEIVABLES
(a)  Classified by account nature
Ending balance
Book balance Bad debt provision
Type Amount  Percentage Amount  Percentage
(%) (%)
Other accounts receivable with
insignificant single accounts on which
bad debt provision made indwidually 15 100
Total 15 100
Beginning balance
Book balance Bad debt prowision
Type Amount  Percentage Amount  Percentage
(%) (%)
Other accounts receivable with
insignificant single accounts on which
bad debt piovision made individually 19 100
Total 19 100
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7. NOTES TO CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(4) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)  The aging analysis of other receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance

Aging Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage

(%) (%)
Within 1 year 13 87 19 100
110 2 years 2 13
210 3 years .
Over 3 years
Total 15 100 19 100

() Bad debt provision accrued at the end of the year
The management considered that significant accounts receivable could be
recovered and the debtors are able to honor their commitment, so bad debt
provision rate s relatively low.

1d) The company do not nas the total amount of accounts other receivable due
from shareholders with more than 5% (including 5%) voung shares of the
Group at the end of the year.

(5) PREPAYMENTS

(a) The aging analysis of prepayments

Ending balance Beginning balance

Aging Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage

(%) (%)
Within 1 year 7988 95 5,241 85
110 2 years 14 2 521
2 10 3 years 235 3 450 7
Over 3 years 13
Total ) 8,380 100 6212 100

Note: The prepayments aged more than one year were prepaid to Angang Trade for
importing equipment and spare parts
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(5)

(6)

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(b)  As at 31 Dec. 2010, top five debtors were as follows:
Reason for
Debtors Relationship Amounts  Aging unsettiement
Angang Trade Feltow subsidiary 6,245  Within undue
3 years
Tianjin Tiantie Metalurgy Trade Group Third party 368 Within undue
Co, ld 1 years
China First Heavy Industries (Group) Co., Ltd  Third party 304 Within undue
. 3 years
MCC Coking And Refractory Engineesing Third party 267 Within undue
Consutting Co. 1 yeass
fengli Group Co, Ltd Third party 102 Within undue
1 years
Total 1.286
(¢©)  The Group has no prepayments due from shareholders with more than 5%
(including 5%) of the voting shares of the Group at the end of the year
INVENTORIES
(a) Analysis of inventories by types

Ending balance

Provision for

diminution

of inventory Carrying
items Book value value value
Raw materials 4,206 378 3,828
Work in progress 3,645 114 3,531
Finished goods 2,004 73 1,931
Consumables 1,382 1,382
Spare parts 2,457 2,457
Materials in transit
QOutsourcing materia: 5 5
Total 13,699 565 13,134
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(6) INVENTORIES (continued)
(a) Analysis of inventories by types (continued)

Beginning balance

Provision for

diminution

of inventory Carrying
Items Book value value value
Raw materials 2,681 23 2,658
Work 1n progress 2.671 10 2,661
Finished goods 1,580 9 1.571
Consumables 1,285 1,285
Spare parts 2,468 2,468
Materials in transit -4 4
QOutsourcing materiat 1M 11
Total 10,700 42 10,658

(b) Analysis of movement on provision for diminution in value of inventories

Decrease of the year

Provision
Beginning  withdrawn Watten Written Ending
tems balance  for the year back off balance
Raw materals 23 710 355 3718
Work in progress 10 n 267 114
Finished goods 9 213 149 73
Total 42 1,294 m 565

(<) Analysis of provisions for diminution in value of inventories

(i) The market price of steel products dropped this year which resulted in
the net realizable value of finished goods and the relevant raw materials
1s lower than the cost; therefore, provision for diminution in value of
inventories 1s made at the end of the year

(i) The reason that provision for diminution in vaiue of tnventories decreased

was due to corresponding products had been sold, so the relevant
provision had peen transferred 1o cost of sales
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

@)

@)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Availabte-for-sale equity instrument 179 161
Total 179 161

Note: The ending balance was increasea by 11% due to the Group subscribed 10 million A
share common stock of Zhuzhou Smelter Group Ltd through non-public offering, market
value of the stock was 161 million at the end of last year (RMB 16 16 per share), market
value cf the stock was 179 million at the end of the year. (RMB 17 92 per share)

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT

(a) Analysis of long-term equity investments by types

Beginning  Increase of  Decrease of Ending
Type balance the year the year balance
Investment in jointly cont:olled enterprises 934 318 6 1,43
Investment In associates 465 97 4 488
Other equity investments 230 25 255
Less. Provision for impairment of

long-term equrty investment

Total 1,629 437 80 1,986
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(b)  Details for long-term equity investments

Name of investee

Accounting
method

Il
investment
cost

Beginning
balance

Vahiation of
the year

Ending
balance

ANSC-TKS Gakanizing Co.,
Lid ("ANSC-TKS®)

ANSC-Dachuan Heavy
tndustries Datian Steel
Product Processing and

Distribution Group Limited

{"ANSC-Dachuan®)
Changchun FAM Steel
Processing and

Drstribution Group limited

(*Changchun FAM*)

Equity method

Equity method

Equity method

ANSC-TKS Changchun Steef Equity method

Logistis Co, Ltd
(" TKAS-5SC*)

TKAS Angang Shenyang
Steel Product Processing
and Distribution

Group Limited {*Angang
Shenyang”)

Egurty method

{Changchun) Taitored Blanks Equity method

Ltd ("TKAS"}
Angang entity group

packing belt Co., Ltd

{“Entity Packing”)

Equity method

Angang Finance Corporation Equity method

Tanyn Tantie Binhai

Metaltuigical Industry Co

Ltd. {*Binhai industry*)
WISDRI Engineering and
Research Incorporation
umited{"WISDRI")
Heilongjiang Longmay
Mining Group Co., Utd
{"Longmay Group™)

Equity method

Cost method

Cost method

533

190

45

43

315

3%

220

652

198

53

3

43

220

m

n

25

924

209

43

55

w

3

20

Total

1,629
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(8) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(b) Details for long-term equity investments (continued)

Hote for
differance
between
The  proportions Provision for
The  proportion  of voting- impairment
proportionof  of voting-  rights and  Provision for accrued Cash
Name Of investee Shareholding nights shareholding  impairment this year dwidends
%) %)
ANSC-TXS 50 50
ANSC-Dachuar 50 S0
Changchun SAM 56 £ 3
TKAS-$SC S0 50
Angang Shenyag 30 30 1
KAS 45 45 H
fatty Packing 30 30
Angaig Fna~ce i € 66
snhe Iadusty 30 0
WISD3I ? 7 15
longmay Group 1 1 1
(2] 9
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(e}

INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTERPRISES AND ASSOCIATES

(i) Particulars of jointly controlied enterprises of the Group.

™ The
proportion  progortion
hgmin  lagal Katwe of Regitered - of share ol votg-
Hameof irveswe  Type Axce rpresacte ke apul kg g
~ o)
AT Soosongn Daun towr fcher  Suel 03 ) 50
Cocpentwe pracessg méiken
exse
AR Dacean Limaec Labéy Jdan un Dagry Stoed presing (L3 %) 9 0
£ adsax mion
Congha M Seosongn Cangran LB Steel ANB30 374 50 50
Cocpertine produciin o
v prowmsng
a8
TEAS3SC Seosongn Crangchun wang Stee’ prxessng un 53 52
Coperaive Yepng nd e mioa
Yeaur
Total  Total net Total
Total assets liabilities assets at revenue  Net profit
Name attheend attheend theendof during during
of investee of the year of the year the year this year  this year
ANSC-TKS 2,797 913 1,884 4394 511
ANSC-Dachuan 1,880 1,462 418 2,552 22
Changchun FAM 372 238 134 815 35
TKAS-S5C 387 292 95 1,046 23
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) eeesen e mion
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uniess otherwrse indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(8) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(¢ INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTERPRISES AND ASSOCIATES
{continued)

(i) Particulars of associates of the Group

e ™
progortion  proportion
hghvitn  Lagal tatare of tghtod  ofdure ol wting-
Menolimesee  Type Fxe representztie  boskwess aptal bokding rights
~ &
gy Sy U lbdy ey 2w Taored barks 83 » »
N Giop Gange prxcessng [ -3
TRAS oduegn et (g Mg Stze prxessing us01e & &
Ve Mrine and logsc mion
faaey Patng Umted by Arshan ™ Patagrg sl DMAST » 0
Grap Gagu el arc ool mio:
pxessng
Mpghuce  Umdloby  Avae Y Cpost e RMBIN0 » 0
Comoaton Grow wanr mion
bt sty I lbey i 1 beg Sece nes S »
Crp mon
Total  Total net Total
Total assets  liabilities  assets at revenue  Net profit
Name attheend attheend the end of in the in the

of investee of the year of the year the year this year this year

Angang

Shenyang 252 202 S0 619 2
TKAS 191 68 123 558 40
Entity Packing 38 17 N 24 )
Angang Finance 20,483 18,443 2,040 598 381
Binhai Industry 54 37 17 144 10
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e wsmica NO1€S TO The Financial Statements (continued)

unless otherwise indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(9) FIXED ASSETS

(3)  Analysis of fixed assets

Begnning tnciease of  Decrease of €nding
Items balance the year the year Balance
1. Cost 11,357 10,501 m 81,747
Of which. Buildings and Plants 21,403 3,256 g 24,650
Machineries and equipment 52,343 6,545 %0 58,798
Others 361 700 2 4299
2. Accumulated deprediation 23424 1010 7 30,360
Ot which: Buikdings and Plants 4207 1,262 13 5456
Machineries and Equipment 17.601 5,310 46 22,865
Others 1616 438 15 2,039
3. Net book value 53,933 3.491 37 57,387
Of which' Buildings and Plants 12.1% 1.994 (@) 19,194
Machineries and equipment 34,742 1235 L] 35933
Others 1,995 262 3) 2,260
4. Provision for impairment 128 4 12 120
Of which: Buildings and Pants 16 2 "
Machineries and equipment 109 4 10 103
QOthers 3 3
S. Book value 53,805 57,267
Of which: Buildings and Pants 17,180 19,180
Machineries and equpment 34633 35,830
Others 1992 2,257

Note: i The depreciation of this year was 7,010 million

i During this year, the cost of construction in progress transferred into fixed
assets was 10,450 million

in According 1o the expert opinion of the asset management departments,
provision {or impairment 5 inade for the fixed assets, which could not bring
economic benefits 10 the enterpnse. due to technological obsolescence,
damage or other reasons, and the provision amount to the difference
between the carrying amoun: and recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount was calculated based on estimated net cash flows arising from the 151
normal uvsage dunng the estimated useful life and the asset disposal
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) epese m s e

unless otherwmse indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(9) FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(b)  Temporarily idle fixed assets

Acamulated  Provision for

htems Cost  deprediation impairment Book value Notes
Buildings and Plants 2 2 Renovation
Machineries and

Equipment 87 45 32 10 Renovation
Others 14 1" 3 Renovation
Total 103 56 35 12

() The Group had no financial leased fixed asset from others on 31 Dec. 2010.

{d) Operating leased fixed asset to others

Ending 8eginning
tems book value book value
Buildings and Plants 34 36
Machineries and Equipment S S
Total 39 41
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(a)

Analysis of construction in progress

Ending balance 3egraing bilerce
Provision for frovs.on for

Items. Book balance  impairment  Book vakie  Sock balace rp2dmet bock valuz
Tiarte oot 141 1424 1875 818
Bapngq.en propct 1466 1,466 38 ERL
Puian cald reling proect 294 84
+agh c3panuty od 1207 sdken

sieel prod.csen e a8 43 2988 2.558
Chemca pient eroveson 4 4 2 2
New 4254 a~d 74 frnace 8 8 165 165
38 aasirg mack e (3] (23] 187 187
Seamiess 177 cevolean ppedne m 24 20 200
W e 0790006 | £2 o7 V3L0R 1 1 326 32
Tryge- orcdutet 11 89 194 194
{ertial dowe® stzion 3 3 30 0
Cortr xus -0 £ o2 of wesizn

dsyat " 1" H H
Oters 1,099 1,099 11 13¢5
"ol s 51 '0.58 *5.588
Note: 1 Construction in progress this year decreased by 50% comparing with

last year, was mainly because of part of the construction in progress is
transferred to fixed assets when 1t is completed

2 Part of the Thantie project construction in progress was mortgaged by the
Group as guarantee 10 repay bank loans. Disclosed in Note 7(16)
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7.

For the year 2010
essed in RM8 mithon
unless othenwrse indicated)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

(b)

Change in main project of construction in progress

Transferred
Beginning  Increase of  into fixed Other Ending
ttems Budget balance the year aset decrease balance
Tiarbe prciect 6,34 1875 1,82 1694 S 144
Bayuquan progct 3837 3240 13 3.466 3 1466
Aulian cold 1olhag project 350 3 24
High aab 1ty cole 121G slicoa 3400 2983 % 3153 4
sizel procucdon kne
Chemical plant renovation 258 2 2 4
New 40.58 nd 74 fuvace i 165 i 173 8
3# asing machire 5% 187 30 514
Seamlas 177 petroleum prpeline 17 200 u wm
Wire production lae renovation 629 326 267 92 1
Cryger prodacer 518 194 52 57 1]
Certral power station 30 301 18 kAl 3
Conbauous rolkng Ine of western m 5 ] n
dsa
Others 1105 % 193 3 109
Total 10.56¢ SAJE 10,450 39 5277
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s NOtEs To The Financial Statements (continued)
uness therse mdicared)
7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(10) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)
(b)  Change in main project of construction in progress (continued)
Acaumulated

apitafized Of whidy
bortowing apitalized  Gpitasintion  Expenditure Project Resource

fems cost this yer nte of budget pogress of apita
%) %) %)
Tenue pogect 151 102 53 8 1B Seli-fnanong.
23ruquan progect 1475 9 S04 85 85 Setfranong,
Specid
borowngs,
bauae st
2utian o 10kng project 33 3 48 bl 3 Sefffnanang,
Borrowiags
Hygh capadiity coid rotag s kos b ¥ 49 87 87 Seli-faarong,
Ste¢’ prodaciion ke
Cremad plart r2n0vavon Hi o (] % Setfaancng
New 41,58 anc M fmace n S ¢%0 % R Selffaenong
34 castng macrne 4 i 4% 63 63 Seff-fmancrg
Seaziess 177 pesoleun pipetre 3 9 49 90 0 Sell-fnexng
W.re procLchon 12 eI0va0n x® hi 4% 87 g Sehhrareng
Oxygen producet ) 5 o % % Sethbnarang
Centrat power stavon n 5 49 85 85 Sif-fnancng
Czobrcs ol g I re of n 4% n 7 eifwunag
wester Csingt

Ottes m [ Self-‘inancg,
BorrowGs

Totd 2418 435

Note: The self-financing consisted of non-special borrowings and gains from operating

(&) As at 31 Dec 2010, no book value of construction in progress was higher than
its realizable value
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For the year 2010
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unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(11)

(12)

CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL

Beginning Increase of  Decrease of Ending
Project balance the year the year balance
Special matenats 3 124 125 2
Speqial equipment 233 3,547 4833 1,045
Total 2334 3671 4958 . 1,047

Note: The ending balance of construction material was decreased by 55% comparing with the
beginning balance due to the reduction of project recipients.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Beginning Increase of  Deciease of Ending
Items balance the year the year balance
1. Total cost 1,680 n 1152
Land use rights 7639 93 1,692
software 9 19 8
Non-patented technology 32 n
2. Accumuiative amortization 619 166 85
Land use rights 593 156 749
software 7 S 12
industrial technology 19 5 A
3. Total net book value 7,061 (94) 6,967
Land use tights 7,046 (103} 6,943
software 2 14 16
Non-patented technology 13 5 8
4. Total provision for impairment
1and use rights
software
Non-patented techaclogy
5. Total book value 7,061 6,97
Land use fights 7,046 6,943
software 2 16
Non-patented technology 13 8

Note: The amortization amount was 166 million this year
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7.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(13) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

(a)

Recognized deferred income tax assets

Ending balance

Recognized deferred income 1ax assets and deferred income tax hiabilities

Beginning balance

Temporary
difference Temporary
Deferred or Deferred difference or
income tax  deductible income tax  deductible
ftems assets loss assets loss
Provision for diminution in

value of inventories 14 565 10 42
Provision for impairment

agamst fixed assets 30 120 2 128
Accumulated depreciation of

fixed asset 5 18 5 22
Adjusment for unrealized inter-

Group profit 20 81 28 12
Salaries payable 42 169 46 182
Termination benefits 16 65 25 102
Employee training expenses 14 S 10 39
Deductible tosses 1,125 4,501 915 3,659
Government gani 36 143 28 12
Safety production expense 18 70 13 50
Total 1,447 S.787 1,12 4,448

Note: Deferred income tax assets increased by 30% comparing with last year,
was mainly because of the increase of provision for diminution in value of

inventories and deductible losses
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continueo) seeses mams mmion

(Expressed in RM8 mitbon
unless otherwse indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(13) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
(continued)

(a)  Recognized deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax labilities
(continued)

(i) Recognized deferred income tax liabilities

Ending balance Beginning balance
Temporary
difference Temporary
Deferred or Deferred  difference or
income tax  deductible income tax  deductible
items assets loss assets loss
Fan value variation on
available-for-sale financial
asset 25 99 20 81
Capitalized borrowing cost
of general purpose loan 34 135 4 162
Adjustment for unrealized
inter-Group profit 2 8
Total 61 2 61 243

(b} As at 31 Dec 2010, there was no temporary difference or deductible loss in
connection with which the deferred income tax assets was not recognized

(14) PROVISIONS FOR IMPAIRMENT

Beginning Provision Decrease Ending
Items balance for this year Written back  Written off balance
Provision for diminution in
value of inventories 4 1,294 m 565
Provision for impairment against
fixed assets 128 4 12 120
Total 170 1,298 783 685

(15) ASSETS WITH LIMITED PROPRIETARY RIGHTS OR USE RIGHTS

Disclosed in Note 7(10) and (16)
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(16) SHORT-TERM LOANS

Ending 8eginning
Items balance balance
Mortgage (Note i) 200
Guaranteed loans (Note i} 1,895
Credit loan 8,300 13,710
Total 10,395 13,710
Note: . The mortgage of 200 million at the end of the year 15 loaned by Tianjin Tiantie

from Tianjin Binhar Rural Commercial Bank. and part of the Tiantie project’s
construction in progress was mortgaged as collateral, of which the book value is
717 million and the mortgage term is from 31 Oct.2010 to 30 Oct.2011

il The guaranteed loans were used In Tiantie project, and provided guarantee by
Tiantie Group

(17) BILLS PAYABLE

Ending Beginning
Classification of bills balance balance
Bank acceptance bills 4,879 " 3,509
Total - 4,879 3,509
Note: 1. The amount that would be due within the next accounting year was 4,879miflion

ii. The bills payable increased by 39% comparing with last year, was mainly because
of the increase of bills payable for purchasing fuel
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ssed in RMB mithon
unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(18) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

(3)  Accounts payable classified according to nature

Beginning
Items balance
Accounts payable for purchasing 2,918
Construction cost 300
Operation expenses on supporting
production 49
Freight 28
Others 23
Total 3,318

Note: The accounts payable increased by 41% comparing with last year, was mainly
because of the increase of accounts payable for purchasing raw fuel

(b} Accounts payable to shareholders with mcre than 5% (inclusive) voting shares
of the Group and the related parties at the end of the year is disclosed in Note

9(6).

(c)  There was no significant accounts payable aged over 1 year at the end of the

year

(19) ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

(a)  Advances from customers classified according to natures

. Beginning
items balance
Sales of products 5,942
Total 5.942

(b}  Advances from shareholders with more than 5% (inclusive) voting shares of the
Group and the related parties at the end of the year is disclosed in Note 9(6)

(¢}  There were no significant advances from customers aged over 1 year at the end

of the year.
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7.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(20) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

@n

Accrued
Beginning  during this  Paid during Ending
Items balance year this year balance
1. Salaries, bonus and allowance 236 1,560 1,560 236
2. Staff weliare 267 267
3. Social insurance 563 563
Including: Medical insurance 143 143
Basic Pension 'nsurance 312 312
Annuity payment 59 59
Unemployment insurance 31 3
Stafé and worker' injury
Insurance 18 18
4. Housing fund 205 205
5. Labor union fee and staff training fee S3 54 49 S8
6. Termination benefits 37 112 21 28
7. Others 50 50
Total 326 2,811 2,815 322

Note: Salaries, bonus and allowance would be paid in January 2011. Termination benefits and

labor union fee and sta!f rraimng fee would be paid in 2011

TAX AND SURCHARGES PAYABLE

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
VAT (1,850) (2,113)
Enterprise income tax (24) (203)
Individual income tax 7 9
City maintenance and construction tax 21 14
Education surcharges 9 6
Local education surcharges 3 2
Property tax .8 7
Land use tax 1
Stamp tax 6 S
Taxes to be deducted (16) (24)
Total (1.836) (2,296)
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) eese s mon
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(22)

(23)

INTEREST PAYABLE

Ending Beginning
items balance balance
Interest on short-term financing bonds 79
Total 79

Note: The interest payable was from the interest on short-term financing bonds issued by the
Company and the amount of the short-term financing bonds was 3,000 million

OTHER PAYABLES

(a)  Analysis of other payables

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Construction costs 1,074 1,611
Guarantee -project/spare pars . 863 1,055
The Energy-saving and Emission-
reducing funds transferred
by Angang Holding 278 193
Performance guarantee 209 162
Freight charges 114 95
Deposit for steel shelves 66 43
Withholding tax payable 1 17 .
Others 132 107
- total 2,737 3,283

(b)  Other payables 1o shareholders with more than 5% (inclusive) voting shares of
the Group and the related parties at the end of the year 1s disclosed in Note
(6).
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(23) OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

()

(a)

(b)

The large-amount other payables aged over 1 year

Whether paid
after the
balance sheet
Creditor Amount  Reason date
MCC Coking And Refraciory
Engineering Consulting Co 78  Project quahty margin No
Three of China Metallurgikal
Group Co, Ltd 75 Project quality margin No
Angang Construction Group 72 Project quality margin No
Northeast Geotechnical
Investigation Co., Ltd 35 Project quality margin No
Others 182
Total a2
(24) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES DUE WITHIN 1 YEAR
Long-term liability due within 1 year
Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Long-term loans due within 1 year
(Note 7(26)) 5,961 7,653
Total 5,961 7,653
Long-term loans due within 1 year
0] Analysis of long-term loans due within 1 year
Ending Beginning
items balance balance
Guaranteed loans(Note.(26) } 1,420 315
Credit loans 4,541 7.338
Total 5,961 7,653
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(24) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES DUE WITHIN 1 YEAR (continued) .
(b)  Long-term loans due within 1 year (continued)
(i) Top five long-term loans due within 1 year

Commence Expiry  Intetest  Ending Beginning
Loaner date date rate  balance  balance
(%)

Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Anshan

Branch jul 2008 Dec 2011 5.18 700 700
Bank of China Anshan

Branch Sep 2008  Sep 2011 486 700 700
Bank of China Anshan

Bianch jul 2008l 2011 486 600 600
China Constuction Bank

Anshan City Angang

Branch Jd 2008 Jul 2011 486 500 500
Angang Finance Jun 2008 Jun 2011 486 500 500
Total 3,000 3,000

(i}  There were no overdue loans in long-term loans due within 1 year.
(25) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Ending  Beginning

Item Content balance balance

Deferred income  Government grants corresponding 23 4?2
to asset

Short-term 3,000

financing bonds

Total 3,023 42

Note: The ending balance of other current |abilities was increased comparing with the
beginning balance due to the increase of 3,000 million of short-term financing bonds
issued by the Group
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e wmiee NOtES TO The Financial Statements (continued)
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(26) LONG-TERM LOANS

(a) Classification of Long-term loans

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Guaranteed loans 4,080
Credit loans 14,598 19,155
Less: Long-term loans due
within 1 year (Note: 7(24)) 5,961 7.653
Total 12,717 11,502

Note: Guaranteed loans were used in renovating equipment, Putian cold project and
Tiantie project. The Tiantie group and Angang group provided guarantee

(b) Top five long-term loans
Commence Expiry  Interest  Ending Beginning

Loaner date date rate  balance  balance
(%)

China Construction Bank

Tianjin Nankai Park Branch Aug 2006  Jan 2014 594 840 1120
Industnial and Commercial Bank of

China Anshan Branch Jul 2008 Dec 2012 5.18 700 700
Industnal and-Commercial Bank of

China Anshan 8ranch Jul 2008 Jul 2013 518 700 700
China Development Bank

Lizoning Branch 2007 Oct 2016 5.53 500 500
Industrial and Commercial Bank of

China Anshan Branch Jun 2010 May 2013 486 400
Total 3,140 3,020
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(27) OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(28)

166

Ending  Beginning

Item Content balance balance
Deferred income  Government granis corresponding 554 74
10 asset
Termination Employee benefits payable aged over 37 65
benefits 1 year
Total 591 139

Note: The increase of the other non-current liabilities comparing with last year was mainly
because of the increase of government grants corresponding to asset.

SHARE CAPITAL

Segnang babe Varguon ¢! ihe years ) Ending balancs
Sy
translerred
e fiom.
new Bocxs wccmdred
Ttems. Ao, Sroporion caIes shares. td Others Sumotel  Amount Propoertion
{1) Orfrany A shares wit? cesitens.
o6 R
See-owned shaes 430 60 un ]
(21 Shares with non~2dr<lion o 92
3 0ranary A shaes. 188 B 1808 5
b. Foegn chares sled ovsas
Hdaw') 1026 15 1086 15
ol 1235 100 1.5 1
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(29) CAPITAL RESERVE

Beginning  Increase of  Decease of Ending
Items balance the year the year balance
Share premium 31439 31,439
Other capital reserve
Including" Fair value vanation on available-
for-sale financial asset n 13 84
Other changes in shareholders’ equity of the
invested entity 2 2)
Total 31,510 13 2 31,521
Note: i Reduction of other capital reserve was due to fair value change on available-for-

sale financial assets disclosed in the Note: 7 (7)

Other changes in shareholders’ equity of the invested entity this year was formed
from other changes in shareholders’ equity of the joint ventures companies under

the equity method

(30) SPECIAL RESERVE

Accrued
Beginning during  Paid during Ending
Items balance this year this year balance
Safe production expenses S0 32 2 70
Total 50 32 12 70
Note. The increase of special reserve was safe production expenses accrued this year
(31) SURPLUS RESERVE
Accrued
Beginning during  Paid during Ending
Items balance thrs year this year balance
Statutery surplus reserve 3,357 213 3,570
total 3,397 213 3,570
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Notes To The Financial Statements continued) gpese s mion

unless otherwise indicated)

7.

(32) UNDISTRIBUTED PROFIT

Changes of undistributed profit

Items

This year

Last year

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Appropriation
or distribution
propor tion

Undistributed profit at the end of
last year before adjustment
Adjustment for undistributed profit
at the beginning of the year
Undistributed profit at the beginning
of the year after adjustment
Add: Net profit attributable to
awners of parent company
dunng this year
Recovery of losses from
surplus teserve
Other transferred-in
Less' Appropniation of
statutory surplus reserve
Appropriation of discretionary
surplus reserve
Diidend to shareholder
Dividend of ordinary shares
transferred to share capital

10,280

10,280

2,039

213

434

11,144

11,149

1217

77

1,519

10%

Undistributed profit at the end
of the year

11,672

10,280
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(32) UNDISTRIBUTED PROFIT (continued)

(b)

Analysis of profit distribution

0}

(i)

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of 2009 reviewed and
approved of the profit distribution plan for 2009 on 18 June 2010, based
on the total share capital 7,234,807,847 shares as at 31 Dec. 2010. The
Company declared cash dividend of RMB 0.06 per share to the ordinary
shareholders, and distributed 369 million to ordinary A shareholders and
65 million to H shareholders respectively

The Board of Directors proposed on 29 Mar 2011 the distribution
of a cash dividend of RMBO.15 per share to the Company’s ordinary
shareholders, totaling RMB1,085 million. The proposat 1s subject to the
approval by the general meeting of shareholders. Such cash dividend has
not been recognized as a liability on the balance sheet date

(33) OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS

(a)

Operating income and operating costs

Items This year Last year
Operating income from main operation 92,212 70,057
Other operating inccme 219 69
Total 92,431 70,126
Operating costs from main operation 82,486 63,635
QOther operating costs 208 77
Total 82,694 63,712
Note:

The operating income increased by 32% comparing with last year. was mainly
due ‘o the increase of product sales and selling orices

The operating costs increased by 30% comparing with last year, was ma:nly due
to the increase of product sales and raw material purchase prices
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7.  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(33) OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS (continued)

(b) Main: operation classified according to industry

This year Last year
Operating Operating  Operating  Operating
income costs income costs
frommain  for main  from main for main
Name of industry operation  operation  operation  operation
ferrous metal smelting
and steel rolling process 92,212 82486 70,057 63,635
Total 92,212 82486 70,057 63,635
(<) Main operation classified according to products
This year tast year
Operating Operating  Operating  Operating
income costs income costs
frommain  for main  from main for main
Name of products operation  operation  operaton  operation
Hot rolled products 27,231 24,779 25,316 23,326
Cold rolled products 38,726 31,886 24,159 21,306
Medium -thick plate 15,008 14,857 10,405 9,518
Others 11,247 10,964 10,177 9,485
Total 92,212 82,486 70,057 63,635
(d)  Operating income according to regions
This year Last year
Operating Operating  Operating  Operating
income costs income costs
from main  *for main  from main for main
Regions operation  operation  operaton  operation
China 84,601 76,001 66,617 60,560
Overseas 7.830 6,693 3,509 3,182
Total 92431 82,694 70,126 63,712
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(33) OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS (continued)

(e)  Top five buyers

Sum of top

Period five buyers Proportion(%)

This year 21,755 24

Last year 14,848 21

(34) BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES
Items This year Last year
Resources tax and Business Tax 4 4
City maintenance and construction tax 173 10
Education surcharge and local
education surcharge 99 63

Custom duty 9 6
Total 285 183
Note:

i Business tax and surcharges paid complying with Note S
it Business tax and surcharges were increased by 56% comparing with last year due to the

increase of VAT resulted to the increase of city maintenance and construction tax and
education and local education surcharges
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(35)

(36)

SELLING EXPENSES

Items This year Last year
Packing expense 725 578
Delivery expense 484 257
Sales and service expense 108 60
Agency fee for commissioned sales 84 38
Employee benefits fees 35 30
Insurance expense 9 4
Warehouse storage expense 6 2
Others in 112
Total 1,622 1,081

Note: The selling expenses tncreased by S0%

comparing with last year, was mainly due to

the increase of related export expenses caused by the increase of the product sales and
export sales, the increase of ra: freight caused by the increase of settiement amount with
CIF; the increase of packing expense caused by the increase of unit packaging cost and
the increase of selling expenses causec by combining Tianjin Tiantie’s financial statement

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Items This year Last year
Repairs and maintenance 1,644 1,420
Employee benefits fees 526 452
Tax 329 300
Amortization 166 155
Depreciation 105 81
Assistance expenditure of production 92 83
Sewage fee 90 74
Computer maintenance expenditure 86 77
Security and firefighting expenses 69 61
Warehouse expenditure 61 67
Others 273 192
Total 3,441 2,962
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(ED)

(38)

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

items This year Last year
Interest expenses ’ 1,688 1,585
Less: Interest income 26 16
Less: Capitalization of interest 455 694
Exchange gain or loss (58) 5)
Less. Capitalization of exchange

gain of loss

Others 100 32
Total 1,249 902

Note: The financial expenses increased by 38% comparing with last year, was mainly due to
the decrease of capitalization of interest caused by decrease of project expenses and the
increase of ftnancial expenses caused by combining Tianjin Tiantie financial statement

INVESTMENT INCOME

(a) Statement on investment

Items This year Last year
Long-term equity investment income

mreasured by employing cost method 16 10
Long-term equity investment income

measured by employing equity method 393 176
Investment income from keeping

available-for-sale financial assets 2
Total a1 186

Note: There were no severe restrictions In the transfer of investment income to the

Group.
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(38) INVESTMENT INCOME (continued)

(b) Long-term equity 'nvestment income measured by employing cost method

Investee This year Last year
WISDRI ) 15 10
Longmay Group 1

Total 16 10

(<) Long-term equity investment income measured by employing equity method

Reason of
Investee This year Last year change
ANSC-TKS 258 72
Angang Finance 76 82
TKAS 18 6
Changchun FAM 17 5
TKAS-SSC 1 4
ANSC-Dachuan 11 7
Angang Shenyang 1 1
Entity Packing (2) m
Binhai Industry 3
Total 393 176 Note

Note: The investment income measured by employing equity method Increase was due
10 the investees’ net profit increased this year

(39) IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Investee This year Last year

Loss on diminution in value

of inventories 1,294 677
Loss on impairment cf fixed assets 4 6
Total 1,298 683

Note: The impairment losses increased by $50% were due to the provision for diminution in
value of invento-ies accrued more than last year
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(40) NON-OPERATING INCOME

The amount
recorded into
extraordinary

gains and

Items This year Last year losses
Total gains from disposal

of non-current assets 21 36 21
Including: Gains on

fixed assets scrapped 16 35 16
Other gains on disposal

of fixed assets S 1 )
Government grant {Disclosed

below: Details

of government grants) 117 15 17
Others 4 42 4
Total 142 93 142

Note The non-operating iIncome increased by 53% comparing with last year mainly due to the
increase of government grant.

Including: Details of government grants

Items This year Last year

R & D subsidy 77 1

Military project grants 40 4
Government supporting fund

to Bayuquan 7

Tiantie cold-rolled sheet project 3

* Total 17 15

175




»,

Angang Steel Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2010

o7

176

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) e s i

7.

essed #1 RMB miflion
unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Ca))

(42)

(43)

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
The amount
recorded into
extraordinary
gains and
Items This year Last year losses
Total loss on disposal of
non-current assets 35 39 35
Including: Loss on fixed
assels scrapped 34 38 34
Other loss on disposal of
fixed assets 1 1 1
Others 2 2
Total 37 39 37
INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Items This year Last year
Income tax calculated according to the Law
of Tax and relevant regulations 748 1
Adjustments on deferred income tax (340) 156
Total 408 157

Note: The income tax expenses increased by 160% due to the profit before income tax 1s more
than last year

BASIC EPS AND DILUTED EPS

The basic earnings per share shall be calculated by diwding the current net profits
belonging to the shareholders of ordinary shares by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares i1ssued 1o the public. In accordance with the specific terms and
clauses of the issuance contract, the number of newly issued ordinary shares shall be
calculated and decided as of the date of recewvable consideration {generaily the date
of issuance of stocks)

The numerator for the diluted earnings per share 1s the net profits belonging to the
shareholders of ordinary shares, modulate in accordance with the items as follows:

[0} The interests of the diluted potential ordinary shares determined to be expenses
in the current period;

(n) The gains or expenses resulted from the conversion of the diluted potential
ordinary shares; and

() The effects of the income tax on the aforesaid modulation shall be taken into
consideraticn
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(43) BASIC EPS AND DILUTED EPS (continued)

The denominator for the diluted earnings per share shall be the sum of the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the basic earnings per share and the weighted

average number of increased ordinary shares from assuming that
ordinary shares convert into ordinary shares.

the diluted potential

When calculating the weighted average number of increased ordinary shares resulted
from that the diluted potential ordinary shares convert into ordinary shares already
1ssued, the diluted potential ordinary shares issued in prior periods shall be supposed
to be converted at the beginning of the current period. The diluted potential ordinary
shares issued in the current period shall be supposed to be converted on the date of

issuance.
(a) Basic EPS and diluted EPS

This year
Profits of the reporting year Basic EPS  Diluted EPS

Last year
Basic EPS  Diluted EPS

Net profit atiributable to

ordinary shareholders 0.282 0.282
Net profit (exclusive of non-operating

profit) attributable to

ordinary shareholders 0.271 0.2

0.100 0100

0095 0095

(b)  Calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS

0] Calculation of the current net profits belonging to the shareholders of
ordinary shares when calculating the basic earnings per share:

Items This year Last year
Net profit attributable to

ordinary shareholders 2,039 727
Including: Net profit attributable

10 continuing operations 2,039 727
Net profit (exclusive of non-

operating profit) attributable

to ordinary shareholders 1,960 688
Including: Net profit attributable .

to continuing operations 1,960 688
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(43) BASIC EPS AND DILUTED EPS (continued)
(b) Calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS (continued)

(i1} Calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares ssued to
the public when calculating the basic earnings per share:

items This year Last year

The number of ordinary shares
issued to the public at the
beginning of the year 7,235 7,235
Plus:the weighted average
number of ordinary shares
issued dunng thus year
Minus:the weighted average
number of ordinary shares
repurchase during this year
The number of ordinary shares
1ssued 1o the public at the end
of the year 7,235 7,235

(i) As the Company does not have diluted potential ordinary shares, Basic
EPS the diluted EPS equals the basic EPS.

(44) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ltems This year Last year

1 Gain from the aval'able-for-sale financial assets 18 16
Minus tncome tax impact resulied from the :

available-for-sale financial assets H 29

Subtotal 13 87

2 The share of investee’ other comprehensive
income under equity method 2)
Minus: Income iax impact resulted from the share
of investee” other comprehensive income
under equity method

Subtotal (2)

Total 1 ' 87
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(45) THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(@)  Cash received relating to other operating activities

Items . This year Last year
Government grants 665 281
Others 7 1
Total 672 292

(b)  Cash paid relating to other operating activities

items This year Last year
Freight fee payments for others 465 245
Agency fee for commissioned sales 107 75
Sewage fee 90 74
Computer maintenance expenses 77 rAl
Security and firefighting expenses 63 63
Afforestation fees S3 35
Pipeline transportation expenses 16 24
Agency fee 12 20
Others 393 182
Total 1,276 789

(<) Cash received relating to other investing activities

items This year Last year
Income from trail run 59 529
interest revenue 28 17
Cash from Tianjin Tiantie

on consolidation date 1,184
Total 87 | 1,730

(d) Cash paid relating to other financing activities

items This year Last year

Payment to the banks of discourt
rate on bills payable 70 38

Total 70 38 179
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(46) SUPPLEMENT TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of net profit 1o cash flows from operating activities

Supplement This year Last year
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from
operating activities:
Net profit 1,950 686
Add: Provision for imparment 51§ {1,990
Depreciation of fixed assets 7,010 6.262
Amortization of intangible assets 166 155
Amortization of deferred expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, Intangible assets
and other non-current assets(*-" for gains) &)
Loss on scrap of fixed assets 18 3
toss on the change of fair value
financial expenses 1,219 898
Investment loss (411) (186)
Decrease in deferred tax assets("-* for increase) (335) 162
Increase in deferred tax liabilities("-~ for decrease) (5) (6)
Decrease in inventories (*-° for Increase) {2,938) 1.444
Decrease in operating receivables (*-° for increase} (2,788) (1,710
Increase in operating payables (*-~ for decrease) 4628 (1,222
Others 1 53
Net cash flow from operating activities 9,026 4,549
2. Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash at the end of the year 3,651 2242
Less: cash at the beginning of the year 2282 2974
Add. cash equivalents at the end of the year
Less: cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,409 (732)
Information on subsidiaries’ acquisition
Items This year Last year
1. The price of subsidiaries’ acquisition 1,407
2. Cash and cash equivalents paid for
subsidhary acquisition 432
Minus: Cash and cash equivalents held by subsidiary 1616
3. Net cash outflow for subsidiary acquisiton (1,184)
4. Net assets of the acquired subsidiaries 2814
Of which: Current assets 3812
Non-curtent assets 4363
Current liabilities 3,681
Non-cutrent habiities 1,680
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(46) SUPPLEMENT TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(<) Composition of cash and cash equivalents

Items This year Last year
1. Cash at bank and on hand 3,651 2,242
Of which. Cash 1 1
Bank deposits available 2,975 1,542
Other deposits available 675 699
2. Cash equivalents
Of which: Bond due within 3 months
3. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 3,651 2,242

8. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF ASSET SECURITIZATION
The Group had no operation about asset securtization this year.

9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS
(1) INFORMATION ON THE PARENT OF THE GROUP

Related Registration Legal The nature of
Group name relationship Group Type place representatives  business

Angang Holding  Parent Company ~ State owned Tie Xi Disnct Thang Xiaogang  Production and sale

Company Anshan Liaoning of steel and metal
Province products, steel
filament Tubes, and
metal structures
Registered The Group's Proportion of  Ultimate Organization
Group name Capital shareholding  voting-right controlling party Code
Angang Holding 10,794 67.29 6.29 Angang 241420014
. Hokding (Note)

Note: On July 28, 2010, Angang Holding has received a notice about the restructunng of
Angang Holding and Pangang Group Company Limited(“Pangang Group”) from the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administraion Commission of the state Council
(SASAC) which states that SASAC has agreed to the joint restructuring of Angang
Holding and Pangang Group (the “Joint Restructuring”) The Joint Restructuring
entails the establishment by SASAC (as the representative of the State Councillof a
new company, Angang Group Company(*Angang NewCo"), which will wholly own
Angang Holding and Pangang Group. As the parent of Angang Holding and Pangang
Group. Angang NewCo' registered cap:tal was 17,309.70 million. Angang Holding, the
controtling shareholder of the Company, became a wholly owned subsidiary of Angang
Group Company
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9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

)

3)

@

182

INFORMATION ON THE SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP

Disclosed in Note. 6(1).

INFORMATION ON THE JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTERPRISES AND

ASSOCIATES OF THE GROUP

Disclosed in Note. 7(8).

RELATED PARTIES WITHOUT CONTROL RELATIONSHIP

Name of enterprise

Relation with
the Company

Organization
code

ANSC-TKS

TKAS-SSC

Changchun FAM

ANSC-Dachuan

TKAS

Angang Finance

Binhai industry

Angang Trade

Angang Construction Group

Angang Heavy machine Co., Ltd

Angang Fire-resistant material Co

Angang Steel rope Co., Ltd.

Angang Mining Co.

Angang Entity Group

Angang House Property Co.

Angang Railway transport
facilities Construction Co

Angang real estate Co., Ltd

Angang mechanization loading Co.

Angang mine construction

Angang engineering technology
Co., Ltd

Angang tlectric Co., Lid

Angang Automation Co.

Angang Auto Transport Co., Ltd

Angang Reception Service Co.

Jointly controlled enterprise
Jointly controlled enterprise
Jointly controlled enterprise
Jointly controlled enterprise
Associate ’
Associate

Subsidiary's associate
Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

fFellow subsidiary

fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

71093688-2
785926056
76717649-0
75990387-0
767159789
1188857-2°
671473722
24142372-5
94129158-3
24150326-6
94126547-3
94126496-4
24150404-X
24142765-4
94126840-4

94121854-6
11886337-0
94126489-2

664557266

79159132-8
94126485-X
94126643-3
94126444-6
94121967-X
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(5) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related party transactions

0]

(i)

Purchase and recewe services from Angang Holding and its subsidiaries

This Year Last Year
: Percent
Percent of related
Pricing of related transactions
Contents Policy Amount transactions Amount (%)
Raw materials Note | 14,468 4 14,086 - 63
Ancillary matenals and

spase parts Note. il 1,653 12 1,460 13
Energy and power supplies - Note. u 191 3 1927 3
Support services Note. & 5,665 66 6,034 53

Total 23,757 23,507

Sales and render services to Angang Holding and its subsidiartes

Percent

Percent of related

Pricing of related transactions

Contents Policy Amount transactions Amount (%)

Products Note.v 9,225 10 6,09% 9

Scrap matenaks and Minus

Skeve powcer 122 8 123 95

Generd! servies Notevi 559 39 512 39
Total 9,906 6,731
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9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(5) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

[€)} Related party transactions {continued)}

(i1}

Sales and render services 10 Angang Holding and its subsidiaries
(continued)

Notes

i The purchase price, ascertained and modified on a semi-annual basis.
is mainty not higher than the average prices quoted to the Group for
importing principal raw matenals of similar quality plus freight charges
in the previous interim year and adjustment for grade. an extra 5%
discount on the importing average prices, Or the average prices charged
by independent suppliers plus 10% mark up of processing costs (if
applicable);

i The selling prices are not higher than the average prices charged to
independent customers for the preceding month.

i Mainly at state prices, operating costs plus 5% of gross profit margin.

iv At state prices, market prices, not higher than 1.5% of the commissions,
depreciation fees and maintenance costs, labour, materials and
management tees, and processing costs plus no more than 5% of the
gross margin

v The steel products and scrap materials are mainly at selling prices based
on the average prices charged to independent customers for the preceding
month or market prices. The basis of the price of the steel products
offered 10 Angang Holding for development of new products is, if there is
market price, at the market price, if there is no market price, at the cost
plus a reasonable profit

The minus sieve powder is at prices for sintered iron are less the cost of
sintering procedures performed by Angang Holding

Retired assets and idle assets are mainly at market prices or assessed
prices

vi At the state prices, operating costs plus 5% ot gross protit margin, or
market prices
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Notes Tb The Financial Statements (ontinued)

9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(5) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b}

©

(d)

Leases
Rental
Lease Lease income
Leasing starting expiring  ascertained Rental
Lessor Lessee assets date date basis income
The Company Angang Trade Building and Jan 2010 Dec 2010 Lease 1
machinery agreement
Guaranteed loans
Amount Starting Expiring Whether
Warrantor Warrantee Guaranteed date date futfilled
Angang Holding The Company 1,000 Aug 2008 Sep 2011 No
Angang Holding Angang Putian 1,100 Apr 2010 Jun 2013 No
Tiantie Group Tianjin Twantie 3815 Jan 2006 Jan 2014 No
Assets transferred
This year 1t year
Percent eicer:
of related of relatad
Transferred  Type Content Pricing policy Amount  transactions Anoint  raactons
(%) L)
Angang Pwchase  Fored asse’s, Market price 6 100 8 100
Holeing intaigle ssts,
(onskciion
N piogiess
ioai 65 8
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RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(5)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e}

)

Directors’ and supervisors' remunerations

The interval of remunerations This year Last year
Total 4 3
Including: (number)

Over 0 .20 million 8 6
0.15 to 0.20 million 1
0.10 to 0.15 million 2
within 0.10 milkon L] 10

QOther related parties transactions

(i} Received agency service from Angang Trade

The Group received agency services for domestic sales and export of
products amount to 6.76 million tons and 1.71 million tons respectively
for the year 2010 (7.30 million tons and 0.91 million tons for the year

2009).

[} Sales of products from The Group to the jointly controlled enterprises

and the associates
A Sales of products

Name of enterprise Sales in this year

Sales in Last year

ANSC-TKS 3,187
TKAS-SSC 459
Changchun FAM 94
Binhai Industry 3
TKAS 3
Tianjin Tiantie

1,720
297
73

14

3
1,136

B Agency service received from TKAS-SSC

The Group received agency services for domestic sales of products
from TKAS-SSC amount to RMB 5 mufiion tons for the year 2010

(2009: 1 miilion)

C. The Group received supporting services from Binhai Industry
amount to 95 million for the year 2010 (2009: 25 million)
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9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(5) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(f) Other related parties transactions {continued)

(i)  Loan deposit, interest paid into Angang Finance

Annual Opening Closing Terms of
Items interest rate balance Increased Decreased balance credit
Loan 431%4 86% 9.500 1800 10,100 1300 Cradit
Deposit 1,288 2807

The Group’s interest income of deposit from Angang finance was 11
million (for the year 2009: 8 million) and the interests for borrowing was
410 million {for the year 2009: 331 million).

(6) THE BALANCES OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(a) Accounts receivable and prepayment with related parties

Ending Beginning
items balance balance
Accounts receivable
Angang Trade 792 896
TKAS-SSC 69 98
Angang Heavy machine Co . Ltd 26 16
Angang Electric Co., Lid 3 3
Angang House Property Co. 5
Angang Holding 2
Other related parties 2 1
Total 892 1,021
Prepayment
Angang Trade 6,245 4,551
Angang Construction Group 101 2
Angang Automatism Co . 59 35
Angang Heavy machine Co., Ltd 26 10
Angang Engineering Technology

Co., Ld 15 28
Angang Electric Co., Ltd 2
Angang Entity Group 1
Binhai Industry 1
Total . 6,449 4627
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9. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(6) THE BALANCES OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(b)  Accounts payable and advance from customers with related parties

Ending Beginning

Items balance balance
Accounts payable
Angang Trade 38 1
Angang Entity Group 34 22
Angang Construction Group 27 12
Angang Mine 27
Angang Auto Transport Co., Lid 12 12
Angang Mine Construction Co. 12 4
Angang Holding 12 3
Binhai Industry 10 9
Angang Railway transport

facilities Construction Co. 6
Angang House Property Co. 5 4
Angang Steel rope Co., Ltd. 2 3
Angang Automatism Co 2 2
Angang Electric Co., Ltd 2 1
Angang Heavy machine Co., Ltd 1 1
Other related parties 1
Total 191 84
Advance from customers
Angang Trade 857 1,238
ANSC-TKS 381 366
Angang Construction Group 28 8
Changchun FAM 21 6
Angang Entity Group 13 7
Angang Anshan Mining Co. 6 7
Angang Steel rope Co, Ltd S 2
TKAS 1 2
Angang Holding 1
Total 1,313 1,636
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(6) THE BALANCES OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(b)  Accounts payable and advance from customers with related parties (continued)

Ending Beginning

Items balance balance
Other payables
Angang Holding 281 199
Angang Construction Group 206 322
Angang Trade 181 263
Angang Heavy machine Co., Ltd 43 47
Angang Engineering Technology

Co.. Ltd a1 21
Angang Entity Group 36 33
Angang Automatism Co 25 32
Binhat Industry 19
Angang Mine Construction Co. 17 2
Angang Auto Transport Co., Ltd 9 4
Angang Electric Co., Lid 8 17
Angang House Property Co. 7 9
Angang Railway transport

facilities Construction Co. 1
TKAS-S5C !
Total 873 970

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no share-based payment

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2010, there were no contingencies that need to be disclosed

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

(1)  SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Terms This year Last year

Investment contracts entered into but

not performed or performed partially 318 318
Construction and renovation contracts

entered into but not performed

or performed partially 3,985 2,764
Total 4,303 3,082
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT (continued)

(2) PERFORMANCE OF THE CAPITAL COMMITMENT OF LAST YEAR

The construction and renovation contracts signed 1n 2009 but not performed or
performed partially had been performed with 1,799 million in the year 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

1.  Description of important events after the balance sheet date

Since Jan 7. 2011, the outstanding shares of restricted stock held by the
company’s controliing shareholder-Angang Holding can be traded. The amount
of the outstanding shares wh.ch make up 60% of the total equity ratio was
4,340,884,709. Since this ifting of restrictions on sale, all of the shares held by
Angang Holding were the outstanding shares of non-restricted stock

The Company entered an agreement with the ventures of Angang Shenyang,
an associate of the Group, to inject additional capital of RMB11.55 million in
Angang Shenyang. The equity interest of Angang Shenyang held by the Group
would have no change after the additional capital injection. The Company
entered an agreement with the ventures of Angang Wuhan, to inject additrona:
capital of RMB48 million in Angang Wuhan. The Company injects additional
capital of RMB17.6023 muilion in Angang Wuhan with land of He Fer High and
New Techno'ogy Industnial Development Zone by its appraised value. The other
inject with cash.

The Company has entered into an agreement with the local authornty in Anhui,
Hefer Province to set up a wholly owned subsidiary in Anhui. In March 201°,
this wholly owned subsidiary has been set up with the total investment cost
amounted to RMB37.50 million

The Company entered two agreements with independent third parties to inject
RMB37.5 million and RMB151.20 million respectively in two joint venture
companies set up by these independent third parties. The Group would hold
15% equity interests each in these two joint venture companies after the capital
Injection.

The Company entered an agreement with Angang Holding and an tndependent
third party to set up a joint venture company in which the Group wculd
contribute RMB21 million ana hold 15% equity interests in this newly set up
joint venture company

2.  Description of profit distribution after the balance sheet date

See Note 7.(32).ii.
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14.

15.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTION

" Under the Angang Holding’s implementation program of the Annuity (Government made of

steel [2010] Note.15), discussed and adopied by Angang Holding's tenth seven employee
congress, states that Angang Holding implement annuity plan. This program has been
agreed by SASAC and recorded in the Department of Human Resources and Social Security.
The Company should pay for the annuity according to 4% of the total amount of average
salary of last year each month. The individual's according to the month quota of personal
account*1 {50% of the amount for persons with special difficulties) and shall be assumed
by themselves. Angang Holding established annuity council to be responsible for the daily
affairs, and the council shall select from the national authority qualified agencies through
bidding as a business account manager, investment managers and custodians.

m

2)

-NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT'S FINANCIAL REPORT

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Disclosed in note: 7(3)

OTHER RECEIVABLES

(a) Classified by account nature

Ending balance

Book balance Bad debt provision
Items Amount  Percentage Amount Percentage
(%) - - (%)
Other accounts receivable with
insignificant single accounts on
which bad debt provision
made individually 15 100
Total 15 100
Ending balance
Book batance Bad debt provision
Items Amount  Percentage Amount  Percentage
(%) (%)
Other accounts receivable with
insignificant single accounts on
which bad debt provision
made individually 12 100
Total 12 100
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15. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT'S FINANCIAL REPORT
(continued)
(2) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)  The aging analysis of other recewables

Ending balance Beginrung balance

Aging Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage

(%) (%)
Within 1 year 13 87 12 100
110 2 years 2 13
210 3 years
Over 3 years
Total 15 100 12 100

(3) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT

(a) Analysis of long-term equity investments by types

Beginning Increase of Decrease of Ending

Type balance the year the year balance
Investment in subsidiaries 1,467 800 2,267
Investment in jointly

controlled enterprises . 934 315 6 1,243
Investment in associates 463 94 74 483
Other equity investments 230 25 255
Less: Prowision for impairment of
long-term equtty investment
Total 3,004 1234 80 4,248

Note: The amount of long-term equity investment increased at the rate of
37%, mainly because of 800 million invested to Angang Putian and the
increase of the net income of associated and jointly-controlled company.
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15. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT’S FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes To The Financial Statements (continved)

(continued)

&

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(b)

Details for long-term equity investments

Intial

Accounting investment Beginning  Vasiation of Ending
Investee method cost balance the year balance
Angang Wuhan Cost method 60 60 60
Tan)in Tiantie Cost method 1.407 1,407 1,407
Angang PuTian Cost method 800 800 800
ANSC-TKS Equity method 533 652 m 924
ANSC-Dachuan tquity method 190 198 1t 209
Changchun FAM Equity method 45 53 14 67
TKAS-SSC Equity method 48 3 12 43
Angang Shenyang Equity method 14 13 13
TKAS £quity method kY 43 Q S5
Entrty Packing Equity method 1 9 ) 7
Angang Finance Equity method 315 398 10 408
WISDRI Cost method 35 10 5 35
Longmay Group Cost method 220 220 20
Total 3,094 114 4,248
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1S. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT’S FINANCIAL REPORT
(continued)

3

@)

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(b)

Details for long-term equity investments (continued)

tnvestes

Proportion
of
Shareholding
(%)

Proportion
of voting-
rights

(%} sharehoifing

Note for
difference
between
proportions

of voting- Provision
rights and for
impairment

Prowision for
impaiment
accrued
in the Cash
thisyear  dvidends

Angang Wehar
Tiar ia Tiante
A~garg Futien
ANSCATKS
ANSC-Dachuan
Changeh.m FAM
TCAS-SC
Anga~g Sheryang
TKAS

inuty Packing
Angang Fizance
WDRI
Loagmay Group

%0
50
10

Total

OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS

(a)

Operating income and operating cost

Items

This year

Last year

Operating income from main operation
Other operating income

89,995
38

69,428
4

Total

90,033

69,469

Operating costs for main operation
Other operating costs

80,230
57

62,938
50

Total

80,287

62,988
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

15. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL iTEMS OF PARENT'S FINANCIAL REPORT
(continued)

@

OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS (continued)

(b)

©

Main operation classified according to industry

This year Last year
Operating  Operating Operating Operating
income costs for income costs for
from main main  from main main
Industry nature operation  operation  operaton operation
steel rolling process 89,995 80,230 69,428 62,938
Total 89,995 80,230 69,428 62,938
Main operation classified according to product
This year ' Last year
Operating  Operating Operating Operating
income costs for income costs for
from main main  from main main
Product types operation  operation operation operation
Hot-rolled products 29,687 27,249 25,778 23,783
Cold-rolled products 34,053 27,160 23,068 20,152
Medium-thick plates 15,008 14,857 10,405 9,518
Others 11,247 10,964 10,177 9.485
Total 89,995 80,230 69,428 62,938
Operating income according to regions
This year Last year
Operating  Operating  Operating  Operating
income costs for income costs for
from main main  from main main
Regions operation  operation operation operation
China 82,203 73,594 65,960 59.836
overseas 7830 6,693 3,509 3152
Total 90,033 80,287 69,469 62,988
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15. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT’'S FINANCIAL REPORT
(continued)

(4) OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS (continued)

(e)  Top five buyers
Sum of top Proportion
Period five buyers (%)
This year 21,710 24
Last year 15,265 22
(5) INVESTMENT INCOME
(a) Statement on investment
Items ) This year Last year
Long-term equity nvesimen: iIncome
measured by employing cost method 16 10
Long-term equity investment income
measured by employing equity method 390 176
Investment income from keeping
available-for-sale financial assets 2
Total 408 186

(b)

Note: There were no severe restrictions in the transfer of investment ircome to the
Group

Long-term equity investrrent income measured by employing cost method

Investee This year Last year
WISDRI 15 10
Longmay Group 1

Total 16 10
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

15. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT'S FINANCIAL REPORT
(continued)

(5) INVESTMENT INCOME (continued)

(e}

Long-term equity investment income measured by employing equity method

Reason of
Investee This year Last year change
ANSC-TKS 258 72
Angang Finance 76 82
TKAS 18 6
Changchun FAM 17 5
TKAS-SSC 1" 4
ANSC-Dachuan " 7
Angang Shenyang 1 1
Entity Packing (2) 1)
Total 390 176 Note

Note: The investment income measured by employing equity method increase was due
10 the investees’ net profil increased this year
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15. NOTES TO PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF PARENT'S FINANCIAL REPORT

(continued)

(6) SUPPLEMENT TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Supplement This year Last year
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from
operating activities:
Net profit 2123 m
Add: Provision for impairment 518 (1,990)
Depreciation of fixed assets 6,754 6,213
Amortization of intangible assets 155 153
Amortization of deferred expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, Intangible assets
and other non-current assets(”-* for gains) 4)
Loss on scrap of fixed assets 18 3
Loss on the change of fair value
Financial expenses 1,128 880
Investment loss (408) (186)
Decrease in deferred tax assets (*-* for increase) {285) 189
Increase in deferred tax fiabilities
(" for deciease) N (6)
Decrease in inventories ("-* for increase) (2,795) 137
Decrease in operating receivables
(-~ for increase) (2.447) (1,917)
Increase in operating payables (*-* for decrease) 3,956 (1,003)
Others 3 S3
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,703 4,532
2. Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash at the end of the year 2,542 1,138
tess Cash at the beginning of the year 1138 2914
Add: Cash equwvalents at the end of the year
Less' Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,404 (1,776
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16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS

(§))

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES

Items Amounts Note
Gams/hosses from diposal of non<urrent assets [
Tax refund or exemption from unauthorzed approval of non-offical

approved document or contingency

Government grant which recorded into profitfoss of current year
except that relevant to enterprise opetation and in compliance
with govemment pokcies " 15

Capital occepation income from non-finanaat enterprise credited to
curtent ncome statement

Gains from the excess of the enterprise shave of the net fa value of
wdentifiable net assets over the cost of acquisibon of the
subsidiary, jonty controled entity and associate

Ganylsses from the exchange of non-monetary assets

Gangfiosses from trusted investment or assts of management

Losses on prowrsion for imparment of assets due to foice majewre
1. natural drsaster

Deit festructunng gains/kosses

Restrucuring expense, i.e. employee placement,

Integration costs etc

Ganslosses from the excess over far value of ar unfair sansaction

Cuirent net profithoss of subsidiary under the common cantrol
from the beginning of the year of consaidation
to the consolidadon date

Ganstosses from contingencies irrelevant to the normal operagons

Ivestraent income from dispose of trading fmancial assets, trading
financual liabilities and available-for-sale financial assets and gaing/
losses fiom vatiation of far value of trading financidl essets,
trading firancial abilities and avalable-or-sale financial assets
except the hedging relevant to the pancipal busness

Wiritten back of the piovision: for imparment of accouns receivable
under the independent test

Gainsfosses from trusted koan

Ganghoss from variation of faur value of investment property

Efiects of one-off adjustmert on cureent piofitoss in
accordance with axabon and accounting reguiations

Hosting income from entrused operations

Other non-operating income and expense Except above ’ -16 39
Cther extraord.nafy gains/ losses subtotal 105 ]
Efect on taxation % i)

Effect on minority .aterest (after tax)

Tota 79 39 199




O

Angang Steel Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2010

8%

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued) goesesmmismivon

ssed & RM8 miflon
unless otherwase indicated)

16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS (continued)

(1)

@)

200

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES

Note: "+" refer to gains or incomes, "-~ refer to losses or expenditures

The recogruizing of Company's non-recurring gains and losses comply with the
disclosure requirements of “explanatory announcement of Information Disclosures
of Companies Issuing Public Shares, No. 1: non-recurring gains and losses” (CSRC”

announcement [2009] No.43)

THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN IFRS AND PRC GAAP

The govp Attfbutable to ordinary shareholders.
Net profit Met avsats Metproft Nt assets
fndng  begincing Ending  Begning
Note Thsysx  Ustyes balance balince  Thyear  lastyewr datance dalance
Unoe: SRC GAAX 1954 686 5,345 $3.19%8 20 m 54,068 52432
Adusimet
~ Salety 0r00XIKH: EXer s ! x il 2 kil
— Deteed 1come W a5g's ] 6) ] 3] a3 ® ® (L)) (i)
— e 1 ety
contiold entdes L] H H
Ureat BASS 1965 107 5.3 53785 2654 e 54,852 52419
Note

i Pursuant to the interpretation to the enterprise accounting standard (CAI QI [2006]
No0.478), safe production provision should be accrued based on the production amount
or operating income by the Group related to the industry of mining, construction,
production of dangerous goods and road transport, but the provision could be recorded
to profit and loss only when they are actual paid under IFRSs ’

il Based on above-mentioned adjustments, deferred assets and income tax expense had
been recognized by liability method in light of PRC GAAP should not be recognized in
light of {FRSs.

fii According 1o the Law of the PRC on Chinese-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures (the ~Joint
Ventures Law”) and Regulations for the implemensation of the Joint Ventures Law, one
of the Group’s jointly controlled entities has transferred certain amount from the reserve
to staff payable which led to the Group’s share of net assets in the jointly controtled
entities decreased. Under IFRSs, the reserve could not transfer to the liabilities.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS (continued)

3)

ROE AND EPS
Weighted
average EPS (Yuan per share)
Profit in this year ROE Basic EPS Diluted EPS
Net profit attributable to ordinary shares 383 0.282 0.282
Net profit (exclusive of non-operating profit)
attributable to ordinary shares 3.68 0.271 0.2
Note:
[0} Weighted average ROE =P_j(Eo+NP+2+EIxMI+MD-nyMI+McgE_xM.+M,_‘)

(i)

P, refers to the net prefit attritutable to ordinary shares and net profit (exclusive of non-
operating profit) attributable to ordinary shares

NP refers to the net profit attributable to ordinary shares
E, refers to the net assets attnibutable to ordinary shares

E, refers 1o the additional of net assets attributable to ordinary shares resulted from
1ssuing the new shares or converting from convertible debentures in repornt period

E refers to the reduction of net assets attributable to ordinary shares resulted from share
repurchase or cash dividend in report penod

M, refers to the months of reporting period

M refers to the duration frcm the second month since the adaitional of share capital
occurred to the end of reporting period

MI refers to the duration from the second month since the share capital withdrawn
occurred to the end of reporting period

E, refers 10 the change of net assets resulted from other transaction and matters

M, refers to the duration from the second morth since the variation of net assets,

resulted form other transaction and matters occurred 1o the end of reporting period

Basic EPS and Diluted EPS disclosed in note 7(43;
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16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS (continued)

(@)

RISK ANALYSIS AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

There are following risks pursuant to the financial instrument adopted by the Group
— Credit nisk;

— Liquidity risk;

— Interest rate risk;

— Forexgn currency risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks
and their sources, the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risks, etc

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
nsks confronted by the Group, 10 set appropriate nisk limits and control program, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits Risk management policies end systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit sk 1s primarily attributable 1o receivables. Exposure to these
credit nisks are monitored by management on an ongoing basis.

In respect of recewvables, the Group has established a credit policy under which
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The Group requires most of the customers prepay full
amount either in cash or by issuing bills before deliverning goods to them
Recevables are due within 1 to 4 months from the date of billirg. Debtors with
overdue balances that are more than one month past are requested to settle all
outstanding batances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

Most of the Groun's customers have been transacting with the Group for many
years, and losses have occurred infrequently. In monitoring customer credit risk,
custorners are grouped according to some factors, such as ageing and maturity
date

As at 31 December 2010, there were no significant debtors that were past due
and impaired.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had a certain concentration of credit
risk, as 75.06% (2009. 93.63%) of the total accounts recewvable and other
recevables was due from the Group's top five buyers

The max:mum exposure to credit risk I1s represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance shee: The Group does not provice any other
guarantees resulted 11 credit risk
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS (continued)

@

RISK ANALYSIS AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group is responsible for their own cash management, including short term
investment for temporary cash redundancy and the raising of loans to satisfy
expected cash demands. The Group’s pohcy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realizable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

The interest-bearing financial instruments held by the Group on 31 December
2010 are set out at Note 7(1), (16), (24) and (26).,

Sensitivity analysis

in managing interest rate and foreign currency risks the Group aims to reduce
the impact of short-term fluctuations on the Group's earnings. Over the longer
term, however, permanent changes in foreign exchange and interest rates
would have an impact on earnings.

As at 31 December 2010, 1t 1s estimated that a general increase of one
percentage point in interest rates of cash at bank and on hand, short-term
loans, non-current liabilities due within 1 year, long-term borrowings and
long-term payables, with all other variables held constant, would decrease the
Group's net profit and equity by RMB 74 million {2009: 126 million).

The above sensitivity analysis has been ascertained assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred on the balance sheet date and had been applied
to the Group's exposure to interest rate risk for both derivative and non-
denvative financial instruments In existence at that date. The one percentage
point increase or decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the year until the next annual balance
sheet date. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2009.
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16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS (continued)

(4) RISK ANALYSIS AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group did not have a significant foreign currency risk exposure arising from
its exports products and importing raw material for production and equipment
for projects as the Group adopts locked exchanges rates to settle the amounts
with main export and import agent

0]

(i)

(i)

The Group's exposure to currency risk based on nominal amounts at 31
December 2010 is set out at Note 7(24) and (26)

The following are the significant exchange rates applied by the Group:
Reporting date

Average rate mid-spot rate
2010 2009 2010 2009

Japanese yen 0.0776 0.0731 0.0813 0.0738
Euro 8.92 9.53 8.81 9.78

Sensitivity analysis

A 5% appreciation cf the RMB against the Japanese yen, Euro and HK
dollar at 31 Dec 2010 would have decreased /increased equity and profit
or loss by the amount shown below:

Sharehoider’s Profit and
equities losses
(RMB Million)  (RMB Million)

31 Dec 2010 Japanese yen (3) (3)
Euro (1) ()}
31 Dec 2009 Japanese yen (10) (10)
Euro (1) (1)

A 5% depreciation of the RMB against the Japanese yen, Euro at 31
Dec 2010 would have had the equal but opposite effect on them to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

The above sensitivity analysis has been ascertained assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency nisk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The stated changes represent management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates over the year until
the next annual balarce sheet date. The analysis was performed on the
same basis for 2009
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16. SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS (continued)

(4) RISK ANALYSIS AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e} Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities as
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position approximate thew

respective fair values.

(S) ANALYSIS OF THE UNUSUAL SITUATION ABOUT MAIN ITEMS OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Items on cash flow statement

(i) The net cash infiow from operating activities this year was RMB 3,026 million,
comparing with 4,549 million of the last year, was mainly because of the
increasing of net profits and the increasing of operating payables.

(i)  The net cash outflow from financing activities this year was RMB 2,867 miilion,

comparing with 68 million of the last year, was mainly because the cash paid
for settling debt 1s more than the cash received from borrowings.

205




Angang Steel Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2010

206

Independent Auditor’s Report.

RSM Nelson Wheeler

hREE(EE)EHAERHR
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ANGANG STEEL COMPANY LIMITED
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Angang Steel Company Limited (“the
Company”) and 1ts subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 208 to
275, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consohidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended.
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory inforimation.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and far view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Compantes Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from mater.al
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinicn on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and 1o report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability 10 any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducied our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing 1ssued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comp'y with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the
consclidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In mak:ng those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financ.al statements

We believe that the audi evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis
for our audit opinion,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group's results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disctosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement For the yer cnded 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Note RMB million RMB milfion
(restated)
Turnover 5 92,212 70,057
Cost of sales (85,409) (65.721)
Sales related taxes (285) (183)
Gross profit 6,518 4,153
Other operating profit, net 6 266 103
Distribution and other operating expenses (1,622) (1,081)
Administrative expenses (1,844) (1,539)
Profit from operations 3,318 1,636
finance costs 8(a) (1,333) (940)
Share of profits of jointly controlled entities 16 297 88
Share of profits of associates 17 96 88
Profit before tax 2,378 872
Income iax expense 7(a) (413) (165)
Profit for the year 8(b) 1,965 707
Attributable to:

Ownerss of the Company 2,054 748
Non-controlling interests (89) (41)
1,965 707

Earnings per share 1
— Basic " RMBO0.284 RMB0.103
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o th oo ot 31 Decne 2010 Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

2010 2009
RMB million RM8 mitlion
(restated)
Profit for the year 1,965 707
Other comprehensive income:
Fair value change on other investments 18 116
Income 1ax relating to component of
other comprehensive income (5) (29)
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 13 87
Total comprehénsive income for the year 1,978 794
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 2,067 835
Non-controlling interests (89) 4y
1,978 794
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2010

At 31 December At 1 January
2010 2009 2009
Note RMB million RMB million RMB million
(restated) (restated)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 64,226 60.853 49,995
Intangible assets 13 8 13 18
Construction in progress 14 6,324 12,922 18,789
Interests in jointly controlled entities 16 1,245 934 864
Interests in associates 17 488 465 1,388
Other investments 18 434 391 55
Deferred tax assets 7(b) 1.368 1,038 1,049
74,093 76,616 72,158
Current assets
Inventories 19 13,134 10.658 10,372
Amount due from immediate
parent/former ultimate parent 33 —_ 2 97
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 33 7.272 5,547 2,576
Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity 33 69 98 —
Amount due from an associate 33 — 1 —
Trade receivables 20 4,872 4,145 3,000
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 4,004 3,742 2,796
Current tax assets 24 203 985
Cash and cash equivalents 21 3,651 2,242 2,974
33,026 26,638 22,800
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At 31 December 2010

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continved)

At 31 December At ) January
2010 2009 2009
Note RMB million RMB million RMB milfion
{restated) (restated)
Current liabilities
Trade payables 22 9,371 6,744 7.805
Amount due to immediate
parent/former ultimate parent 33 294 202 11
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 33 1,651 2,104 2,087
Amounts due to jointly
controlled entities 33 402 373 25
Amounts due to associates 33 30 1 42
Deferred income 23 42 —
Other payables 7.355 6,989 5,578
Current portion of bank loans 23 16,356 21,363 8,601
Short-term debentures 24 3,000 — —_
38,482 37,828 24,149
Net current liabilities (5,456) (11,190) (1,349)
Total assets less current
liabilities carried forward 68,637 65,426 70,809

21




O

Angang Steel Company Limited |

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

212

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continved)

At 31 December

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January

2010 2009 2009
Note RMB million RMB million RMB million
(restated) (restated)
Total assets less current
liabilities brought forward 68,637 65,426 70,809
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 23 12,717 11,502 17,565
Provisions 25 37 65 102
Deferred income 554 74 39
13,308 11,641 17,706
NET ASSETS 55,329 53,785 53,103
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 26 7,235 7.235 7,235
Share premium 27 31,414 31,414 31,4124
Reserves 28 3,713 3,467 3,274
Retained profits 29 11,690 10,303 11,180
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 54,052 52,419 53,103
Non-controlltng irterests 1,277 1,366 —
TOTAL EQUITY 55,329 53,785 53,103

Approved and authorised for issue by the 3oard of Directors on 29 March 2011

Zhang Xiaogang
Chairman

Fu Jihui
Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

Attributable to owners of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Non-
Share Share Retained controlling
capital  premium  Reserves profits Total interests Total equity
Note  RMB million RMS milion  RMB milion RMB mdion  RMS million  RMB milion  RMB millon
At 1 January 2009,
as previously reported 1235 31414 3,107 nns 52,97 - 5297
Effect of change in
accounting polky (note 2} - 167 (35) 132 - 132
At 1 January 2009, as restated 1,235 31414 3274 11,180 $3.103 - 53,103
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 87 748 83% 41} 794
Acgursition of a subsiduary - - - - - 1,407 1407
Proposed transfer
between reserves 28 29 - - 106 1086) - - -
final dvidend — 2008 16(b) - - - (1519 (1519 — 01.519)
Changes in equity for the year - - 193 87 684; 1,366 682
At 31 December 2009 7,235 31414 3467 10,303 52,419 1,366 53.785
At 1 January 2010,
as previously reported 1235 31414 3,300 10,342 52,291 1366 §3,657
tftect of change in
accounting policy {note 2) - - 167 39 128 - 128
At 1 Jansary 2010, as restated 7.235 31414 3467 10,303 52,419 1366 $3,785
Total comprehensve
income for the year - - 13 2,054 2,067 (89) 1,978
Proposed transfer
cetween reserves 289 - - 233 (233 - - -
final chvdend — 2009 10(0) - - - @34 (439 = (434)
Char.ge in equity for the yea: - - 246 1,387 1,633 (39) 1544
At 31 December 201G 1.23% 31414 3,13 11,690 54,052 1271 $5.329
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS o veyeor codes 1 december 2000

2010 2009
Note RMB million RM8 million
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 31(a) 9,671 3,779
Interest received 6 26 16
Interest pard {1,679) (1,605)
Income tax (paid)refund (568) 781
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,450 2,971
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (4,851) (6.341)
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment S 23
Acquisition of a subsidiary 31(b) — 1.184
Dwidends income from associates and
jointly controlled entities 76 37
Payment for purchase/additional capital
contribution of other investments (25) (143)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,795) (5,240)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (434) (1,519)
Proceeds of bank loans 22,265 20,140
Repayment of bank loans (26,077) (17,084)
Proceeds of short-term debentures 3,000 —
Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities (1,246) 1,537
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1.409 (732)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY 2,242 2974
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 3,651 2,242




68

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 | Angang Steed Company Limited

For th yeo endea 31 December 2010 Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Angang Steel Company Limited (the “Company ) was established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC™) on 8 May 1997 as a joint stock limited liability company. The address of
its regisiered office 1s Production Area of Angang Steel, Tie Xi District, Anshan City, Liaoning
Province, the PRC. The Company’s A-shares and H-shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock
Exchange”) respectively.

The Company 1s principally engaged in the production and sales of hot rolled sheets, cold
rolled sheets, galvanised steel, seamless tubes, wire rods, thick plates, large section steel
products and steel billets. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Cormpany, as at 31 December 2010, Anshan Iron and
Steel Group Complex ("Angang Holding~), a state-owned enterprise incorporated in the
PRC is the immediate parent and Angage Group Company Limited, a state-owned enterprise
incorporated in the PRC is the ultimate parent

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Internationa! Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2010. IFRSs comprise International Financial
Reporting Standards; International Accounting Standards (“IAS”), and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised IFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group's
accounting policies and amounts reported for the current year and prior years except as
stated below.

Classification of Land Leases

The adoption of the amendment to IAS 17 “Leases” has resulted in a change in accounting
policy for the classification of leasehold land of the Group. Previously, leasehold land
was classified as an operating lease and stated at cost less accumulated amonrtisation. In
accordance with the amendment, leasehold land 1s classified as a finance lease and stated at
cost tess accumulated depreciation if substantially all risks and rewards of the leasehold land
have been transferred to the Group. As the present value of the minimum lease payments (ie.
the transaction price) of the land held by the Group amounted to substantially all of the fair
value of the land as if it were freehold, the leasehold land of the Group has been classified
as a finance lease. The amendment has been applied retrospectively to unexpired leases at
the date of adoption of the amendment on the basis of information existing at the inception
of the leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continyey e oo " Decemper 2010

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Classification of Land Leases (continued)

The amendment to IAS 17 has been applied retrospectively and resulted in changes in the
consolidated amounts reported in the financial statements as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

2010 2009

RMB million RMS8 million

Increase in administrative expenses — depreciation S 5
Decrease in income tax expense (1) 1
At 31 December At 1 January

2010 2009 2009

RMB million RMB million RMB million

Increase in property,

plant and equipment 6,943 7.046 6,739
Decrease in lease prepayments (6,775) (6.875) (6,563)
Decrease in deferred tax assets (44) (43) (44)
Increase In reserves (167) (167) (167)
Decrease in retained profits a3 39 35

The Group has not applied the new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new IFRSs but is
not yet in a position to state whether these new 1FRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs, the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure prowisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”}

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of other invesiments which are carried at their fair values.

The Group also prepares a set of financial statements which complies with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises in the PRC (the "PRC GAAP"). A reconciliation of the
Group's profit for the year and the equity attributable to owners of the Company under
IFRSs and the PRC GAAP is presented on page 276.

The preparation of financ.al statements in conformuty with IFRSs requires the use of certain
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors 1o exercise its judgements in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving <ritical judgements and areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial statements, are disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below

(a)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Company has control. Contro! is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its actwvities. The existence and effect
of potential voting ‘nights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Company has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Company. They are de-consolidated from the date the control ceases

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Cempany

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consol.dated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year. between nor-controlling shareholders
and owners of the Company

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
10 the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method 1s used to account for the acquisition of a subsidiary 1n a
business combination. The cest of an acquisition s measured ai the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, habilities incurred and
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
oenods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets
ard habilities of the subssidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisttion-date
fair values

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's share of the net fair value of
the subsidiary’s identufiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and lLabilities over
the cost of acquisition s recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinyeq) " 7= <1 oexemoer 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently it events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy (w)
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of
impairment testing.

- The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured at the

non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilites at the acquisition date

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policies of an
entity but 1s not control or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant influence.

Investment In an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements by
the equity method and is initially recognised at cost Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill
is included in the carrying amourt of the investment and is tested for impairment
together with the investment at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment i1s impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured recewvables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising 1ts share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated
10 the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
elimindted unless the transaction provides evidence of an imparrment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over the economic activity when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control (the “venturers”)

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a
separate entity in which each venturer has an interest.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity 1s accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the jointly controlled entity in an acquisition are measured at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the jointly controlled entity’s identifiable assets

and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill 1s included in the carrying amount

of the investment and is tested for impairment together with the investment at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
1s impaired  Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group's share of a jointly controlled entity’s post-acquisition profits or losses
1s recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisiiion
movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity. If the jointly controlled entity
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the éxtent of the Group's interests in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly controlled entities
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
[0] Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financal statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic enviconment in which
the entty operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq) ™ 7 yer enoed 37 ecemoer 2016

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i}

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a
non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation currency are transiated into
the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial positton presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve, When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1s calculated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their esimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold and according to the terms

of lease of the land
Buildings 10 to 20 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 310 15 years
Transportation vehicles and other related equipment 2 to 12 years

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part 1s depreciated separately.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets, and is
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, various plant and equipment under
construction and pending installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as interest charges, and foreign
exchange differences on related borrowed funds to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment 1o interest charges during the period of constructior:

Caprtalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
properly, plant and equipment when the asset is substantially completed and ready for
its intended use.

Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continpeq) " 7" ereed ! oecember 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

0]

Operating leases

Leases that do not substanually transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to such activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, no development costs satisfy the criteria for the recognition of such costs as
an asset. Both research costs and development costs are therefore recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent industrial technology acquired by the Group and are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets 1s capialised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied In the specific asset to which 1t
relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives
of 6 to 10 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Inventories

Inventories, other than spare parts and tools, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula or the specific
identification method. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value i1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories 1s recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories 1o net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Spare parts and tools are stated at cost less any allowance for obsolescence.
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual nghts to receive cash flows
from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards
of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recogrused in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obhigation specified in the relevant
contract 1s discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continyeq) ™ 7" eoed 3 bemoer 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Other investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the
purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets or unlisted equity securities.

(0]

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either investments
classified as held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or foss
upon initial recognition. These investments are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets not classified
as trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are disposed of or there is objective evidence
that the investments are impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recogmised in other comprehensive income are recognised in profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest method 15 recognised in
profit or loss

Impairment losses recognised in profit or toss for equity investments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are not subsequently reversed through
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently reversed and
recognised in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Unlisted equity securities
Investments in unlisted equity securities that do not have a quoted market

price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment tosses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

()]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequent measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the
allowance is recognised in profit or loss

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and recognised in profit or loss
when an increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that
the carrying amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

financial habilities and equily instruments are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financal
liabiity and an equity instrument unde- IFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities, The accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the fiability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

(i) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

P

(a)

(n

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

(i} Equity instruments

gquity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

.Revenue recognition

Revenue ts measured at the fair value of the consideration recewved or receivable and
is recognised when 1t 15 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured rehably.

(1) Sale of goods
Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and trading of raw materials
are recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and the
title has passec to the customers

(i) Service income
Service income is recognised when the service is rendered

(n) Dividend income

Dividend income 15 recogmised when the shareholder’s nghts to receive payment
are established

{v)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds

() Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group
demonstrabiy commits itself to terminate employmen: or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by hav.ng a detailed formal plan which s
without realist:c poss:ibiity of withdrawa!.
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (ontinved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they
are incurred

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant wili be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contingeqy ™ 707 0o 3! December 2010

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax 1s recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and habilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits wilt be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period Deierred tax
15 recognised in profit or loss, except when 1t relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Oeferred tax assets and iiabilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax habilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by.the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statements «ontinved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(w)

Related parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party controls,
is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; has an interest
in the Group that gives its sigmficant influence over the Group; or has joint
control over the Group;

(i) the party is an associate;
(i} the party is a joint venture;

(iv)  the party 1s 2 member of the key management personnel of the Company or its
parent;

(v)  the'party 1s a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or sigmificantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reportng period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets except deferred tax assets, investments, inventories
and receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
1t is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use. In
assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

if the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impatrment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

(y)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Where an impairment 10ss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years A reversal of
an impairment 10ss 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carrned at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss 1s
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event. it 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money 1s material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to setile the
obligation.

Where it 1s not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a coniingent
lability, unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the
Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed 1n the notes 10 the financial statements when materia!.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue and trading result are generated from production and sales of steel
products and therefore no other reportable segments analysis of the Group is presented.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in note
3 to the financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not include dividend income,
and gains or losses from investments and derivative instruments. Segment assets do not
include amounts due from related parties and investments. Segment liabilities do not include
amounts due to related parties, corporate borrowings, convertible loans and derivative
instruments  Segment non-current assets do not include deferred tax assets

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabikities:

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
(restated)
Year ended 31 December

Revenue from external custormers 92,212 70,057
Segment profit 1,947 697
Interest revenue 26 16
Interest expense 1,303 929
Depreciation and amortisation 7,176 6,417

Other material items of Income and expense:

Insurance compensation received 52 15
Share of profits of jointly controlled entities 297 88
Share of profits of associates 96 88
Income tax expense 413 165
Other material non-cash items:

impairment of assets 4 6

Allowance of inventories 1,294 677
Addrtions to segment non-current assets 4,000 7.471
As at 31 December
Segment assets 97,976 96,177
Segment kabilities 17,340 13914
Interests in jointly controlled entities 3 1,245 934
Interests in associates 488 465
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq) 1 77 &0 31 oscember 2010

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
(restated)
Revenue
Total revenue of reportable segments and
consolidated revenue 92,212 70,057
Profit or loss
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 1,947 697
Dividend income from other investments 18 10
Consolidated profit for the year 1,965 707
Assets
Total assets of reportable segments 97,976 96,177
Amount due from fellow subsidiaries 7.272 5,547
Deferred tax assets 1,368 1,038
Investments 434 391
Other assets 69 101
Consolidated total assets 107,119 103,254
Liabilities
Total liabilities of reportable segments 17,340 13,914
Amount due to immediate parent/former
ultimate parent 294 202
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,651 2,104
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 402 373
Bank loans 29,073 32,865
Short-term debentures 3,000 -
Other liabilities 30 1
Consolidated total liabilities 51,790 49,469
Other material items
impairment of assets 4 6
Allowance of inventories 1,294 677
Depreciation and amortisation 7,176 6,417
Interest expenses 1,303 929
Insurance compensation received 52 15
Additions of construction in progress 3,852 7,232
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information:

2010 2009
RMB8 milfion RMS million

Revenue
— The PRC 84,382 66,548
— Other countries 7.830 3,509
92,212 70,057

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the locations of the
customers. All of the Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC.

Revenue from major customers;

2010 2009

RMB million RM8 million

Customer A 8,604 5.694
Customer B 6,502 4,895
Customer C 3,187 1,720

5. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
goods returned, trade discounts and value added tax of steel products
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

6. OTHER OPERATING PROFIT, NET

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million

Loss on disposals of property,

plant and equipment (14) 3)
Impairment losses on property,

plant and equipment (4) (6)
Gain/(loss) from sales of raw and scrap materials 14 (10)
Net exchange gain 58 S
Interest income 26 16
Government grant (note) 117 15
Written back of long outstanding

accounts payables _ 6
written back of long outstanding

other payables — 29
Insurance compensation 52 15
Dividend income from other investments 18 10 |
Others (1) 26

266 103

Note: Government grant mainly are subsidy for the scientific research and grant for the military
industrial project

7. INCOME TAX

(a) Income tax expense in the income statement

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
(restated)
Current 1ax expense

— Provision for PRC enterprise
income tax for the year 748 1
Deferred tax expense (note 7(b)) (335) 164
413 165

The provision for PRC enterprise income tax is based on a statutory rate of 25 %
(2009: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits of the Group entities as determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

7.  INCOME TAX (continued)

(a)

Income tax expense in the income statement (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of profit before

tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as foliows:

2010 2009

RMB million RMS8 million

(restated)

Profit before tax 2,378 872
Tax at a statutory tax rate of 25%

(2009: 25%) 594 218
Tax effect of non-taxable income (95) (46)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 20 56
Additional deduction* {106) (63)

413 165

Pursuant to relevant PRC tax regulations, the Group is entitled to claim an additional

deduction based on S0% of approved costs related to research and development.
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7. INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

236

Deferred taxation

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Het
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB milion RMB million RMB milion
(restated) (restated)
Borrowing costs capitalised - - 39 “n (34) [CD)]
Allowange of inventories 141 10 - - 141 10
Impairment losses on
poperty. plant
and equipment 30 2 - - 30 2
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 5 S - — - S
Expenses to be claimed
on pad basis 56 % — — 56 56
Change in fair value of
avalable-for-sdle
financial assets - - (25) (20) 25} 20)
Prowision for
fermination benefits 16 25 - - 16 25
Deductible expenses
relating to Bayuquan
port connected projects
("Bayuquan Project”) 867 659 - - 867 659
Tax koss 258 256 - - 258 2%
Others 56 56 2) — 4 56
1,429 1,099 (61) ()] 1,368 1,038
Set-off within tegal tax
units and jursdictions 61 (61) 61 61 - -
Net deferred tax assets 1,368 1,038 - - 1,368 1,038
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7. INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Deferred taxation (continued)

(i) Movement in temporary differences during the year:

Notes 10 the Financial Statements (continued)

B st
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8. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

(a) Finance costs

2010 2009

RMB million RMB million

Interest and other borrowing costs 1,758 1,613
Less: Amount capitalised as construction .

In progress* (455) (684)

Net interest expenses 1,303 929

Bank charges Pl )

Others 7

1,333 940

rate of 5.02 % (2009: 4 72%) per annum for construction in progress

(b) Otheritems

The botrowing costs on funds borrowed generally have been capitalised at an average

2010 2009
RMB million RMB milfion
(restated)
Auditors’ remuneration . 6 6
Cost of inventories sold 85,409 65,721
Depreciation 7.7 6,412
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in administrative expenses) S S
Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (included in other operating
profit, net) 4 6
Allowance for inventories (note 19) 1,294 677
Staff costs
— Salaries and wages, welfare and
other costs 2,043 1,840
— Contributions to defined
contribution scheme 768 656
2,811 2,496
Repairs and maintenance 3,362 2,885
Research and development costs 29 10
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations were as follows:

Salaries,
Directors’ and allowance Retirement
supervisors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions 2010 Total

RMB million  RMB million - AMB miffion  AMB million  RMB muffion

Executive directors

Zhang Xidogang - - - - -
Yang Hua - 053 - 008 061
Chen Ming — 0.48 - 0.08 056
Fu hhui — 043 - 0.07 0.50

Non-executive director
Yu Wanyuan - - - - -

independent
non-executive directors

Li Shijun 0.09 — - — 009
Ma Guogiang 0.09 — - — 009
Liu We
{resigned on 21 June 2010) 0.05 — - — 0.05
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor 0.09 — — — 0.09
Supervisors
Wen Baoman - - - - -
Xing Guibin - 0.19 - 003 022
Shan Mingyi — 043 - 0.08 051
032 206 - 0.34 21
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

9. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations were as follows: (continued)

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowance Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions 2009 Total
RMB million ~ RMB8 million  AMB miftion  RMB million  RMB muffion
Executive directors
Zhang Xiaogang - - - - -
Yang Hua - 0.52 — 0.08 0.60
Tang Fuping
{ceased on 26 June 2099) - 0.20 - 0.03 0.23
Chen Ming
{appointed on 6 February
2009} - 020 - 0.03 0.23
Fu Jihui - 0.29 — 0.05 034
Fu Wei (ceased on 12 June 2009) - 0.09 - 0.01 010
Lin Dag:ng
(ceased on 12 June 2009) - 0.05 - 0.01 0.06
Wang Chun Ming
{ceased on 12 June 2009) - 0.09 - o0 0.10

Non-executive director

Yu Wanyuan —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations were as follows: (continued)}

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowance Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions 2009 Total

RMB million  RMB milion  RMB million  RMBmillon  RMB million

Independent

non-executive directors
Wang Linsen

(ceased on 12 June 2009) 0.05 — - - 0.05
Liu Yongze

{ceased on 12 june 2009) 0.05 - - - 0.05
francis Li Chak Yan

{ceased on 12 June 2009) 0.05 - — — 0.05
Wang Xiaobin

(ceased on 12 June 2009) 005 — - — 0.05
Wu Xichun

(ceased on 12 June 2009) - - - - -
Li Shijun

(appointed on 12 June 2009) 0.05 — — - 0.05
Ma Guoqiang

{appointed on 12 June 2009) 0.05 — — - 0.05
Liu Wer

(appointed on 12 June 2009} 0.05 — — - 005
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor

(appointed on

18 September 2009) 0.05 — — — 0.05
Supervisors
Wen Baoman - - - - -
Xing Guibin - 0.16 - 0.02 0.18
Zhang Lifen

(ceased on 12 June 2009) - 020 — 003 023
Shan Mingy! - 029 - 005 034
L1 Ji {ceased on 12 June 2009) - 0.06 - 0.01 0.07

0.40 2.15 — 033 288
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10.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2009: RMB Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or
the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2009: RMB Nil).

The five highest paid indwviduals of the Group in 2010 included three executive directors and

two supervisors of the Company (2009: four executive directors and one supervisor) whose
emoluments are disclosed above

DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividend for the year

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period of RMBO0.15 per share
(2009: RMBO.06 per share) 1.085 434

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 29 March 2011, a final
dividend of RMB0.15 (2009: RMB0.06) per share totalling RMB1,085 million (2009:
RMB434 million) was approved for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annuat
general meeting.

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liabiity at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividend for the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year, of RMB0.06 per share
(2009: RMBO0.21 per share) 434 1,519

Pursuant to the PRC enterprise income tax law, the Company is required to withhold 10%
PRC enterprise income tax when 1t distributes dividends to its non-PRC resident enterprise
shareholders
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1.

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

The calculation of basic earnings per share attnbutable to cwners of the Company is
based on the profit for the year attributable 10 owners of the Company of RMB2,054
million (2009: RMB748 million) and the weighted average number of shares of 7,235

million in issue during the year (2009: 7,235 million)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not have any dilutive
potential equity shares in existence dunng the two years ended 31 December 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant, Transportation
machinery  vehicles and

Land and and  other related
building quip quip Total
RMB miffion RMB million RMB million RMB miflion
Cost:
At 1 January 2009, as previously reported 15,721 40,871 2,684 59,276
Effect of change i accounting policy
{note 2) 7181 — - 7181
ALY January 2009 {restated) 22,902 40,871 2,684 66,457
Additions 12 4 3 19
Acquisiton of a subsidrary 1,114 1417 57 2,588
Transfer from construction in progress
{note 14; 4,023 10.068 601 14,692
Disposals (18) (129) (51) (198)
At 31 December 2009 28,033 52,231 3,294 83,558
At 1 January 2010, as previously reported 20,397 52,231 3,294 15,922
Effect of change n accounting policy
{note 2; 7,636 - - 7,636
At 1 January 2010, restated 28,033 52,231 3,294 83,558
Additions 90 5 28 123
Transfer from constructon in progress
{note 14) 318 6,541 691 10,450
Disposals 9 (90) (12 [{38)]
At 31 December 2010 31332 58,687 4,001 94,020
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Transportation
Plant, vehicles
machinery and other

Land and and related

g quip quip Total
RMB million RMB mitlion RMB million RMB million

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

At 1 January 2009, as previously reported 2.662 12,295 1,063 16,020
Effect of change in accounting policy

{note 2 442 — — 442
At 1 January 2009 (restated) 3,104 12,295 1,063 16,462
Charge for the year 1,228 4,765 419 6,412
Written back on disposals (14) (1) (50) (175)
Impairment losses fnote (bj) 3 3 - 6
At 31 December 2009 4301 16,952 1,432 22,705
At 1 january 2010, as previously reported 3731 16,952 1,432 22,115
Effect of change 1n accounting policy

{note 2) 590 - - 530
At 1 January 201G, restated 43 16,952 1,432 22705
Charge for the year 1418 5310 443 amn
Wiritten back on disposats (15) (56) (15) (86)
Impairment losses (note (b)) - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2010 5724 22,210 1,860 29,794
Carrying amount:
At 3! December 2010 25,608 36,477 2,141 64,226
At 31 December 2009 23712 35,279 1,862 60.853
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Note:

(a) All of the Group’s fand and buildings are located in the PRC. The land of the Group represented
the land use rights on the land located in the PRC under medium term leases

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group planned to dispose of certain machinery
which were obsolete. The recoverable amounts of these machinery were assessed based on their
scrap value less costs o sell As a result, the carrying amount of the machinery, after recognised
the impairment losses, was written down by RMB84 million (2009: RMB6 million). The impairment
loss for the year is included in “Other operating profit, net” in the consolidated income
statement

(©) At 31 December 2010, the Group was in the process of applying for or changing registration
of the title certifications of certain of its land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB1,307 million (2009: RMB1,307 million), of which related to acquisition of
the entire equity interests of Angang New Steel and Iron Company Limited as mentioned in the
aircular published by the Company on 11 November 2005 with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB10 miilion (2009: RMB10 mitlion). The directors are of the opinion that the
Group 15 entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use the above mentioned land

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Industrial
technology
RMB million
Cost:
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009,
1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 . 32
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2009 14
Amortisation for the year S
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 19
Amortisation for the year 5
At 31 December 2010 24
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2010 8
At 31 December 2003 13

The remaining useful lives of the intangible assets are in the range of 1 to 5 years. 245
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

14. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

15.

246

2010
RMB million

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2009
RMB million

At 1 January 12,922 18,789
Acquisition of a subsidiary — 1,593
Additions 3,852 7,232
16,774 27,614

Transfer to property,
plant and equipment (note 12} (10,450) (14,692)
At 31 December 6,324 12,922

At 31 December 2010 the carrying amount of construction in progress pledged as security
for the Group’s bank loans amounted to RMB717 million (2009: RM8 Nil).

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are as follows

Percentage of
form of Mace of equity interest
business ncorporation  Registered and held by  Principal
Name structure and operation  paid up capital the Group  activities
BRAUES(RA)ARLT Limited habihty ~ PRC RMB60 milion 100% Mot yet
{Angang Steel Logistics company Ccmmence
{Wuhan) Company Limeted} business
RESURE (RS ERLE imited habrity  PRC RMBB0) millon 100%  Notyet
{Angarig Cold Rolled Steel compeny commence
Sheets (Putian) Company Limized) business
FAERZASEIERBLA £quity joirt PRC Registered capital 50%  Steel rolling
{Tianyin Angang Tian Tie Cold ventuze RM83,700 million processing
Rolled Sheets Company Lirnited) Paid up capital
(“Tanjn Niange”) RMB2,814 million
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million

Unlisted investments
— Share of net assets 1,245 934

Detalls of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entities at 31 December 2010 are as
follows:

Percantage
Form of Place of Registered of equity
business ncorporation and paid nterestheld  Principal
Name structure and operation up capital by the Group  activities

EAGE-SRERI0BHES Sino-foreign PRC USD132 milbon %%  Production and
R (ANSC-TKS Galvaniang equity joint sale of hot
Co, Ltd) "ANSC-TKS") ventuie dip gahanrsed

steel products

REBH-AHRETEEYNIRE  fquy o PRC RMB380 mittion 50% Sk, processing
R L5 (ANSC-Dachuan Heavy venture and
industries Dalian Steet Product - ) distbution of
Processing and Distribution Co., Ltd) steel products
(ANSC-Dachuan®}

Ef AREEMNIES Sino-foregn PRC RMB90 mitor, 5C% Sk, processing,
% 28 (Changctun FAM Steel equity jomt distmbution
Processing and Dstribution venture ard storage of
Company Limited) steel products
{*Changchun FAM")

REFGEREBURR RE) Sino-foresgn PRC USD12 miion 50%  Production,

BB 23] (TKAS (Changchur) Steel ~ equrly joint piccessing

Service Center Ltd) (“TKAS-SSC™) veniure and sa'e of
ant-flvoria
steel and
connected
commeraal
avities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16.

17.

INTERESTS iN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

The following amounts are the Grohp's share of the jointly controlled entities that are

accounted for by the equity method of accounting

2010
RMB million

2009
RMB million

At 31 December

Non-current assets 1,081 1,184
Current assets 1,638 1,340
Non-current liabilities (388) (445)
Current liabilities (1,064) (1,104)
Net assets 1,267 975
Year ended 31 December
Revenue 4,410 2,124
Expenses (4,113) (2,036)
297 88
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
Unlisted investments
— Share of net assets 488 465
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (ontinued)

Detalls of the Group's interests in the associates at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

Percontage
Form of Pace of Registered of equity
business ncorporation and paid up interestheld  Principal

Name structure and operation capital by the Group  activities

BSIRRNLIREERAA) fquity jomt PRC RMB48 milkon 30%  Sak, processing
(Angang Shenyang Steel Product venture and
Processing And Distribution distribution of
Company Limited) steel products
(*Angang Shenyang”)

BURBOER (ST ARGKRE  Sino-foreign PRC USD10 mithion 45%  Production and
ARLD 5 (TKAS {Changchun) equity joint sake of tatlored
Tailored Blanks Ltd} (*TKAS") venture blanks

BEERSBELERBERLT Equity joint PRC RMB36 milkon 30%  Production and
{Angang Package Steel Strip venture sales of
Company Limited) padking steel
{"Angang Steel Strip”) strp

BEAREMEERAILS Equity joint PRC RMB1,000 million 20%  Provision of
{Angang Holdings Financa! venlure financal
Company Limited) service of
{“Angang Finance™} deposit,

lending,
finanang
and etc.

FRAXMALEEKRGRAA Equity jomt PRC RMBS mit:on 30%  Piovision of
(Tanyn Tiantie Ban Ha Metalurgy vertuie service
Enterprise Company Limited)

{"Ban Ka Enterprise”)
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summary financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below

2010 2009
RMB million RM8 million
At 31 December
Total assets 21,018 19,660
Total liabilities (18,767) (17,492)
Net assets 2,251 2,168
Group's share of associates’ net assets 488 465
Year ended 31 December
Total revenue 1,943 1,423
Total profit for the year 426 399
Group’s share of associates' profits for the year 96 88
18. OTHER INVESTMENTS
2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity securities, at fair value
— Listed in the PRC 179 161
Unlisted equity secunties, at cost 255 230
434 391

The fair values of listed secunities are based on current bid prices. Unlisted equity securities
with carrying amount of RMB255 million (2009: RMB230 million) was carried at cost as
they do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured
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19.

20.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

INVENTORIES
2010 2009
RMB million RMB miltion
Raw materials and fuels 3,739 2,511
Work In progress 3,531 2,661
finished goods 1,931 1.571
Spare parts, tools and ancillary materials 3,933 3,915
13,134 10,658

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
Carrying amount of inventories sold 84,886 67,683
Allowance of inventories R 1,294 677
Realisation of allowance of inventories (771) (2,639)
85,409 65,721

TRADE RECEIVABLES
2010 2009
RMS8 million RMB miltion
Accounts recewables 1,169 749
Bills receivables 3,703 3,396
4,872 4,145

The ageing analysis of trade recewvables that are neither individually nor cotlectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

2010 2009

RMB million RMB million

Less than 3 months 4,402 3.465
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 463 674
More than 1 year 7 6
4,872 4,145
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continyeqy e 7o enved 3" becember 2010

20.

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of RMB29 million (2009: RMB17 million) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to 3 number of independent customers for whom

there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade recewables is as
follows

2010 2009

RMB million RMB million

Less than 3 months 16 ’ 7
More than 3 months but less than 12 months . 6 4
More than 1 year 7 6
29 17

The Group requests cusiomers to pay cash or settle by bills in full prior to delivery of goods.
Subject to negotiation, credit term of one 10 four months is only available for certain major
customers with well-established trading records

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at bank and in hand.

As at 31 December 2010, deposits of RMB2,607 mullion (2009: RMB1,288 million) was
placed in Angang Finance, an associate and a fellow subsidiary of the Group.

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Admunistration of Settiement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations
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22.

23.

TRADE PAYABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
Accounts payables 4,492 3,235
Bills payables 4,879 3.509
9,371 6,744

The ageing analysis of trade payables 1s as follows:
2010 2009

RMB million

RMB million

Due on demand 88 237
Due within 3 months 6,724 4,133
Due after 3 months but within 6 months 2,559 2,020
Due after 6 months but within 1 year — 344
Due after 1 year but within 2 years — 10
9,371 6,744
BANK LOANS
The bank loans are repayable as follows:
2010 2009

RMB million

RMB million

On demand or within one year 16,356 21,363
In the second year 3,401 5,535
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 8,411 5,061
After five years 905 906
29,073 32,865

Less: Amount due for settiement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities) (16,356) (21.363)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 12,717 11,502
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23.

24,

BANK LOANS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans are denominated in the following currencies:

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
RMB 28,995 32,665
Euro 8 10
Japanese Yen 70 190
29,073 32,865

The interest rate at 31 December is as follows
2010 2009
Bank loans 0.25% t0 5.94% 0.25% 10 5.346%

Bank loans of RMB18,677 million (2009: RMB19,155 million) are arranged at fixed interest
rates and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other bank loans are arranged at
floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Among the bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2010, RMB2,100 million {2009
RMB1,000 mitlion) and RMB3,875 million (2009: RMB3,505 million) were guaranteed by
Angang Holding and X XS4 E&REAR D E (Tanpn Tian Tie Metallurgy Holding
Ltd.), a non-controlling shareholder and two of its subsidiaries respectively. Other than the
guarantees as stated above, the bank loans of the Group amounted to RMB200 million
{2009: RMB Ni) was secured by pledge of the construction in progress of a subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2010, loans from Angang Finance, an associate and a fellow subsidiary
of the Group, amounted to RMB7,300 million (2009: RMB9,600 miilion)

SHORT-TERM DEBENTURES

During the year, the Group i1ssued short-term debentures with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB3,000 million (“Debentures”) in the PRC inter-bank debenture market. The interest
rate of the Debentures is 2 84% per annum and the term of maturity 1s 365 gays.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. PROVISIONS

26.

2010 2009

RMB million RM8 million

At 1 January 102 146
Provision used for the year (37 (44)
At 31 December 65 102
Less: Amount included under “other payables” (28) (37)
37 65

Taking into consideration the relevant laws and regulations and the actual situation, as
certain employees no longer generate economic benefits for the Group, they have been
treated by the Group for compensation purposes by providing them with termination
benefits. The termination benefits are calculated based on the salaries and welfare payable to
these employees from 1 January 2010 to the normal retirement age. The present value of the

future cash flow expected to be required to settle the obligation is recognised as provision
for termination benefits.

SHARE CAPITAL

2010 2009
Number Number
of shares of shares
million  RMB million million AMB miflion
Issued and fully paid:
State-owned lega! person
shares of RMB1 each
At 1 January and 31 December 4,369 4,869 4,869 4,869
A shares of RMB1 exch
At 1 January and 31 December 1,280 1,280 1,280 1,280
H shares of RMB1 each
At 1 January and 31 December 1,086 1,086 1,086 1,086
7,235 7.235 7,235 7,235
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq) " 7 & 3! decemoer 2010

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b

All the state-owned legal person shares, A and H shares rank par passu in ail material respects
Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to sateguard the Group’s ability to
continue as 3 going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt
{which includes tnterest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises ali components
of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2010, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2009, was to maintain the net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital
10 sharehoiders, raise new debt financing or sell assets 1o reduce debt
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

Capital management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2010 and 2009 was as follows

2010 2009
RMB million RMB mullion
{restated)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16,726 13,733
Amount due to immediate parent/fcrmer
ultimate parent 294 202
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,651 2,104
Amounts due to jointly controlled entiies 402 373
Amounts due to associates 30 n
Current portior of bank loans 16,356 21,363
Short-term debentures 3,000 —
38,459 37,786
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 12,7117 11,502
Total debt 51,176 . 49,288
Add Proposed dividends 1,085 434
Less' Cash and cash equivalents (3,651) (2.242)
Net debt 48,610 47,480
Total equity 55,329 53,785
Less Proposed dwidends (1,085) (434)
Adjusted capital 54,244 53,351
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 90% 89%

The increase in the net debt-to-agjusted capital ratio during 2010 resulted primarily from the

inciease of the debs

The only externally imposed capital requirement 1s that for the Group to maintan its listing
cn the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at ieast 25% of the shares. The Group
receives a report from the share registrars monthly on substantial share interests showing the
non-pubhc float and 1t demonstrates continuing comphiance witn the 25% Iimit throughout the
year. As at 31 December 2010, 32 71% (2009 32.71%) of tre shares were in public hands
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27. SHARE PREMIUM

RMB million
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 20089,
1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 31,414
28. RESERVES
Statutory
surplus Fair value
reserve Specified  Excess over reserve
(note (3} reserve share capital (note (b)) Total

AMB million  RMB milion ~ AMB mifion  RMB millon  RMB million

2009
At 1 January 2009,

a previously reported 3,280 Al (167) 27) 3,107
Effect of change In

accounting policy fnote 2) - — 167 - 167
At 1 January 2009, as restated 3,280 2 — @n 3274

Proposed uansfer for the year
{rote 29) 7 29 - - 106

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial

assets, net of deferred tax — - — 87 87
At 31 December 2009 (restated) 3357 50 - 60 3,467
2010

At 1 January 2010,

as previously reported 3,397 S0 (167) 60 13,300
Effect of change in

accounting policy (note 2) — - 167 - 167
At 1 lanuary 2010, as restated 3,357 50 - 60 3,467

Proposed transfer for
the year (note 29) 213 20 - - 233

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets, net of deferred tax - - - 13 13
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28. RESERVES (continued)

29.

30.

Note:

(a)

(b}

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the Company's net profit after tax as reported in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with the PRC GAAP can only be distributed as
dividends after allowance has been made for:

0] making up cumulative prior years' losses, if any;

(i) allocations to the statutory surplus reserve of at least 10% of the net profit after tax, as
determined under the PRC GAAP, and

(i) allocations to the discretionary surplus reserve subject to approval by the shareholders.

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets net of deferred tax held at the end of the reporting period

RETAINED PROFITS

2010 2009

RMB million RMB million

(restated)

At 1 January, as previously reported 10,342 11,215

Effect of change in accounting policy (note 2) (39) (35)

At 1 January, as restated 10,303 11,180

Profit for the year 2,054 748

Transfer between reserves (note 28) (233) (106)
Dividend approved in respect of

the previous year (note 10(b)) (434) (1.519)

At 31 December 11,690 10,303

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, the reserve available for
distribution is the fower of the amount determined under the PRC GAAP and the amount
determined under IFRSs. As at 31 December 2010, the reserve available for distribution was
RMB11,672 million (2009: RMB10,280 million). Final dividend of RMB1,085 millicn (2009:
RMB434 miliion) in respect of the financial year 2010 was proposed afier the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq) ™7 e 7! becemoer 2010

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
(restated)
Operating activities
Profit before tax 2,378 872
Adjustments for: .
Interest income (26) (16)
Interest expenses 1,303 929
Share of profits of jointly
controlled entities (297 (88)
Share of profits of associates (96) (88)
Depreciation YAYA 6,412
Amortisation of intangible assets H 5
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 14 3
Net exchange gain {58) (S)
Government grant {29) (4)
Allowance of inventories 1,294 677
Realisation of allowance of inventories (77) (2.639)
Realisation of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment (12) (34)
Other operating income (2) (7
Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment a 6
Operating profit before changes in
working capital carried forward 10,878 6,013
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)
(3) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations
(continued)
2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
(restated)

Operating profit before changes in

working capital brought forward 10,878 6,013
(Increase)/decrease in inventories {2,938) 1,444
Increase in amounts due from fellow

subsidiaries (454) (2.182)
{Increase)/decrease 1n accounts receivables (342) 1
Increase In bills receivables (307) (819)
Decrease in amount due from immediate

parent/former ultimate parent 2 95
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from

a jointly controlled entity 29 (98)
Decrease in amount due from an associate 1 —_
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables (262) 235
Increase/{decrease) in accounts payables 1,257 (1.368)
Increase/(decrease) in bills payables 1,370 {1,076)
Increase in amount due to immediate

parent/former ultimate parent 92 184
(Decrease)increase in amounts due to

fellow subsidiaries (453) 57
Increase in amounts due to

jointly controlled entit:es 29 348
Increase/(decrease) in amounts
- due to associates 19 (34)
(Decrease)increase in other payables 260 898
Increase in deferred income 490 81
Cash generated from operations 9,671 3,779
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

31.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 29 September 2009, the Group contributed RMB432 million capital in Tianjin
Tiantie. After the capital contribution, the Group increased its shareholding in Tianjin

Tiantie from 34.51% to 50%

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Tianjin Tiantie acquired as at

its date of contribution is as follows.

RMB million
(restated)
Net assets acquired”
Property, plant and equipment 2,588
Construction in progress 1,593
Interest in an associate 2
Ceferred tax assets 182
Inventories 687
Trade receivables 340
Amount due from an associate 1
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,249
Cash and cash equwalents 1,616
Trade payables (1,383)
Amount due to an associate 3)
Other payables {403)
Bank loans (3,655)
Non-controlling interests (1,407)
Net assets shared by the Group prior
contriibution of capital completed (975)
Satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents 432
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration paid (432)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 1,616
1,184

Tianpin Tiantie contributed approximately loss of RMB82 million to the Group's profit
for the year for the period between the aate of acquisition and the end of the

reporting period
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2009, total Group turnover for the
year ended 31 December 2009 would have been RMB70,905 million, and profit for
the year ended 31 December 2009 would have been RMB552 million. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
the turnover and results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2009, nor is intended to
be a projection of future results.

32. COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period not
provided for in the financiat statements as follows:

*2010 2009
RMB million RMB million

Authorised and contracted for:
— Construction projects of production lines ’ 3,985 2,764
— Investment in a subsidiary to be set up 318 318
4,303 3,082
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueg) ey e 7! December 2010

33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is @ summary of significant transactions carried out between the Group,
Angang Holding and its subsidiaries other than the Group (collectively referred to as “Angang
Holding Group”), the jointly controlled entities and associates during the year.

(a) Significant transactions and balances with Angang Holding Group

(0]

Significant transactions which the Group conducts with Angang Holding Group
in the normal course of business are as follows:

2010 2009
Note RMB million RMB million

Sales of fimshed goods

(before deducting sales

related taxes) (a) 9,225 6,096
Sales of scrap materials and

minus sieve powder

(before deducting

sales related taxes} (a) 122 123
fee received for utilities

and services provided (b) 559 512
Sales of assets () - 3
Purchase of raw materiais (d) 14,468 14,086
Purchase of ancillary

materials and spare parts (e} 1,653 1,460
Utility supplies () 1,971 1,927
Fees paid for welfare and

other support services Q) 5,665 6,034
Purchase of assets (h) 65 87
Interest received (i) 1" 8
interest paid (i) 410 331
Note:

(a)

(b)

[{d]

The Group sold finished goods and scrap materials to Angang Holding Group
mainly at selling prices based on the prices charged to independent customers
Steel products sold to Angang Holding Group for their development of new
products were set at market prices, or production cost plus reasonable profit
margin if no market prices were available

The Group sold minus sieve powder to Angang Holding Group at prices for sinter
ore less the costs of producing the same by Angang Holding Group

The Group provided utilities and services, such as gas, electricity, steam and
transportation, to Angang Holding Group at applicable State prices, production
cost plus 5%, or market prices

The Group sold certain assets to Angang Holding Group for their own use at
selling prices based on market value
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant transactions and balances with Angang Holding Group
(continued)

(i) Significant transactions which the Group conducts with Angang Holding Group
in the normal course of business are as follows: (continued)

Note: (continued}

(d) The Group purchased its principal raw materials from Angang Holding Group
at prices determined and modified on a semi-annual basis The purchase price
is mainly no higher than the average prices quoted to the Group for importing
principal raw materials of similar quality in the previous interim period ("Quoted
Prices”) plus freight charges, price adjustments for the quality and 5% discount
on the Quoted Prices or the average purchase prices charged by independent
suppliers plus price adjustments for the quality, or-raw materials price plus 10%
mark up of the last semi-annual processing costs or market prices

(e) The Group purchased ancillary materials and spare parts from Angang Holding
Group at selling prices no higher than the average prices of such materials
charged by Angang Holding Group to independent customers

(f) The Group purchased utilities supplies from Angang Holding Group mainly at
State prices or production cost plus 5% '

Q) Angang Holding Group provided certain supporting services to the Group
These services include railway and road transportation services, agency services
for import of raw materials, equipment, spare parts and ancillary matenals;
agency services for domestic sales and export of products; examination, repair
and maintenance of equipment; design and engineering services; and other
employees’ supporting related services. Service fees were charged at applicable
State prices, market prices, no higher than 1.5% of commission, depreciation and
repair and maintenance, labour cost, material costs and management fee, and no
higher than 5% mark up of processing costs

(h) The Group purchased certain assets from Angang Holding Group at prices based
on the market value.

0] Angang Holding Group provided financial services in the form of deposit taking,
settlement, borrowing and discounting services at State prices The applicable
borrowing rates are 10% lower of the interest rates quoted by The People’'s Bank
of China

As at 31 December 2010, the deposits placed with Angang Finance amounted to
RMB2.607 million (2009: RMB1.288 million) and the loans from Angang Finance
amounted to RMB7,300 million (2009: RMB89,600 million)

(ii} Bank loans

As at 31 December 2010, certain bank loans amounted to RMB2,100 million
(2009: RMB 1,000 million) were guaranteed by Angang Holding
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant transactions and balances with Angang Holding Group
(continued)

(i)  Amount due from/to immediate parent/former. ultimate parent
Amount due from/to immediate parent/former ultimate parent mainly represents
fees receivables for utilities and services provided and fees payable for support

services.

The amount due from/to immediate parent/former ultimate parent is unsecured,
interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(v}  Amounts due fromv/to feliow subsidiaries
Amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries mainly represent prepayments and
amounts payable for the purchase of raw materials and other services. Advances

are recewved by the Group in respect of sales of finished goods.

The amounts due fromsto fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(v) Supply of Materials and Services Agreement
The Company entered into a Supply of Material and Services Agreement
2010/11 (“Supply Agreement”) with Angang Holding on 27 October 20083,
which is effective on 1 January 2010 for 2 years. According to the Supply
Agreement, the cap of total transactions for the year amounted to RMB82,800
million
(b) Significant transactions with other related parties

(i) Significant transactions with ANSC-TKS

The Group sold finished products to ANSC-TKS amounting to RMB3,187 million
for the year (2009: RMB1,720 million) for further processing

(i1} Significant transactions with Changchun FAM

The Group sold finished products to Changchun FAM amounting to RMB94
million for the year (2009: RMB73 million) for further processing

(i) Significant transactions with TKAS-SSC

The Group sold finished products to TKAS-SSC amounting to RMBA453 million
for the year (2009: RMB297 million) for further processing.

The Group paid agency fee for the agency services provided by TKAS-SSC for
domestic sales of products amounting to RMBS million (2009: RMB1 million)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

33. - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34,

Significant transactions with other related parties (continued)

(iv)

v}

(i}

{vii}

Significant transactions with TKAS

The Group soid finished products to TKAS amounting to RMB3 million for the
year (2009: RMB3 million) for further processing.

Significant transactions with Ban Hai Enterprise

The Group sold scrap steel to Ban Hai Enterprise amounting to RMB31 million
for the year (2009: RMB14 millicn).

The Group paid services fee for the services provided by Ban Hai Enterprise
amounting to RMBSS million for the year (2009: RMB2S million).

Amounts due from/to jointly controlied entities and associates
Amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities and associates mainly represent
the amounts receivables/receipts in advance by the Group in respect of sales of

finished products and payables for the construction fee and services fee.

The amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities and associates are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Transactions with key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid to the
Company's directors and supervisors as disclosed in note 9 1s as follows

2010 2009

RMB million RMB million

Directors’ and supervisors’ fees 0.32 0.40
Salaries, allowance and

other benefits in kind 3.35 2.62

Retirement scheme contributions 0.56 0.43

4.23 3.45

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND OTHER STAFF BENEFITS

The Group is required to contribute to the retirement benefits scheme based on 20% (2009:
20%) of the total salary in accordance with the regulations of the local labour bureau.

All the employees of the Group are entitled to receive, on retirement, pension payments from
these schemes. Except as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the Group has no
other material cbligation for paymen: of retirement benefits beyond the contributions.
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk exposure arising from the
transactions as the Group has fixed the exchange rates to settle the amounts with the
export and import agents for the export of products and import of raw materials for
production and equipments for construction.

At 31 December 2010, if the RMB had weakened 5 per cent against the Japanese Yen
with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been RMB3 million (2009: RMB10 million) lower, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on borrowings denominated in Japanese Yen. If the RMB
had strengthened 5 per cent against the Japanese Yen with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been RMB3 million
(2009: RMB10 million) higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain
on borrowings denominated in Japanese Yen.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recewvables,
investments, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity included in the statement of financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure 1o credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain concentrations of credit risk
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with
an appropniate credit history. Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and a jointly

controlled entity are closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents 1s mited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(<)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group‘s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, 1o ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows:
Less than Between 1 Between 3

1 year and 2 years and S years Over S years
RMS8 millhon RMB mithon RM8 million RMB miflion

At 31 December 2010

Trade payables 9,371 - - -
Amount due to mmediate parent 294 — - -
Amounts due 10 fellow subsidharies 1,651 - - -
Amounts due to jointly

controtled entities 402 . - - -
Amounts due to assotates 30 - - -
QOther payables 7,355 - - -
Bank loans 16,356 3,401 8,411 905
Short-term debentures 3,000 - - —
At 31 December 2009
Trade payables 6,744 - - —
Amount due to former

ultimate parent 202 - - -
Amounts due 1o fellow subsidianes 2,104 - - -
Amounts due to jointly

controlled entities 373 - — —
Amounts due 1o associates " — — —
Oiher payables 6,989 — - -
Bank loans 21,363 5535 5,061 906

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure 1o interest-rate risk arises from its bank deposits and bank
loans. The Group's bank deposits and ceriain of the Group’s bank loans bear interests
a: variable rates varied with the then prevailing market condition. The Group’s other
bank loans oear interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value
interest rate risks.

At 31 December 2010, if the interest rate at that date had been decreased by 1 per
cent with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been RMB74 million (2009: RM8126 million) higher, arising mainly as a
result of lower interest expense on bank loans. If the interest rate at that date had
been increased by 1 per cent with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year would have been RMB74 million (2009: RMB126 million) lower,
arising mainly as a result of higher interest expense on bank loans.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Equity price risk

The Group’s avaiable-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.
The directors manage this exposufe by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
difference risk profiles

At 31 December 2010, if the equity share price increases/decreases by 10 per cent
with all other vanables held constant, the Group’s consolidated other comprehensive
income would have been RMB18 million (2009: RMB16 million) higher/lower, arising
as a result of change of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December 2010

2010 2009

RMB million RMB million

Financiat assets:
Loans ard receivabtes (including cash and

cash eguivalents) 15,879 12,054
Other investments, at cost 255 230
Available-for-sale financial assets,

at fair value 179 161
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 46,332 44,982

(9) Fair values
Except as disclosed in note 18 1o the financial statements, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected 1n the consohdated

statement of financial position approximate their respective fair values

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy which
has 3 levels:

Level 1° quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices nciuded within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, eitner directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices)

Levei 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(g) Fair values (continued)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2010:
fair value measurement using: Total
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2010
RMB million  RMB million  RMB million  RMB million
Avatlable-for-sale financial assets 178 — — 179
Fair value measurement using: Total
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2009
RMB million RM8 million RMB milfion RMB million
Available-for-sale financial assets 161 - - 161
36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The directors proposed a final dividend subsequent to the end of the reporting period {note
10}

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company entered two agreements with
independent third parties to inject RMB37.5 mullion and RMB151.20 million respectively in
wo joint venture companies set up by these independent third parties. The Group would
hold 15% equity interests each in these two joint venture companies after the capital
injection

In addition, the Company entered an agreement with the venturers of Angang Shenyang, an
associate of the Group, to inject additional capital of RMB11.55 miillion in Angang Shenyang.
The equity interest of Angang Shenyang held by the Group would have no change after the
additional capital injection.

The Company entered an agreement with Angang Holding and an independent third party
to set up a joint venture company in which the Group would contribute RMB21 million and
hold 15% equity interest in this newly set up joint venture company.

The Company has entered into an agreement with the local autnonty in Anhui, Hefer
Province to set up a wholly owned subsidiary in Anhui. In March 2011, this wholly owned
subsidiary has been set up with the total investment cost amounted to RMB97.50 mitlion.
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2010 2009
RMB million RMB million
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 60,205 58,316
Intangible assets 8 13
Construction In progress 3,764 11,030
Investments in subsidianes 2,267 1,467
Interests in jointly controlled entities 1,245 934
Interests in associates 483 463
Other investments 434 3%
Deferred tax assets 1,112 830
69,518 73,444
Current assets
Inventories 12,378 10,045
Amount due from immediate parent/former
ultimate parent - 2
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 6,951 5.547
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 69 98
Trade receivables 4,337 3,906
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,902 2,675
Current tax assets 24 197
Cash and cash equivalents 2,542 1,138
29,203 23,608
Current liabilities
Trade payables . 8,081 5,520
Amount due to immediate
pareny/former ultimate parent 294 202
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,484 2,047
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 402 373
Amounts due to associates —_ 2
Deferred income 23 42
Other payables 6,804 6,903
Current portion of bank loans 13,841 19,538
Short-term debentures 3,000 —_
33,929 34,627
Net current liabilities {4,726) (11,019)
Total assets less current liabilities
carried forward 64,792 62,425
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

2010 2009
RMB million RMS million
Total assets less current liabilities
brought forward 64,792 62,425
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 10,057 9.822
Provisions 37 65
Deferred income '517 74
10,611 9,961
NET ASSETS 54,181 52,464
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share caprtal 7.235 7,235
Share premium 31.414 31.414
Reserves 3,713 3,467
Retained profits 11,819 10,348
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 54,181 52,464
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38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are sensitive to accounting methods,
assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation of the financial statements. The
Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that the Group believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going
basis, management evaluaies its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as
facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the financial statements. The
significant accounting policies are set forth in note 3 to the financial statements. The Group
believes the following critical accounting polictes involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.

(@) Impairment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

If circumstances indicate that the carry amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced 1o recoverable amournt. The recoverable amount s the greater of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
farr value because quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to therr present value, which requires significant judgement relating
1o level of sale volume, selling price and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of sale volume, selling price and amount of
operating costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

()

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews the estimated usefu! lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account upgrading and improvement work performed, and
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates

Allowance for inventories

As explained in note 3(k), the Group's inventories, other than spare parts and tools,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Spare parts and tools are
stated at cost less any allowance for obsolescence. Based on the Group's recent
experience and the nature of the inventories, the Group makes estimates of the selling
prices. the costs 10 be incurred In selling the inventories and the costs of completion in
case for work in progress or the usage for future repair and maintenance. Uncertainty
exists in these estimations.
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Differences between Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs") and
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP™)

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Group of the Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note RMB million  RMB million - RMB million  RMB million
Under IFRSs 1,965 707 2,054 748
Adjustments.
— Safety production expenses 0] (20) 29) {20} (29)
— Deferred tax charge (i) S 8 S 8
Under PRC GAAP 1,950 686 2,038 727
Equity attributable
to owners of
Total equity of the Group the Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note RMB million  RMB million  RMB million  RM8 million
Under 1FRSs 55,329 53,785 54,052 52,419
Adjustments:
— Deferred tax (0] 18 13 18 13
— Interests in jointly controlled entities [0} (2) - {2) -
Under PRC GAAP §5.345 53,798 54,068 52,432

Note.

(i} According to the document (Cai Qi* [2006] No 478), entities involved tn mining, construction,
production of dangerous goods and land transport are required to accrue production safety expenses to
the relevant period’s income statement at fixed rates on production volume or operating revenue. Under
IFRSs, expenses are recognised when they are actually incurred

(i) According to the above adjustment made in (i), no income tax is recognised by liability method under
IFRSs, whereas deferred tax assets are provided.by PRC GAAP.

(i) According to the Law of the PRC on Chinese-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures (the "Joint Ventures Law")
and Regulations for the Implementation of the Joint Ventures Law, one of the Group's jointly controlled
entities has transferred certain amount from the reserve to staff payable which led to the Group's share
of net assets in the jointly controlled entities decreased. Under IFRSs, the reserve could not transfer to

the liabilities
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_ Five Years Summary

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES IN THE PRC

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
RMB million  RMB miffion  RMB milion  RMB million  RMB miflion
(restated)
Prncipal operating revenue 92,431 70,126 79,616 65,499 54,330
Net profit 1,950 686 2,981 7,553 7,003
Total assets 105,114 100,987 92,184 86,783 58,385
Total liabilities (49,769) (47,189) (39,076) {32,520) (28,262)
Net assets 55,345 53,798 53,108

54,263 30123

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

2010 2009 2008

RMB million  AMB million  RMB mullion

{restated) (restated)

2007 2006
RMB million  RMB million
(restated) {restated)

Turnover

92212 70,057 78,985

65,294 54,283

Profit for the year attsibutable
10 owners of the Company

2,054 748 2,989

1,530 7,090

Non-current assets

74,093 76,616 72,158

56,566 47,063

Current assets
Current liabilities

33,026 26,638 22,800
(38,482) (37.828) (24,149

30,951 11,590 |
(20,811) (17.377)

Net current (liabilitiesyassets

(5.456) (11,190) (1.349)

10,140 (5.787)

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

68,637 65,426 70,809
(13,308) (11,641) (17.706)

66,706 41,276
(12.443) (11,139

Net asseis

55,329 53,785 53,103

54,263 30,141
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Five Years Summary (continued)

Note.

(a) Turnover was stated as the amount before deducting sales related taxes

(o) In 2007, the Group changed its accounting policy relating to interest in jointly controlled entities. The
new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively by restating opening balance at 1 January 2006
and 2007.

1n 2010, the Group changed its accounting policy relating to adoption of the amendment to 1AS 17 and
which has been applied retiospectively by restating opening balance at 1 January 2006, 2007, 2008 and
2009.

«©) Figures in years earlier than 2006 are stated in accordance with the policies before the change on a
consistent basis
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Other Relevant Corporate Information

INCORPORATION OF THE COMPANY:
Date ;8 May 1997

Place : 396 Nan Zhong Hua Road, Tie Dong Districz,
Anshan City, Liaoning Province

BUSINESS ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY IN HONG KONG:
23rd Flsor, Entertainment Building, 30 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong

REGISTRATION NUMBER OF LEGAL PERSON BUSINESS LICENSE HELD BY
THE COMPANY:

210000400006026

' TAXATION REGISTRATION NUMBER:

210302242669479

AUDITORS:

Name of the international auditors . RSM Nelson Wheeler

Place of Business 1 29th Floor, Caroline Centre, Lee Gardens Two,
28 Yun Ping Road, Hong Kong

Name of the PRC auditors : RSM China Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership)

Place of Business 1 8-9/F, Block A, Corporate Square,

No. 35 Finance Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
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Documents Available for Inspection

1 Financial statements signed by the Legal Representative, Chief Accountant and Head of the
Accounting Department of the Company and with seal affixed;

2. Original of the auditors’ report sealed by the accounting firm and signed and sealec by
certified publc accountants;

3. Origirals of all documents and manuscripts of announcements disclosed by the Comoany in
the China Securities Journal and the Securities Times in 2010;

4, Arnual report of the Company submitted to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
The atove documents are available for inspection at the secretarial office of the Board, Angang
Steel Company Limited* situated at No. ¢ Qianshan Road West, Qianshan District, Anshan City,

Liaoning Province.

Note: This report is preparec in both Chinese and English. The Chinese versior shall crevail in case
of ‘any inconsistency in the interprezation of the two versions.

Angang Steel Company Limited*
" The Board

29 March 2011
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